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Chairman’s Statement
TERE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Chiho-Tiande
Group Limited (& RKbEE A RAF) (the “Company”), | present
the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

The Group finished the 2011 financial year with a reduced net profit
attributable to owners of the Company from HK$352.8 million in the
previous year to HK$152.1 million. Despite the drop in net profit,
the Group continued to experience strong demand in its processed
products and as such a significant increase in sales was recorded in
2011.

The main reasons for the reduction in net profit were due to a
significant drop in the global commodity prices in the last quarter of
2011 and “mark-to-market” basis for provision for inventories and
revaluation for the financial instruments held by the Group. The drop
in commodity prices had a negative impact on the gross margin of
the Group especially in the last quarter of 2011 and also gave rise to
an inventories provision based on the “mark-to-market” accounting
principle and the need for a downward revaluation for the financial
instruments held by the Group at the end of 2011. In addition, the
drop in commodity price was also the main reason for the negative
contribution from the Shanghai joint venture company.

In 2011, the Group continued its expansion plans by completing the
acquisition of an industrial site at the Yuen Long Industrial Estate to
increase its processing capability in Hong Kong and by executing
an investment agreement with Yantai Committee to establish new
processing facilities in the Development Zone in Yantai City, PRC.
These two investments will enable the Group to diversify the variety
of scrap materials handled and also to establish a wider coverage
area in the PRC.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE (B)

In December 2011, the Company through its wholly owned
subsidiary increased the equity interest in Chiho-Tiande (HK) Metals
Recycling Co. Limited, the Company’s joint venture company in
Hong Kong, from 55% to 70% as we see great potential in the Hong
Kong market and such joint venture will compliment the acquisition
of the industrial site in Yuen Long for establishing a more diversified
processing platform in Hong Kong.

In 2011, the Group continued to place strong emphasis on capturing
and securing supply of raw materials from proven sources of scrap
metal through its well established overseas procurement network.

During the financial year, we also disclosed two other potential joint-
venture opportunities in Beijing and Tianjin. As an update, the Beijing
joint-venture did not materialise at the end as we did not believe that
the venture will be viable after having carried out a detailed internal
feasibility study on the potential venture. In so far as the Tianjin joint
venture is concerned, the collaboration with the counterparty was
short-lived and was ultimately discontinued due to differences in
major business ethics. Nevertheless, we are continuing to explore
other possible opportunities in similar areas.

Going forward and with the encouragement from the PRC
Government to increase importation of non-ferrous scrap metals to
compensate for the shortages that the PRC is currently facing, we
remain committed to further expanding our processing capability,
and at the same time improving our profitability and return on equity.
Our focus will cover the existing facilities including Taizhou, Ningbo,
Shanghai, Hong Kong (together with the joint venture) and Yantai.
We will continue to be on the lookout for any potential opportunity in
the year ahead.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE (B)

In January 2012, Sims Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited
(“Sims”), a Hong Kong subsidiary of Sims Metal Management
(“SMM”) being the largest (by market capitalisation) metal recycler in
the world and one of the Group’s major suppliers, became the first
strategic investor of the Company (details of such investment are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 17 January 2012).
Since Sims became a strategic investor of our Company, we have
already started to reap the synergistic benefit of our tie-up with the
gradual increase in our purchase volume with Sims and at the same
time, we have also started selling scrap materials through Sims
to its customers in the Asia region. The Board firmly believes that
in view of SMM’s global reach and customer network, advanced
technologies and solutions in the metals and electronics recycling
industry together with its strong global resources with approximately
260 facilities worldwide, the strategic collaboration with SMM  will
significantly add value and expertise which complements that of
the Group, and will considerably enhance the Group’s current
position for future expansion. The Group further believes that having
SMM as a significant minority shareholder of the Group is a strong
recognition of the Group’s competitiveness and achievements and
will significantly enhance the overall reputation and strategic growth
of the Group within the metal recycling industry.

Fang Ankong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

During the year ended 31 December 2011, our revenue exceeded
HK$9.8 billion (2010: HK$5.9 billion), representing an increase of
65.5% from the previous year. With regard to the profitability, we
recorded a reduced net profit attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$152.1 million (2010: HK$352.8 million). Despite the drop in
net profit, the Group continued to experience strong demand in its
processed products and as such a significant increase in sales was
recorded in 2011.

The main reasons for the reduction in net profit were due to a
significant drop in the global commodity prices in the last quarter of
2011 and “mark-to-market” basis for provision for inventories and
revaluation for the financial instruments held by the Group. The drop
in commodity prices had a negative impact on the gross margin of
the Group especially in the last quarter of 2011 and also gave rise to
an inventories provision based on the “mark-to-market” accounting
principle and the need for a downward revaluation for the financial
instruments held by the Group at the end of 2011. In addition, the
drop in commodity price was also the main reason for the negative
contribution from the Shanghai joint venture company.

In 2011, the Group continued its expansion plans by completing the
acquisition of an industrial site at the Yuen Long Industrial Estate to
increase its processing capability in Hong Kong and by executing
an investment agreement with Yantai Committee to establish new
processing facilities in the Development Zone in Yantai City, PRC.
These two investments will enable the Group to diversify the variety
of scrap materials handled and also to establish a wider coverage
area of the PRC.

The Group continued to experience strong demand in its processed
products. During the year, we have sold over 843,400 tonnes
of processed products from our three business segments. This
represents an increase of 62.6% when compared with over 518,600
tonnes in the previous year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEWES N (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

In the last quarter of 2011, there was a significant drop in global
commodity prices. As a result, our gross profit margin was
negatively impacted and was reduced from 9.6% in 2010 to 4.6% in
2011. We continued our usual practices of buying mixed metal scrap
and selling its recycled products in accordance with our processing
ability so as to mitigate the short-term impact of price volatility on our
overall performance.

In 2011, the Group continued to place strong emphasis on capturing
and securing supply of raw materials from proven sources of
scrap metal through its well established overseas procurement
network. In January 2012, Sims became the first strategic investor
of the Company. Soon after Sims becoming a strategic investor of
our Company, we have seen a gradual increase in our purchase
volume with Sims and at the same time, we have started selling
scrap materials through Sims to its customers in the Asia region.
We expect the business volumes between our Group and Sims to
increase further in the future.

Basic earnings per share amounted to HK$0.15 (2010: HK$0.41),
representing a decrease of 63.4% when compared with the previous
year.

Our Procurement Network

We are the largest importer of mixed metal scrap used for recycling,
reuse and processing in terms of the total import volume as
approved by the Ministry of Environmental Protection in the PRC.
We import nearly all of our mixed metal scrap and have, over the
years, developed a strong international procurement network which
covers Europe, North America, Oceania and Asia. Our network of
suppliers are mostly established and developed by us leveraging on
our experience in the industry. With our good business practices, we
have enjoyed good business relationship with our suppliers over the
years.

Corporate and Business Development

With the acquisition of an industrial site at Yuen Long Industrial
Estate and the establishment of new processing facilities in the
Development Zone in Yantai City, PRC, we expect that the Group’s
processing and production capacity will be increased to over
1,295,000 tonnes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEWES N (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Social Responsibilities

Despite the changes in evaluation basis by the Zhejiang
Environmental Protection Bureau (#TTAIRBIRFERE) in 2011, our
Taizhou facilities still rank in the top 15% among the designated
processing units for imported hardware and electrical appliance
scrap, electric wire and cable scrap, as well as motor scrap in
Zhejiang Province. Our production processes do not consume large
volumes of electricity and water and therefore produce very small
volumes of waste materials. We consider that we have adopted
sufficient environmental protection measures and controls against
air, water, solids and noise pollutions produced during the course of
our production process.

We are committed to the extension of our social responsibilities
when setting up facilities in major cities of the PRC to contribute to
the successful development of an environmentally friendly recycling
industry.

This commitment together with local and national environmental
protection standards has now been extended to our Shanghai joint
venture facilities and will apply to our new facilities in the Yantai City,
PRC.

Prospects

With signs indicating that the world economy is stabilizing, and the
support from the PRC Government to develop the recycling industry,
we are confident that the metal recycling industry in the PRC will
continue to grow and will become an important source and an
integral part of the metal resource supply chain of the PRC in the
future.

As metal recycling contributes significantly to the protection of the
environment and to the preservation of valuable natural resources,
including the use of energy, which are consumed in large quantities
during primary metal production processes. On the basis of the
above stated fundamental belief, we continue to increase our
procurement volume in line with the rapidly increasing demand and
our expansion strategy for scrap raw materials in the PRC.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEEFWED T (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Prospects (continued)

With regard to business development, our focus will cover the
existing facilities including Taizhou, Ningbo, Shanghai, Hong Kong
(together with the joint venture) and Yantai. We will continue to be on
the lookout for any potential opportunity in the year ahead.

During the year 2011, the Company entered into the Investment
Agreement with Yantai Committee for the purpose of developing and
operating an integrated processing facility for recycling, processing
and sales of imported mixed metal scrap in the Development
Zone in Yantai City, PRC. The total investment of the project is
USD99,980,000. The Company has also, through an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary, completed the purchase of an industrial
site located at Yuen Long Industrial Estate for a consideration of
HK$148 million. The Group intends to develop the industrial site into
an integrated processing facility capable of processing mixed metal
scrap and electric recycling.

The Group believes that in view of SMM’s global reach and
customer network, advanced technologies and solutions in the
metals and electronics recycling industry together with its strong
global resources with approximately 260 facilities worldwide,
the strategic collaboration with SMM will significantly add value
and expertise which complements that of the Group, and will
considerably enhance the Group’s current position for future
expansion. The Group further believes that having SMM as a
significant minority shareholder of the Group is a strong recognition
of the Group’s competitiveness and achievements and will
significantly enhance the overall reputation and strategic growth of
the Group within the metal recycling industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEWES N (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Detailed Comparison of Profit and Loss Summary

¥BOERESE (E)
SR BESHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

2011 2010

—2——& -—z-%f

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Revenue Weas 9,815,522 5,931,589

Cost of sales SHERAR (9,362,935) (5,361,645)

Gross profit EF 452,587 569,944

Gross profit margin ER=E 4.6% 9.6%
Net profit attributable to RRARIEE ANEIELEF

owners of the Company 152,087 352,798

Due to a significant drop in global commodity prices in the last
quarter of 2011, the gross profit reduced from HK$569.9 million in
2010 to HK$452.6 million in 2011.

We continued to increase our purchase volumes to cater
for processing needs through our well established overseas
procurement network. During the year, we sold over 843,400 tonnes
(2010: 518,600 tonnes) of our processed products within our three
business segments, representing an increase of 62.6% over 2010.

The management also believes that the metal recycling industry
plays a vital role in the production and the supply of ferrous and
nonferrous metals. It contributes significantly to the protection of the
environment and to the preservation of valuable natural resources,
including energy, which are consumed in large quantities during
primary metal production processes. With this in mind and in
accordance with our expansion strategy, we are aiming to procure
70,000 to 80,000 tonnes of metal scrap materials (21,000 — 24,000
tonnes of non-ferrous and 49,000 to 56,000 tonnes of ferrous) a
month to cater for its processing needs. Such purchase volume is
expected to increase as we continue to expand. The management is
committed to achieving satisfactory returns to the Shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEWES N (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue increased by HK$3.9 billion, or 65.5%, from HK$5.9 billion in
2010 to HK$9.8 billion in the year. The increase was mainly contributed
by an increase in sales volume as well as average selling prices for our
recycled metal products and foundry products.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales increased by HK$4.0 billion, or 74.6%, from HK$5.4
billion (taking into account of inventory provision) in 2010 to HK$9.4
billion in the year. The increase is in line with the increase in revenue
and primarily due to an increase in sales volume and in the average
purchase prices of raw materials.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit for the year was HK$452.6 million as compared to a
gross profit of HK$569.9 million for 2010. We recorded a gross profit
margin of 9.6% last year as compared to gross profit margin in the
year of 4.6%.

The decrease in overall gross profit margin was mainly due to a
significant drop in the global commodity prices in the last quarter of
2011 and corresponding inventory provision on a “mark-to market”
basis.

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately
HK$18.5 million, or 144.5%, from HK$12.8 million in 2010 to
HK$31.3 million in the year due to increase in sales volume. The
increase in distribution costs was mainly due to an increase in selling
activities through its joint venture facilities in Shanghai and Hong
Kong.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$73.7 million, or
105.8%, from HK$69.7 million in 2010 to HK$143.5 million in the year.
This was mainly due to additional expenses for salaries and allowances
and share-base payment incurred during the year.

Other income

Other income increased by approximately HK$10.8 million, or
93.5%, from HK$11.5 million in 2010 to HK$22.3 million in the year.
This was mainly due to increase in interest income during the year.

Other gains and losses

Other gains decreased by approximately HK$53.0 million from
HK$55.0 million in 2010 to HK$2.0 million in the year mainly due to
downward revaluation of the financial instruments.

Other expenses
Other expenses decreased by HK$24.8 million mainly due to one-off
listing expenses incurred last year.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by approximately HK$50.7 million, or
107.6%, from HK$47.1 milion in 2010 to HK$97.8 million in the
year. This was mainly due to increase in interest expenses incurred
from additional bank borrowings raised during the year.

Profit for the year and net profit margin

As a result of the factors mentioned above, the net profit for the year
decreased by HK$236.3 million, or 67.0% from HK$352.6 million in
2010 to HK$116.3 million in the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Key Financial Ratios

The following table sets forth certain of our financial ratios as of the
date for the periods indicated:
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Liquidity Ratios REBESLE

At 31 At 31
December December
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
+=A +=A
=t+-H =t+—-H
Current ratio BN 1.47 1.75
Quick ratio B 0.47 0.54
Gearing ratio (%) BEEELE (%) 49.9 41.8

Year ended 31 December

BZE+-A=+—RILLEE
2011 2010
—B——F —E-TF
Inventory turnover days FEEEAH 108 118
Debtor’s turnover days FEUBR A S B & 8 6
Creditor’s turnover days FERTBR B E B 2 9 7

Liquidity and Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

Included in net current assets were cash and various bank deposits
totalling HK$590.9 million (2010: HK$603.0 million). Total bank
borrowings were HK$2.7 billion (2010: HK$1.5 billion), and these
were mainly used to finance the purchases of mixed metal scrap
from overseas. Such borrowings are mainly denominated in United
States dollars and Renminbi.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2011 was
49.9% (2010: 41.8%). This was mainly due to net increase in bank
borrowings during the year.

Debtor’s turnover days and creditor’s turnover days both increased
from 6 days and 7 days for the year ended 31 December 2010 to 8
days and 9 days for the year ended 31 December 2011 respectively.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources and Capital

Structure (continued)
Inventory turnover days decreased from 118 days for the year ended 31
December 2010 to 108 days for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2011, we had pledged certain buildings,
land use rights, trade receivables and bank deposits with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$295.5 million (2010:
approximately HK$491.5 million) to secure bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2011, we had capital commitments in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment but not provided for in
the consolidated financial statements amounted to HK$185.9 million
(2010: HK$10.4 million).

As at the date of this report, the Board is not aware of any material
contingent liabilities.

Risk Management

Qur Group in its ordinary course of business is exposed to market
risk such as commodities price risk, foreign currencies risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Our risk management strategy
aims to minimize the adverse effects of these risks on its financial
performance.

With the establishment of the Pricing Committee, a new formal
hedging policy took effect on 23 June 2010 which aimed to enhance
the Group’s risk management of commodity price fluctuations.

With regard to foreign currency risk management, we have placed
more emphasis on increased United States dollars borrowings
secured by Renminbi deposits in order to take advantage of the
favourable exchange rate. We will continue using this hedging
strategy so long as the exchange rate justifies it.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Risk Management (continued)

With the current interest rates staying at relatively low levels, we have
not entered into any interest rate hedging contracts or any other
interest rate related derivative financial instrument. However, we
continue to monitor its related interest rate exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure when the need
arises.

As for credit risk, we continue to follow the trade practices of cash
on collection from sales of all of its Metal Recycling Products in
order to minimize the carrying amounts of the financial assets in our
Group’s financial statements. In addition, we will continue to monitor
closely the trade debtors for the Foundry business to minimize
potential impairment losses.

With the liquidity risk, we will continue maintaining a balance
between continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings.

Funds raised by the Company’s initial public offering

and use of proceeds

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange in 2010 and
proceeds, less listing expenses, amounted to approximately
HK$581.0 million, was raised by the public offering. During the years
ended 31 December 2010 and 2011, the net proceeds were fully
utilised as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 AE—F—FF+_H=1—HIFFE
Purchase raw material E%EJ?\UL el 290.0
Enhancement of procurement network and BRGEDE - AOFRUNIEIGREE
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Expansion of production capacity HhERERE 54.3
Repayment of shareholder’s loan BEREER 50.0
General working capital —MREEES 51.0
For the year ended 31 December 2011 B2 —FE——FF+ _HA=+—HIFE
Expansion of production capacity — acquisition HRERL — AT T H
of the industrial site at the Yuen Long —IE TR
Industrial Estate 115.8
Total & 581

BEeREEFRAHE




Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEWES N (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Employees

As at 31 December 2011, we had a workforce of 703 employees. In
addition, we engaged approximately 4,300 separation and selection
workers through local contractors. We have not experienced any strikes,
work stoppages or significant labor disputes which have affected
its operations in the past. We have not experienced any significant
difficulties in recruiting and retaining qualified staff. We continue to
maintain good relationships with our employees.

The Remuneration Policy

We remunerate employees based on their performance, experience
and prevailing industry practices so as to retain competent
employees. In addition to benefits normally provided in line with
industry practices, the Company also has a share option scheme
in place for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the
eligible persons including employees of Group companies for their
contributions to the long term success of our Group.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2011, 31,495,000
share options were granted under the Post-IPO share option
scheme.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fang Ankong (F&%), aged 46, is an Executive Director,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”). Mr. Fang Ankong was appointed
as an Executive Director on 15 May 2008. Mr. Fang serves as a
Chairman of the Executive Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee and member of the Pricing Committee
and Monitoring Committee of the Company and he is also a Director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Fang Ankong is also one
of the founders of the Group. Mr. Fang Ankong founded the Group
in 1999 and has over 17 years of experience in the business of
metallurgy and metal scrap recycling. Mr. Fang Ankong is primarily
responsible for setting corporate strategy and planning, and overall
management of the Group. Prior to founding the Group, Mr. Fang
Ankong has been engaged in the import and trading of metals
scrap. From 1995, Mr. Fang Ankong was a shareholder of Tianan
Resources, a company engaged in the importing of metal scrap
into China and recycling of metal scrap, and also participated in the
operation and management of Tianan Resources. Tianan Resources
was deregistered in 2002.

Mr. Fang Ankong is the younger brother of Ms. Fang Aiping and
elder brother of Mr. Fang Anlin, who are both Vice President of
the Group. Mr. Fang Ankong is also the brother-in-law of Mr. Ding
Guopei, the Senior Vice President of the Group. Mr. Fang Ankong
is also the younger brother of the father-in-law of Mr. Zhu Zhonghui,
the manager of the sales and marketing department of the Group.

Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen, aged 49, is an Executive Director,
Vice President and one of the founders of the Group. He was
appointed as an Executive Director on 15 May 2008. He serves as
a member of the Executive Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company and he is also a Director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. van QOoaijen is primarily in
charge of corporate strategy and planning with focus on the Group’s
import functions and has over 14 years of experience. Mr. van Ooijen
obtained a diploma in 1985 from Hogere Agrarische Scholen van de
Katholieke Nederlandse Boeren-en Tuindersbond ’S-Hertogenbosch
(Higher Agricultural Schools of the Catholic Dutch Farmers and
Gardeners Union of 'S-Hertogenbosch) in the Netherlands. Mr.
van Qoijen is the sole shareholder and has been appointed as the
director of SVO Company B.V. since 30 September 1993. He was
also the director of Delco Participation B.V. from 2 November 2000
until 23 April 2008.
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Mr. Gu Liyong (BEZB), aged 49, is an Executive Director and Vice
President of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director
on 28 August 2008. Mr. Gu serves as a member of the Executive
Committee of the Company and he is also a Director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. He is primarily responsible for operational
and financial activities and has over 26 years of experience in the
industry. Mr. Gu graduated from Shanghai University of Technology
(/BT KZ) in 1984 with a Bachelor's degree in Engineering
and majoring in steel making from the Department of Metallurgy.
He worked at China Resources Reclamation Corp., East China
Co. (FEIMEBAEF AL ARZERAFA]), a company for recycling
and trading ferrous metal (such as steel and iron) and non-ferrous
metal (such as copper, aluminum, lead and tin) and plastic scrap in
the East China region, for at least 10 years and started his career
in the management and operation of domestic and international
recycling business. He was a manager for the import and export
department and an assistant to general manager in China Resources
Reclamation Corp., East China Co., and was responsible for
managing the procurement of metal scrap from overseas and
reselling to their customers. Mr. Gu has extensive experience in the
recycling of different resources, including metals and other scrap
materials. Since he joined the Group in 1999, Mr. Gu has been
responsible for the import and export businesses of the Group
by utilising his professional knowledge in the recycling resources
business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Michael Charles Lion, aged 62, is a Non-Executive Director. He
was appointed as a Non-Executive Director on 17 January 2012.
He serves as a member of the Audit Committee of the Company.
He has a career of over 40 years in the international non-ferrous
metals industry, including pioneering the development of China and
other Asian markets as consumers of international non-ferrous scrap
in the early 1970s. He has been working with SMM Asia, being a
wholly-owned Hong Kong subsidiary of SMM, for 14 years and is
the Chairman and a Director of SMM Asia. SMM Asia is engaged
in the global international marketing and trading of SMM’s owned
and brokered non-ferrous scrap, nonferrous by-products and
primary metals. From 1967 to 1986, he was a partner in Philipp
and Lion Partnership; from 1986 to 1991, he was the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of Philipp and Lion Group Ltd., and
from 1997, he has been the President of Lion Consulting Inc.. As
a founding member of the London Metals Exchange secondary
aluminium sub-committee, he currently serves as chairman of the
Bureau of International Recycling (“BIR”) Membership committee
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and a member of its Advisory and Executive boards. He was the
president of the former British Secondary Metals Association and
the president of the Nonferrous Division of BIR. He is a frequent
speaker and contributor of articles at global industry events such as
Metal Bulletin, IWCC and CRU, Cessco gatherings, on the topics of
nonferrous metals and hedging. He graduated from Haileybury and
Imperial Service College in 1963, and has a certificate of Former
Ring Dealing Member of London Metals Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Zhang Jingdong (E#(R), aged 66, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director. She joined the Group on 23 June 2010. Ms.
Zhang is also a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. She was
the vice-secretary-general of Financial Trust Association of Zhejiang
Province (MM T & & RM{EFLEHE) before joining our Group and she
served as chief and general manager and held various positions in
various Chinese banking and corporate finance sectors including the
People’s Bank of China Heilongjiang Branch (FREIA RER1TEEET
£%77), Financial Intermediation Centre of Zhejiang Province (7L
BESLRBF L), and office of Hangzhou Financial Supervision of
People’s Bank of China Shanghai Branch (B A RER1T 82 1T
MERMEBERAE).

Ms. Zhang holds a master’s degree in Economic Management (47
E12) from the Academy of Social Sciences of Hei Longjiang (£#E/T
BHEREM).

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (FEE#E#), aged 62, is an
Independent Non-Executive Director. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director on 23 June 2010. Dr. Loke
serves as a Chairman of the Audit Committee and member of
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Dr. Loke has over 36 years of experience in accounting
and auditing for private and public companies, financial consultancy
and corporate management. He holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from Universiti Teknologi Malaysia and a
Doctor of Business Administration degree from University of South
Australia. He is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales; Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants; and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is also
an Associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.
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He is currently the company secretary of Minth Group Limited and
serves as an independent non-executive director of Vodone Limited,
Matrix Holdings Limited, Bio-Dynamic Group Limited, China Fire
Safety Enterprise Group Limited, Winfair Investment Company
Limited, SCUD Group Limited and Zhong An Real Estate Limited,
companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Li Xikui (Z=88%), aged 67, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director. He joined the Group on 23 June 2010. Mr. Li serves
as a member of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Li obtained a
Bachelor's degree majoring in foreign trade (¥f9NE5HZE) from
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (FRAbEFAEAE)
(formally known as Liaoning Finance and Economics College (&2
BI4EE3RT)) in August 1970 and a master diploma in finance from
Research Institute for Fiscal Science of Ministry of Finance (B4 Bz 3884
EREHEBIFZRFT) in July 1982,

Mr. Li became the Researcher (F15¢ &) of China Construction Bank
(FPEIEERERTT) in 1993. He has been receiving a special allowance
granted by the State Council (EI7B%) since 1992.

Mr. Li was appointed as the vice president of the head office (178l
774 of China Construction Bank (FF B2 :&5R77) in 1985 and 1988;
the vice president (&I#4%;) of China Galaxy Securities Company (/1
B £R 0] 75 %A &)). Since February 2008, he has been the chairman of
the board (Z %) of Galaxy Asset Management Co., Ltd (SR/AI &%
EIENT]).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow Wan Hoi Paul (BEIZ%), aged 56, is the Qualified
Accountant and Chief Financial Officer of the Group. He joined the
Group in June 2009 as chief financial officer with responsibility for
overall financial matters of the Group. Mr. Chow has significant
experience in accounting and finance. He is an associate of both
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. He is also a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Chow was formerly a non-executive director of Asia Distribution
Solutions Limited, a company that was previously trading on AlM, a
market operated by the London Stock Exchange plc. (LSE: LSE). Mr.
Chow currently serves as an independent non-executive director of
Associated International Hotels Limited (Stock code: 0105), Tian Teck
Land Limited (Stock code: 0266) and China Ground Source Energy
Limited (Stock code: 8128), companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EERSREEAEEE (8)

Mr. Ding Guopei (T Bl#E), aged 49, is the Senior Vice President
of the Group, the General Manager and Director of Taizhou Chiho-
Tiande Metals Company Limited and the General Manager of
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Foundry Company Limited. Mr. Ding has
over 13 years of experience in the industry and joined the Group
in December 1999. Prior to joining the Group, he was a trader
principally engaged in the metal recycling industry. Mr. Ding obtained
a diploma majoring in International Economics and Trade from the
Faculty of Business from Ningbo University in 2002.

Mr. Ding successively worked as Vice-Chairman of China Nonferrous
Metals Industry Association Recycling Metal Branch in November
2004, Chairman of Association of Resources Comprehensive
Utilization of Taizhou City in June 2005, and executive director of
China Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine Association in April
2006. He has been chosen as a member of the third session
Standing Committee of Lu Qiao District People’s Congress in
December 2006, the second session outstanding builders of Taizhou
City of the socialism with Chinese characteristic in February 2007,
and was awarded the Top 10 Contribution to the China Metal
Recycling Industry Award in October 2007. He was also been the
Vice-Chairman of the Zhejiang Association of Solid Waste Recycle
and Disposal in May 2008. He has been chosen as NPC deputies of
Taizhou in January 2011. Mr. Ding held the post of Vice-Chairman
of Zhejiang Provincial Environment Monitoring Association in August
2011 and he has been chosen as the representative of Fourth
People’s Congress of Lu Qiao District in March 2012. Mr. Ding is
the brother-in-law of Mr. Fang Ankong and Mr. Fang Anlin, and the
husband of Ms. Fang Aiping.

Ms. Fang Aiping (B E3#), aged 49, is the Vice President of the
Group, and the Financial Vice-General Manager of Taizhou Chiho-
Tiande Metals Company Limited and Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Foundry
Company Limited. She is primarily responsible for the subsidiary’s
overall financial planning, financial reporting and budgeting as well
as implementing our Group’s business strategies. Ms. Fang Aiping
joined our Group since December 1999. Ms. Fang Aiping has more
than 12 years of experience in financial management. Ms. Fang
Aiping is the sister of Mr. Fang Ankong and Mr. Fang Anlin. She is
the wife of Mr. Ding Guopei.

Mr. Fang Anlin (J3Z&#), aged 43, is the Vice President of the
Group, and the Vice-General Manager of Taizhou Chiho-Tiande
Metals Company Limited and Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Foundry
Company Limited. He is also a Director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. He is primarily responsible for the production of the
subsidiary. Mr. Fang Anlin joined the Group in December 1999 and
has over 17 years of experience in the business of mixed metal
scrap. Since Mr. Fang Anlin joined the Group, Mr. Fang Anlin has
been responsible for overseeing the production of recycled metal
products. Mr. Fang Anlin is the brother of Mr. Fang Ankong and Ms.
Fang Aiping. Mr. Fang Anlin is also the brother in-law of Mr. Ding
Guopei.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EERSREEAEEE (8)

Mr. Cai Haifeng (#81#), aged 41, is the Vice President of the
Group and the General Manager of Chiho-Tiande (Ningbo) Metals
Recycling Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Cai
graduated from Zhejiang Polytechnic University (17T T K22) with
a Bachelor’s degree in Fine Chemical Engineering in 1993. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Cai worked for Zhejiang Dong Da Ji Tuan
Company (T TR AEBEAF]), a company whose business involves
the import and export agency business, as an assistant manager in
the business development department responsible for metal scrap
import business. He joined the Group in May 2000.

Mr. Gan Jun (H'E), aged 42, is the assistant to the Chief Executive
Officer and Finance Manager of the Group. Mr. Gan joined our
Group in September 2007 and he is also a Director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. He holds a diploma of Accountancy in
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (78EI 84 A
&), Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Gan worked as the financial
manager and the assistant to the general manager in Guangdong
Gentle Technology Company Limited (BERIEERAR AR,
an information technology application provider ({22 ¥:%i77E F AR
757), for more than a year. Mr. Gan has extensive experience in
the accounting and finance field, and he is also a certified public
accountant and registered tax adviser in China.

Mr. Xu Jialiang (& i1 B), aged 48, is the manager of the
procurement department of the Group and is primarily responsible
for procuring raw material supply of the Group. Mr. Xu joined the
Group in December 1999 and was responsible for the procurement
of mixed metal scrap. Mr. Xu has over 11 years of experience in
mixed metal scrap procurement.

Mr. Zhu Zhonghui (k8 ¥8), aged 33, is the manager of the sales
and marketing department of the Group and is primarily responsible
for the sales management of the Group. Mr. Zhu joined the Group
in December 1999 and was responsible for the selling of recycled
metal products. Mr. Zhu is the son-in-law of the elder brother of Mr.
Fang Ankong.

Mr. Xu Jun (#k5&), aged 34, is the Head of Investor Relations of the
Group and he joined the Group in September 2010 as Vice Head
of Investor Relations, and promoted to Head of Investor Relations
in December 2010. Mr. Xu is graduated from Shanghai Jiaotong
University (_E/&ZBKE) with a Bachelor's degree in Dynamic &
Energy Engineering in 2000. In 2003, he is graduated from New
York Institute of Technology with a Master degree in Business
Administration. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu has worked for
Alcatel Shanghai Bell Limited (_E/8E BB -REARAR]) as the
Sales & Bid Director of overseas market; the Head of Investment
Banking of Great China for Hongjing Bangxun Information (Shanghai)
Limited (Z==BAE (L8)ABR2AR]) and the Executive Director
for Shanghai Jingshun Equity Investment Limited ( /8 S IEMRERE
BRATR).
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Directors present the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
of the Group on page 64.

FINAL DIVIDENDS
The Board of Directors proposed the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2011 of HK3.7 cents per ordinary
share, subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.

BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital of
the Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

OF THE COMPANY

During the financial year ended 31 December 2011, the
Company repurchased 20,000,000 ordinary shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at an aggregate consideration of
HK$83,945,621. The repurchases were effected by the Directors for

BE  HEIEEELQTRED

HE—ZT——F+-_A=+—RHLHEFE
A RNRREEBHAERZFERAGEE
20,000,000 i & mBA% - 421 (E 583,945,621
B e ERBERME ERAREEE - B

the enhancement of shareholders’ value. Details of the repurchases  EIEFEMT :
are as follows:
Total number
Month of the of the ordinary Highest price Lowest price Aggregate
repurchases shares repurchased paid per share paid per share consideration
BE AR BELEREH FERESE FEREEE #BRE
HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT
August 2011 —Z——F\A 2,780,000 450 4,08 11,640,375
September 2011 —Z——FNA 9,934,000 4.55 3.84 42,475,825
October 2011 —Z-—%+A 7,286,000 4.30 3.69 29,829,421
20,000,000 83,945,621
Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its Bk EXHEEIN - FRARALENEAE
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed HFEEE  HEXBEEMARF LHE
securities of the Company during the year. %o
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BEREEE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the law of Cayman Islands being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholder.

RESERVES
Details of the movement in reserves of the Group during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 December 2011, the distribution reserve of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$1,102,011,000.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DONATIONS
The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$120,530 (2010: approximately HK$126,430).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2011, the Group’s largest supplier accounted for 11.5% (2010:
9.4%) of the total purchases. The five largest suppliers comprised
40.8% (2010: 43.2%) of the total purchases.

In 2011, the Group’s largest customer accounted for 5.5% (2010:
8.3%) of the total revenue. The five largest customers comprised
20.1% (2010: 18.5%) of the total revenue.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contacts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the Company’s business were entered into or subsisted during
the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS DURING THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements which are also connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions pursuant to
Listing Rules:

(@  As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 21
December 2011, Chiho-Tiande Investments Limited (“Chiho-
Tiande Investments”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a share sale and purchase
agreement (the “SPA”) with ISA Co., Limited (“ISA”) on 21
December 2011 pursuant to which ISA agreed to dispose
of its 15% equity interests in Chiho-Tiande (HK) Metals
Recycling Co. Limited (the “Hong Kong JV”) to Chiho-Tiande
Investments at a consideration of HK$4,779,009. On the
same date, ISA also entered into a share sale and purchase
agreement with Capitol Ocean Limited (“Capitol Ocean”) to
dispose of its remaining 30% equity interests in the Hong Kong
JV to Capitol Ocean at a consideration of HK$9,558,018. Prior
to the disposals, the Hong Kong JV was owned as to 55%
by the Company through Chiho-Tiande Investments and as
to 45% by ISA, and ISA was hence a connected person of
the Company. The transactions contemplated under the SPA
constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules.
Upon completion of the disposals, the Hong Kong JV became
a 70%-owned subsidiary of the Company in which Capitol
Ocean holds 30% equity interests.

(b) As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
21 March 2012, during the period between 1 January 2011
and 31 December 2011, the Group purchased certain scrap
metals from De Leeuw Metalen B.V., a company incorporated
in the Netherlands and majority-owned by one of the sons
of Mr. Herman Maurits de Leeuw (“Mr. de Leeuw”), in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group for an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$13.3 million (the
“Purchases”). Mr. de Leeuw is a controlling shareholder of
the Company and pursuant to Rule 14A.11(4)(b)(ii) of the
Listing Rules, De Leeuw Metalen B.V. is an associate of Mr.
de Leeuw and hence a connected person of the Company.
The Purchases therefore constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS DURING THE YEAR

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)

In accordance with the requirements under Rule 14A.47(1) and (2)
of the Listing Rules, the Company should have notified the Stock
Exchange of, and published an announcement on, the continuing
connected transactions when the applicable percentage ratios first
exceeded 0.1% in February 2011. Owing to administrative oversight,
the Company has not duly complied with these requirements at the
time.

The Company has notified the Stock Exchange of the non-
compliance with the notification and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and has included the details
of these continuing connected transactions in this annual report of
the Company in accordance with the reporting requirement under
Rule 14A.45 of the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors confirmed that the
continuing connection transactions stated above had been
entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of its business,
on normal commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms
of the agreement governing such transactions that were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole. The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his modified letter containing
his findings and conclusions, which are extracted as below, in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in pages 28 to 33 of this annual report in accordance with
Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

“The Company did not establish the maximum aggregate annual
value in respect of the purchases of scrap metals from De
Leeuw Metalen B.V. for the year ended 31 December 2011, and
accordingly we have not performed the procedures described in the
Main Board Listing Rules 14A.38(4) with respect to such purchases.
Our conclusion is not qualified in respect of this matter.”
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS SUBSEQUENT TO
THE REPORTING PERIOD

Set out below are the connected transactions and the continuing
connected transactions entered into by the Company after the
year ended 31 December 2011 which are subject to the reporting
requirements under Rule 14A.45 of the Listing Rules to be disclosed
in the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2011:

@)

On 16 January 2012, the Company entered into the master
supply agreement (the “Sims Master Supply Agreement”) with
Sims Metal Management Asia Limited (“Sims Asia”, together
with its subsidiary, the “Sims Asia Group”) to document their
existing business relationships relating to the purchases by
the Group of certain products from the relevant member(s)
of the Sims Asia Group. The term of the Sims Master Supply
Agreement will expire on 31 December 2012 and pursuant
to the Sims Master Supply Agreement, the total value of
the products to be supplied by the Sims Asia Group to the
Group during the term shall not exceed US$400 million
(approximately HK$3,120 million) and the transactions shall be
on normal commercial terms, at arm’s length consistent with
prior practice between the parties.

Sims Asia is the intermediate holding company of Sims Metal
Management Dragon Holdings Limited (“Sims”), which in turn
acquired 16% of the issued share capital of the Company on
17 January 2012. Therefore, Sims Asia became a substantial
shareholder and hence a connected person of the Company
after 17 January 2012. The transactions contemplated under
the Sims Master Supply Agreement became continuing
connected transactions for the Company.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS SUBSEQUENT TO
THE REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(b)

In conjunction with the sale of an aggregate of 166,696,754
shares (“Shares”) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company by HWH Holdings Limited (‘HWH”) and Delco
Participation B.V. (“Delco”) to Sims on 17 January 2012, the
Company entered into the conditional subscription agreement
(the “Subscription Agreement”) with HWH, Delco and Sims
pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue to Delco,
HWH and Sims three-year 4% coupon convertible bonds in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$815,800,000 which
entitle the holder(s) thereof to subscribe for an aggregate
of 135,966,667 Shares at the initial conversion price of
HK$6.00 per Shares, with detachable warrants in registered
form to subscribe for an aggregate of 12,638,441 Shares
in an aggregate principal amount of HK$75,830,646 at the
initial exercise price of HK$6.00 per Share. HWH, Delco and
Sims are each a substantial shareholder of the Company and
hence a connected person of the Company and therefore the
transactions contemplated under the Subscription Agreement
constitute connected transactions for the Company.
Completion of the Subscription Agreement took place on 1
March 2012.

On 16 February 2012, the Company entered into the master
purchase agreement (the “First Master Purchase Agreement”)
with Sims Asia pursuant to which the relevant member(s)
of the Sims Asia Group may purchase from the relevant
member(s) of the Group certain products which comprise,
among others, copper scrap at prevailing market prices during
the term between 1 February 2012 and 31 May 2012. The
aggregate value of the transactions contemplated under the
First Master Purchase Agreement shall not exceed US$28
million (approximately HK$218.4 million) during such period.
Sims Asia is the intermediate holding company of Sims which
in turn holds 16% of the issued share capital of the Company.
Therefore, Sims Asia is a substantial shareholder and hence
a connected person of the Company. The transactions
contemplated under the First Master Purchase Agreement
therefore constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS SUBSEQUENT TO
THE REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

©)

On 21 March 2012, the Company entered into the
master supply agreement (the “De Leeuw Master Supply
Agreement”) with De Leeuw Metalen B.V. to document the
existing trading arrangements between the Group and De
Leeuw Metalen B.V. and its subsidiaries (together the “De
Leeuw Group”). Pursuant to the De Leeuw Master Supply
Agreement, the relevant member(s) of the Group may from
time to time purchase certain scrap metals from the relevant
member(s) of the De Leeuw Group at prevailing market prices
during the term between 1 January 2012 and 31 December
2014. The aggregate annual values of the transactions
contemplated under the De Leeuw Master Supply Agreement
for each of the financial years of the Company during the term
are capped at the following amounts:—

BENRAERZRFEBERS
(&)

©)

RZE—ZF=A=+—H KAQFH
Bl De Leeuw Metalen B.V. 3]37 - #tfE
% ([De Leeuw Z#tEWHZE ) - A
EMERANEEE De Leeuw Metalen
B.V. R EKMB A5 (47 [De Leeuw
£@)ENEBES LY - RIEDe
Leeuw X EHE - AEBMEEKE
N a| A IR {T T E T A De Leeuw &
ERBEKEARBEETESE &
RE-Z——F—A—HR =2=%
—POF+=—A=+—H1t ° De Leeuw
FHEBBZHETETZIRINPAZ
VRFEZFERFHRBRELRIT :

Relevant financial years of the Company Caps
AREEBETRFE LR
1 January 2012 — 31 December 2012 US$2 million

—E——F—-A—HE-E——-E+=-A=+—H

1 January 2013 — 31 December 2013
—E—=F—f—HE_ZET—=F+-_A=+—H

1 January 2014 — 31 December 2014
—E-NF-A—HE=ZZE—NF+-_A=+—H
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(approximately HK$15.6 million)
2,000,000 27t (49 15,600,000 AT )
US$3 million

(approximately HK$23.4 million)
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US$3 million

(approximately HK$23.4 million)
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EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING HEHERBERZGRIGEBRERS
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS SUBSEQUENT TO (#)

THE REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

() On 28 March 2012, the Company entered into the second () WKR-ZE—_-F=A=+/\H ARQF

master purchase agreement (the “Second Master Purchase Hi Sims Asia 7] 3K 15 E B ([X
Agreement”) with Sims Asia to renew the arrangements under 1 TREWZE]  UREhEZRER
the First Master Purchase Agreement after the expiry of the ZFHREEE M ITHEERZE Y
term of the First Master Purchase Agreement. The term of the TJF R ERBHEOIHRA=F
Second Master Purchase Agreement is for a period of three B2 ——FA—HEBE=-ZT—H
years between 1 June 2012 and 31 May 2015. The aggregate FRA=+—HIt - HIRA ' REE
annual values of the transactions contemplated under the BEAERE KO ETEEREETIRS
Second Master Purchase Agreement for each of the relevant FEBEEUTER

periods during the term are capped at the following amounts:—

Relevant periods Caps
FERAEAR FBR
1 June 2012 — 31 December 2012 US$37 million

ZHFANA—RAEE——-HF+=ZA=+—H (approximately HK$288.6 million)

37,000,000 7T
(#7288,600,000#7T,)

1 January 2013 — 31 December 2013 US$74 million
—E-—=F—A—HE-ZF—=F+-A=+—H (approximately HK$577.2 million)
74,000,000 27T

(#)577,200,000 7% 7T.)

1 January 2014 — 31 December 2014 US$81 million
—NFE—A—HE2_F—N&F+_-_A=+—H (approximately HK$631.8 million)

81,000,000 %7t

(#9631,800,00078 7T )

1 January 2015 — 31 May 2015 US$45 million
—E-hF—A—BEZE—RFRA=FT—H (approximately HK$351 million)
45,000,000 7T

(#9351,000,000 77T )

The Company confirmed that it has complied with all the disclosure  AARIER - LR FEEF EMHRAE

requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules ~ 14AERIFTEHERIE o
for the transactions stated above.

EERHEERRAT —T——FFR
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EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
the Report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fang Ankong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Qoijen (Vice President)

Mr. Gu Liyong (Vice President)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema (resigned on 17 January 2012)

Mr. Michael Charles Lion (appointed on 17 January 2012)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Loke Yu

Ms. Zhang Jingdong

Mr. Li Xikui

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.
Gu Liyong, Mr. Michael Charles Lion and Ms. Zhang Jingdong shall
retire from office, and being eligible offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contact with Mr. Fang
Ankong, Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen, Mr. Gu Liyong, Dr. Loke
Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Li Xikui on 24 June 2010 for a
period of three years. On 17 January 2012, the Company entered
into an appointment letter with Mr. Michael Charles Lion for a
term commencing from 17 January 2012 up to the date of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on 24 May 2012. On 27 March 2012, the Company entered into
another appointment letter with Mr. Michael Charles Lion for a term
of 3 years commencing from the conclusion of the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, subject to Mr. Michael
Charles Lion being re-elected as the Non-Executive Director of the
Company at the annual general meeting. None of the Directors of
the Company proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has any service contract with the Company
and or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries
or its holding companies was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
As at the financial year ended 31 December 2011, none of the
Directors of the Company has interests in businesses which
compete or are likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS
BY THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has entered into the Deed of Non-Competition
Undertaking dated 24 June 2010 with the controlling shareholders
of the Company namely, Mr. Fang Ankong, Mr. Stephanus Maria
van Qoijen, Mr. Herman Maurits de Leeuw, SVO Company B.V.,
HWH Holdings Limited, Stichting Beheer Aandelen H.P.L. Metals
and H.P.L Metals B.V. have jointly and severally undertakes, not to
compete with the Group.

In March 2012, the Company has received an annual declaration
from each of the controlling shareholders of the Company, in
respect of their respective compliance with the non-competition
undertakings during the financial year ended 31 December 2011.
The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the
said undertakings and are of the view that each of the controlling
shareholders of the Company and the Directors has complied with
their respective non-competition undertakings during the financial
year ended 31 December 2011.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has two share option schemes namely, the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
which were adopted on 23 June 2010.

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) on 23 June 2010 under which
the Company has conditionally granted options to certain Directors,
senior management and employees of the Group to purchase
shares of the Company with an exercise price equal to the offer price
as defined in the Prospectus.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ESERE (H)
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) IBRRERTE (&)
(@ Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) @ BXRXARABEEAERESTS

(%&)
The total number of shares in respect of which share options R-ZE——F+=-A=+—H - HEEEHLX
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 31 AR ERBERETEC R ENERESRE
December 2011 was 12,140,000 which represented approximately — #Ji%{H 4885 12,140,000 J% » £ABE R AR
1.17% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 AR -_ZE——F+-_A=+—HBETRELX
December 2011, Z117% °

As at 31 December 2011, details of the share option granted under R-ZE——F+=-A=+—0  BREHELIA

the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows: FIEE AT RE AR HERT B PTi HH MO BE AR iR 1B 10
T
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
to outstanding options as at
Exercise Exercisable optionsasat ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December
Date of Grant price per period 1 January 2011 options options options 2011 Approximate
(dd/mm/yyyy) share (ddmmiyy)  RZF-—-F  granted  exercised lpsed  WZZ-—F  percentage of
(Note 1) (HKS) (Note 2) -B-H during during duing TZA=F-R total number of
RiLAH =1 8 ATE theyer  theyear  theyear KT shareholdings
Grantees (B/B/%) ke (B/B/%) BRENE EREE  FRTRE  FRAN BRENE  (ARHRES
BERA (ByzE1) (#7) (M) RO®E BREHE BREHE BREHE RG®E  HHEMM

i Diectors %
Mr. Fang Ankong 28/06/2010 243 12/07/2011 - 12/07/2012 1,050,000 0 0 0 1,050,000 0.10078%
TRERE 2% “Z—tATZRE
~AZT=H “E-ZEtA+CR
13/07/2012 - 12/07/2013 1,060,000 0 0 0 1,060,000 0.10078%
ZE-CELATERE
“E-=Et+A+CR
13/07/2013 - 12/07/2014 1,400,000 0 0 0 1,400,000 0.13438%
“E-=FtBt=HE
“Z-RELATCA

3,500,000 0 0 0 3,500,000 0.33594%

Mr. Stephanus

Maria van Qoien 23/06/2010 243 12/07/2011 - 12/07/2012 300,000 0 0 0 300,000 0.02879%

Stephanus Meria “3-%% “E—FrATIER

wnOojents  AAZT=H “Z-“Ft+B+-H
13/07/2012 - 12/07/2013 300,000 0 0 0 300,000 0.02879%

ZZ-ZEtATERE

“E-=EtATZR
13/07/2013 - 12/07/2014 400,000 0 0 0 400,000 0.0383%%

2 i =

ZE-MELATCA
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEaRE (8
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BARRESTEI (&)
(@  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) @ BAXAFMEERERESTS
(#&)
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
to outstanding options as at
Exercise Exercisable optionsasat  Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December
Date of Grant price per period 1 January 2011 options options options 2011 Approximate
(dd/mm/yyyy) share (ddmmiyy)  RZF-—-F  ganted  exercised lpsed ~ RZZ-—F  percentage of
(Note 1) (HKS) (Note 2) -B-H during during duing +ZA=1-R total number of
RiLAH 5i i ATE theyer  theyear  theyear KT shareholdings
Grantses (B/B/%¥) ke (B/B/%) BRENE RN FRTR  FRAN BRENE  (RRHRES
BRA (P3E1) (#7) (z2) Ri%R BREHE BREHE BRELR Rtt#E  BHEAM
Mr. Gu Liyong 23/06/2010 243 12/07/2011 - 12/07/2012 127,500 0 0 0 127,500 0.01224%
EZERE “E-Ef “2—EtATZRE
~A=tT=R ZR-ZEFATCA
13/07/2012 - 12/07/2013 127,500 0 0 0 127,500 001224%
ZR-CELATEZRE
“F-ZREATCA
13/07/2013 - 12/07/2014 170,000 0 0 0 170,000 0.01632%
ZZ-CELATZRE
ZE-MELATCA
425,000 0 0 0 425,000 0.04080%
fi) Employess EE 23/06/2010 243 1200712011 -12/07/2012 2,164,500 0 1585000 0 579,500 0.05562%
CEEE CE-ErfTIRE
~AZT=R ZR-ZEEATCR
13/07/2012 - 12/07/2013 2,164,500 0 0 24,000 2,140,500 0.20645%
ZZ-ZEtATZREE
ZE-CELATCA
13/07/2013 - 12/07/2014 2,886,000 0 0 32,000 2,854,000 0.27393%
CE-CELATZRE
ZE-MELATZA
7,215,000 0 1585000 56,000 5,574,000 0.53500%
Total At 12,140,000 0 1,585,000 56000 10,499,000 1.00771%

EERHEERRAT —T——FFR
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EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(@)  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes:

(1) [t was the date when the Company offered to the grantees the
options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

2) Each of the grantees to whom options have been conditionally
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to
exercise:

(0} up to 30% of the total number of options granted at any
time during the period commencing from the date of the
first anniversary of the Listing Date to the date of the second
anniversary of the Listing Date (both days inclusive);

(ii) up to 30% of the total number of options granted at any time
during the period commencing from the date immediately
following the date of the second anniversary of the Listing
Date to the date of the third anniversary of the Listing Date
(both days inclusive); and

(iii) up to 40% of the total number of options granted, at
any time during the period commencing from the date
immediately following the date of the third anniversary of
the Listing Date to the date of the fourth anniversary of the
Listing Date (both days inclusive).
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EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)  Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (the
“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”) on 23 June 2010, which was
approved by the shareholders’ written resolutions, is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years. It is a share incentive scheme
and is established to recognize and acknowledge the contribution
that the eligible participants have or may have made to the Group.
Pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Board may,
at its discretion, offer to grant an option to any Director, employee,
advisor, consultant, distributor, contractor, supplier, customer,
agent, business partner, joint venture business partner, promoter,
service provider of any member of the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which share options may be
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 100,000,000 shares, representing 9.60% of the total
number of shares of the Company as at 31 December 2011.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme to eligible participants in any 12 months period up to
the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit
shall be subject to the approval of shareholders in a general meeting.

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not be less
than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant;
(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; or (i) the nominal value of a
Share.
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EEaRE (8
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BARRESTEI (&)
(b)  Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) b)) BRXARAEERBERESTS
(#&)
As at 31 December 2011, details of the share option granted under W-—Z——F+=-_HA=+—H BEHLID
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows: FEE R BRI S PTER KA AR IS I
T
Number of
Number of shares subject
Exercise shares subject to outstanding
price per to outstanding options as at
share Exercisable ~ optionsasat ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December
Date of Grant (HKS) period 1 January 2011 options options options 2011 Approximate
(dd/mm/yyyy) (Note2) (ddmmiyyyy)  R=B-—F  ganted  exercised lapsed ~ W=F--%  percentage of
(Note 1) =1 (Note 3) -A-A during during duing t=A=t-A total number of
REAH e 8 AT theyear  theyear  theyear KT shareholdings
Grantees (B/B/%) (%71) (8/B/%) BREHE  FREE  EROE O FRAN BREHE  (G20REN
BERA (ByzE1) (PzE2) GED) ROHE BREHE BREHE BREHE RG®E  HHEMM
(i Directors £%
Mr. Fang Ankong 03/05/2011 6.388  03/06/2012-03/05/2013 0 4,950,000 0 0 4,950,000 0.47511%
(Note 4) “F-F “2-"FRfZRE
HREsk () RA=A “Z-=FRA=H
04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 0 4950000 0 0 4,950,000 047511%
“Z-=ERANRE
“Z-mERA=A
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 0 6600000 0 0 6,600,000 0.63349%
“E-MERAMAZ
“Z-1FnA=A
0 16,500,000 0 0 16,500,000 1.58371%
Mr. Stephanus Marla ~ 03/05/2011 6.388  03/06/2012-03/05/2013 0 300000 0 0 300,000 0.02879%
vanOojen (Note )~ —F——% “E-"FRAZRE
Stephanus Maria RA=A “T-=ERA-H
van Qofjen st (fi34) 04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 0 300000 0 0 300,000 0.02879%
“E-=ERARAZ
“E-MERAZH
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 0 400000 0 0 400,000 0.03839%
“I-mERANAE
“E-RERA=A
0 1,000,000 0 0 1,000,000 0.09597%
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EEaRE (8
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) iBRRRECHEl ()
(o)  Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) b) BXARAZEERERETS
(#&)
Number of
Number of shares subject
Exercise shares subject to outstanding
price per to outstanding options as at
share Exercisable optionsasat  Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December
Date of Grant (HKS) period 1 January 2011 options options options 2011 Approximate
(d/mm/yyyy) (Note 2) (ddmmiyyyy)  R=B--F granted  exercised lapsed  W=F-—% percentage of
(Note 1) 58 (Note 3) -A-8 during during duing +=B=1-A total number of
RiLAH 4 i ATE  theyear  theyear  theyear AE  shareholdings
Grantees (B/B/%) (#7) (8/B/%) BREHE  FREE O EAOE O FRAN BREHE  G2HREN
REA iEa)) iE#) (Wz3) Ri%E BREHE BREHE ERENE RtHE  BHEAM
Mr. Gu Liyong 03/05/2011 6.388  03/06/2012-03/05/2013 0 262500 0 0 262,500 0.02520%
EZBRE ZEF “E-CFRACAE
RA=R Z5-%RA=A
04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 0 262500 0 0 262,500 0.02520%
“E-=ERARAZ
“E-MERAZH
04/05/2014 - 03/06/2015 0 350,000 0 0 350,000 0.03359%
“T-RERANAE
ZE-R%RA=A
0 875000 0 0 875,000 0.08399%
Mr. Ralph Sytze 03/05/2011 6.388  03/06/2012-03/05/2013 0 45,000 0 0 45,000 0.00432%
Yoema fesigned ~ —E——% “E-ZERA=RE
on 17 January #R=A ~2-ZF1R=A
2012) 04/05/2013 - 03/06/2014 0 45,000 0 0 45,000 0.00432%
Ralph Sytze Ybema %4 “E-ZEFRANAE
(R=F-=F “Z-RFRA=A
—A+tAED) 04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 0 60,000 0 0 60,000 0.00676%
“E-mERANAZ
“E-RERAZH
0 150,000 0 0 150,000 0.01440%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEaRE (8
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BRRERTE (8)
(b)  Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) b) BXARAEERERESTS
(#&)
Number of
Number of shares subject
Exercise shares subject to outstanding
price per to outstanding options as at
share Exercisable optionsasat ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December
Date of Grant (HKS) period 1 January 2011 options options options 2011 Approximate
(d/mm/yyyy) (Note 2) (ddmmiyyyy)  R=B--F granted  exercised lapsed  W=F-—% percentage of
(Note 1) 58 (Note 3) -A-8 during during duing +=B=1-A total number of
RiLAH o4 i ATE  theyear  theyear  theyear AE  shareholdings
Grantees (B/B/%) (#7) (8/B/%) BREHE  FREE O EROE O FRAN BREHE  G2HREN
BEA iEa)) (Mz2) (Wz3) Ri%E BREHE BREHE ERENE RtHE  BHEAM
Dr. Loke Yu 03/05/2011 6.388  03/06/2012-03/05/2013 0 45,000 0 0 45,000 0.00432%
EigmET 3% “3-ZFRA=RZ
RR=R Z5-%RA=R
04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 0 45,000 0 0 45,000 0.00432%
“E-=FRARAZ
“E-MERAZH
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 0 60,000 0 0 60,000 0.00676%
“T-mERANAE
“E-R%RA=A
0 150,000 0 0 150,000 0.01440%
Ms. Zhang Jingdong ~~ 03/05/2011 6.388  03/06/2012-03/05/2013 0 45,000 0 0 45,000 0.00432%
EGEL G Tk “T-ZERA=RE
RR=A —%-=F7A=A
04/05/2013 - 03/06/2014 0 45,000 0 0 45,000 0.00432%
“E-CERAMAZ
“Z-mFRA=A
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 0 60,000 0 0 60,000 0.00676%
“E-mERANAZ
“E-nERAZH
0 150,000 0 0 150,000 0.01440%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE ()
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BRRERTE (8)
(b)  Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) b) BXARAEERERESTS
(#&)
Number of
Number of shares subject
Exercise shares subject to outstanding
price per to outstanding options as at
share Exercisable optionsasat ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December
Date of Grant (HKS) period 1 January 2011 options options options 2011 Approximate
(d/mm/yyyy) (Note 2) (ddmmiyyyy)  R=B--F granted  exercised lapsed  W=F-—% percentage of
(Note 1) 58 (Note 3) -A-8 during during duing +=A=1-A total number of
RiLAH o4 i ATE  theyear  theyer  theyear AE  shareholdings
Grantees (B/B/%) (#7) (8/B/%) BREHE  FREE O EAOE O FRAN BREHE  G2HREN
REA (1) iE) (Wz3) Ri%E BREHE BREHE ERENE RtHE  BHEAM
Mr. Li Xikui 03/05/2011 6.388  03/06/2012-03/05/2013 0 45,000 0 0 45,000 0.00432%
SHERE 3% “3-ZFRA=RZ
RRA=R Z5-=¥RA=R
04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 0 45,000 0 0 45,000 0.00432%
ZE-CERAMAE
“E-MERAZH
04/05/2014 - 03/06/2015 0 60,000 0 0 60,000 0.00676%
“I-mERANAE
ZE-R%RA=A
0 150,000 0 0 150,000 0.01440%
Totd A% 0 18,975,000 0 0 18,975,000 1.82127%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b)  Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

BRERTE (&)

b) BRFEERBRESTS

(#&)
Number of
Number of shares subject
shares subject to outstanding
to outstanding options as at
Exercise Exercisable optionsasat  Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December
Date of Grant price per period 1 January 2011 options options options 2011 Approximate
(d/mm/yyyy) share (ddmmiyyyy)  R=B--F granted  exercised lapsed  W=F-—% percentage of
(Note 1) (HKS) (Note 3) -A-8 during during duing +=B=1-A total number of
RiLAH 5i i ATE  theyear  theyear  theyear AE  shareholdings
Grantees (B/B/%) i (8/B/%) BREHE  FREE O EAOE O FRAN BREHE  G2EREN
BEA GiEa)) (A7) (Wz3) Ri%E BREHE BREHE EREA RtHE  BHEAM
fi) Employess EZ 22/09/2010 338 22/09/2011 - 22/09/2012 1,131,000 0 60,500 15,000 1,055,500 0.10131%
Z2-%% “2-ENAZTIRE
AA=tTZR ZF-ZENACTCA
23/09/2012 - 22/09/2013 1,131,000 0 0 15,000 1,116,000 0.10712%
ZBCEAACTERE
“E-ZEAACTCH
23/09/2013 - 22/09/2014 1,508,000 0 0 20,000 1,488,000 0.14282%
ZE-ZENACTZAE
“E-MEAAZTZE
3,770,000 0 60,500 50,000 3,659,500 0.35125%
03/05/2011 6.388  03/06/2012-08/05/2013 0 3756,000 0 183,000 3,573,000 0.34295%
-k (Note 2) “E-"FRAZRE
EA=R (PsE2) “Z-=FRA=H
04/05/2013 - 03/06/2014 0 3,756,000 0 183,000 3,573,000 0.34295%
“E-CERAMAZ
“Z-mFRA=A
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 0 5,008,000 0 244,000 4,764,000 045726%
“E-mERANAZ
“E-nERAZH
0 12,520,000 0 610,000 11,910,000 1.14316%
Total A3 3,770,000 12,520,000 60,500 660,000 16,569,500 1.49441%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

Notes:

1)

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

[t was the date when the Company offered to the grantees the
options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The closing price of the shares immediately before the date on which
the options were granted during the year was HK$5.97.

Each of the grantees to whom options have been conditionally
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to
exercise:

0} up to 30% of the total number of options granted at any time
during the period commencing from the first anniversary of
the Date of Grant to the date of the second anniversary of
the Date of Grant (both days inclusive);

(ii) up to 30% of the total number of options granted at any time
during the period commencing from the date immediately
following the second anniversary of the Date of Grant to the
date of the third anniversary of the Date of Grant (both days
inclusive); and

(iii) up to 40% of the total number of options granted, at
any time during the period commencing from the date
immediately following the third anniversary of the Date of
Grant to the date of the fourth anniversary of the Date of
Grant (both days inclusive).

The 16,500,000 share options and 1,000,000 share options were
granted to each of Mr. Fang and Mr. van Ooijen on 3 May 2011
subject to the vesting condition that the net profit of the Group for
the financial year of the Company ended 31 December 2011 is equal
to or exceeds 130% of the net profit of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2010. As the aforesaid condition has
not been met and therefore the share options granted to Mr. Fang
and Mr. van Ooijen in 2011 have not been duly vested and are not
exercisable. Notwithstanding this, these share options should be
taken into account for the purpose of determining whether the limits
under Rule 17.04(1) of the Listing Rules are exceeded.

Saved as disclosed as above, no options were granted, cancelled
or lapsed as at 31 December 2011. The consideration paid by each
grantee for each grant of option is HK$1.00.

BRERTE (&)

b) BRAREERERETS
(%)

GEE

M W RRDRREERAFEERBRER
BB AR EREN B -

@ FARMN EEBEEER B MU h
BR5.978TT -

® RIEFERAFBEERBREBESAR
R TREENEARA - AT

0 BLmAREXAREBRER—
BEEZABEE_RAFERIL(R
FBEEMAEN) - BER{TEME
BRI AR TG
30%

(i) B R SEREEERERS
TREZHABHBREFE=RBFE
BIL(BEEEMREAN) - BER
T8 P8 8 A M AR B AR R B 1 42
BAEEB30% &

(iii BEMABERGEERERS
THAFEAZAREFNBAFEE
BiE(BIEERMAEN) @ B
1T PR AR AR R BB AR R AR 10 48
BB 40% °

(4) R-ZE——FERA=HAFEE Kvan
Ooijen st & % Al1#% F 16,500,000 % B %
1 % 1,000,000 AR FE A4+ 2R AR A A
BHE-Z——F+=-A=+—HIEARH
FHRFEAEELFHBEEN L BarEER
HE-_Z-—ZE+-_A=+—HItWK
FREAFE 180% B R BIEMH - mp Lt
IR AR ER - At - BT 5% Kvan
Ooijen Jc B g AR #E I SR IF X 558 2 1 0]
TE - BEWMY - BT BSBE ETRA
F17.0401) 16-EF - DFERT MR SRR IE -

BEXPEEEN R-E——%+_A
=t BUEBRERL - FEHIR - &
RN REZRIE R ER P R(E R 1.008
7TE o
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of

the Company and Its Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2011, the Directors and chief executives of the
Company and their associates had the following interests in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies, or were required to be entered in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO:

E§ﬁ$

EENTBTHRABRARRRAE
REEE &I - BB ME
H s MOk E

R-ZEB——F+ZA=1+—0 ARAES
REBITBRABRBEENBHEAREDE R
HREAE (T& A(ES PSRN ([7#
F RS ]) B XV IG5 ) R RAERE R
DEIRIEE S KBGO EXVENET &8
1K (BEREESRPEEDEBIECE
SR BEEMAR ) NRIE ET AR ESE
TEHR %mﬁ EFRIAANE AR R NEE
AR ZMBRAR ([BZA])  sBRE
BHE N HEEDISE 352 (EFFR AR AR
Zif e

Number of
underlying
shares Approximate
(in respect of percentage
share options)  of total number
Number of KRG  of shareholdings
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest issued shares (EERRERRE) B2 IEN
Y e 5/ RRtE BRTRHHBE A BHEI
Mr. Fang Ankong Interest in controlled corporation 425,016,000 - 40.79%
ok bt IEEHEE 2 B (Note 1)
(PzE1)
Beneficial owner 8,626,000 20,000,000 2.75%
ERBEBA (Note 2)
GEY
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 - 38.87%
Stephanus Maria van Qoijen ¢4 ASHEHIAR 2% (Note 3)
(Ft5E3)
Beneficial owner - 2,000,000 0.19%
ExBAA (Note 4)
(HizE4)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company and Its Associated Corporation (continued)

EERE (&)
EENTBTHRABRARRRAE
BB AR - HRERD K&
HfEs Mok ()

Number of
underlying
shares Approximate
(in respect of percentage
share options)  of total number
Number of HEMRA  of shareholdings
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest issued shares (EERRRRE) B2 IERN
Y e 5/ EuME BRTRHHBE B BHEI
Mr. Gu Liyong Beneficial owner - 1,300,000 0.12%
BZELE BREEA (Note 5)
(PzE5)
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema Beneficial owner - 150,000 0.01%
(resigned on 17 EaEAA (Note 6)
January 2012) (FizE6)
Ralph Sytze Ybema L4
(RZZ—-%—A
T BEfT)
Dr. Loke Yu Beneficial owner - 150,000 0.01%
BEgmEL ERHEAA (Note 7)
(P3E7)
Ms. Zhang Jingdong Beneficial owner - 150,000 0.01%
BEER T EHBAA (Note 8)
(Htzx8)
Mr. Li Xikui Beneficial owner - 150,000 0.01%
FHERE EnfAA (Note 9)
(Ftzr9)

BEEAHEERRAT —T——FFR



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company and Its Associated Corporation (continued)

365,016,000 shares are directly held by HWH Holdings Limited
(“HWH?”) which is wholly owned by Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”).
Green Elite Limited (“Green Elite”) holds 60,000,000 shares in the
Company and is equally owned by HWH and Delco Participation
B.V. (“Delco”). Therefore, Mr. Fang is deemed to have interest of
425,016,000 shares in the Company.

Mr. Fang was granted options under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme to subscribe for 3,500,000 shares of the Company and
options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe
for 16,500,000 shares of the Company. However, as of the Latest
Practicable Date, the vesting condition attached to the options
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme has not been met
and the options have not been duly vested and are not exercisable.

345,000,000 shares are directly held by Delco. Green Elite holds
60,000,000 shares in the Company and is equally owned by HWH
and Delco. Delco is equally owned by SVO Company B.V. (“SVO”)
(which is wholly owned by Mr. Stephanus Maria van Qoijen (“Mr. van
Ooijen”)) and H.P.L. Metals B.V. (“HPL”) (which is wholly owned by
Stichting Beheer Aandelen H.P.L. Metals, a foundation for the sole
benefit of Mr. Herman Maurits de Leeuw). Therefore, Mr. van Ooijen
is deemed to have interest of 405,000,000 shares in the Company.

Mr. van Ooijen was granted options under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme to subscribe for 1,000,000 shares of the Company and
options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe
for 1,000,000 shares of the Company. However, as of the Latest
Practicable Date, the vesting condition attached to the options
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme has not been met
and the options have not been duly vested and are not exercisable.

Mr. Gu Liyong was granted option under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for
1,300,000 shares of the Company.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2011

EERE (&)
EERTETHRAEREARRAR
REEE &I - BB ME
HfEs Mok ()

GEE

\
/

1, 365,016,000 B A% 15 5 2222 54 ([ 5 5%
& |) 2 & %A 2 HWH Holdings Limited
(THWH]) E## 4 - Green Elite Limited
([Green Elite]) #§%5 7< A 760,000,000
R%A&1D + 1 Green Elite § HWH & Delco
Participation B.V. ([ Delco |) P19 A o
It 7 5 A AR B HE B AN A 5] 425,016,000
B 2 e o

2. FEERBERRAMEE A BRETE

TEIR T I AR 1 R AE 2N A /) 3,500,000 % %
17 WRIREE R AFREELBREE
TR T EERAEREE N2 516,500,000 A% %
5o R REEBAITEE - IREBRAR
FBERERETSIR TERENEBIK
A RER - BERRAEN R E 8 T A
1T{E o

3. 345,000,000 f&f% 17 A Delco H 45 A °

Green Elite #7824~ & 60,000,000 % %
3 + T Green Elite F§ HWH K Delco “F 5
A ° Delco A Stephanus Maria van Ooijen
g4 (fvan Ooijene £ ) 2 EH A 2
SVO Company B.V.([SVO]) K Stichting
Beheer Aandelen H.P.L. Metals 2 & A
Z H.P.L. Metals B.V. (THPL) (fg Herman
Maurits de Leeuw e BEHERNES)
A o Eithvan Ooijen 454 #iR A
AR F) 405,000,000 BEALD 2 12 -

4. van Ooijen%t £ R B & X A EE 7

BRESZERETERERBEAQF
1,000,000 A% J& 15+ LA R AR 15 & X A B2
EREREA SRR TREREREARAR
1,000,000 f& Bz 1 o AT - R&&AI1TH
B REBEEA AR ERERETEIET
BERSME A BRI R I AR AR - BERRAEND R
EABBRTAIITE -

5. BFBEERBERAMEEABIELT

BIRERAREERBRESSERETE
& FERREE AN /A 5] 1,300,000 B AR ©



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of

the Company and Its Associated Corporation (continued)
Notes: (continued)

6. Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema was granted option under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme to subscribe for 150,000 shares of the
Company.

7. Dr. Loke Yu was granted option under the Post-IPO Share Option

Scheme to subscribe for 150,000 shares of the Company.

8. Ms. Zhang Jingdong was granted option under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme to subscribe for 150,000 shares of the Company.

9. Mr. Li Xikui was granted option under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme to subscribe for 150,000 shares of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company or any of their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the

Company and Its Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2011, other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company had interests in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO, the following
persons had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

*Eﬁ:ﬂ)}i (&)
EENTBTHRABRARRRAE

REEE &I - BB ME

Mgz SRR ()

BeE - (%)

6. Ralph Sytze Ybema %E*Ef%//?’&ﬁrﬁ?é
EREREFZER FEREREAR
150,000 A& A&7

7. BB LIREE N ARE SR ERET
EER T R AETRIE AN A B 150,000 A A%

,T/'\ °

8. EWRLZTREE A AREEEERET
B T HERR SR I8 2K 2 7] 150,000 AR A%

,T/\ o

9. FHEREREERAFEEREAERT
B T RE R R B AN A B] 150,000 i

,f/'\ °

B EXFEEN RZF——F+= A
=t—B  ARAEFRTIETHRABRE
FHIBE B ABLEBIE AN A B S (AT AE A B
Bty ~ B REFT HREESIRE -

FERERAR T K E AR LB/

Bt - MBI REZR D X
=
RoS——F - A=t—A  RiEHE

K BB 1515 336 IR AT & M B refft h Arad
BOARREFTRTIZTHRABNRN KE
BRI SN+ AT AR B0 SAERA AR
Tﬁ*%&ﬁﬂ?&fé S5 MEEIRPIZEXVERE 2 &

DERNE KB EDIE 336 AT E
E’Ué‘aﬂﬂﬂ#aﬂﬁ BRI NNCIVE B 3e
ZRERBORRE

ST



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the

EERE (&)
TERRNARRNERBEE N
Bt ~ MR M AE 5 A o SOk

Company and Its Associated Corporation (continued) B(57)
Number of Approximate
shares of the percentage of
Company held shareholdings
Name Capacity/Nature of Interest FiAATE BOFR
i 51/ ERHE ROEA BOL
HWH Holdings Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner, interest in controlled corporation 425,016,000 (1) 40.79%
(FizE1) BERHEAA  RXELEE R
Delco Participation B.V. (Note 2) Beneficial owner, interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 (L) 38.87%
GEY) EHHAA  REEHEE #H
Herman Maurits de Leeuw (Note 2) Interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 (1) 38.87%
(Fizt2) RREHZER 2R
H.P.L. Metals B.V. (Note 2) Interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 (L) 38.87%
GEY) el A o
Stichting Beheer Aandelen H.P.L. Interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 (L) 38.87%
Metals (Note 2) RIEEE 2 e
(Pi3E2)
SVO Company B.V. (Note 2) Interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 (L) 38.87%
GEY) el
Green Elite Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 60,000,000 (L) 5.76%
(HizE3) ERERA

The Letter “L” denotes a long position.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company and Its Associated Corporation (continued)

Notes:

365,016,000 shares are directly held by HWH Holdings Limited
(“HWH?") which is wholly owned by Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”).
Green Elite Limited (“Green Elite”) holds 60,000,000 shares in the
Company and is equally owned by HWH and Delco Participation B.V.
(“Delco”).

345,000,000 shares are directly held by Delco. Green Elite holds
60,000,000 shares in the Company and is equally owned by HWH
and Delco. Delco is equally owned by SVO Company B.V. (“SVO”)
(which is wholly owned by Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen (“Mr.
van Ooijen”)) and H.P.L. Metals B.V. (“HPL”) (which is wholly owned
by Stichting Beheer Aandelen H.P.L. Metals, a foundation for the
sole benefit of Mr. Herman Maurits de Leeuw). Therefore, Delco, Mr.
Herman Maurits de Leeuw, HPL, Stichting Beheer Aandelen H.P.L.
Metals and SVO are deemed to have interest of 405,000,000 shares
in the Company.

60,000,000 shares are directly held by Green Elite and Green Elite is
equally owned by HWH and Delco.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and chief executives of
the Company are not aware that there is any party other than
the substantial shareholders who, as at 31 December 2011, had
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company, which were required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the

SFO.

EERE (&)
TERRNARRNERBEE N
Bt ~ MR M AE 5 A o SOk

2 (')
BisE
1. 365,016,000 DT L= 4 ([ F %k

4 |) 2 & %A 2 HWH Holdings Limited
(THWHJ) BE##55 ° Green Elite Limited
([Green Elite]) #3745 7/2 560,000,000 A% %
53+ T Green Elite F§ HWH & Delco Participation
B.V. ([Delco ) F9% A -

2. 345,000,000 A% i% 17 3 Delco B 5 A ©
Green Elite &% 78 A & 60,000,000 A% A%
3 > T Green Elite B8 HWH X Delco 5%k
& ° Delco H Stephanus Maria van Qoijen
S ([van Ooijen st ) & A 2 SVO
Company B.V.([SVO]) K Stichting Beheer
Aandelen H.P.L. Metals 2 & & 2 H.P.L.
Metals B.V.([HPLJ) (/4 Herman Maurits
de Leeuw LA BEHAENES) ¥
%A o At - Delco » Herman Maurits
de Leeuw L4 + HPL - Stichting Beheer
Aandelen H.P.L. Metals }& SVO #45 &
B 7R2 7] 405,000,000 &% 0 2 #Ewm o

3. Green Elite g HWH & Delco F¥# A -«
Green Elite E #1575 60,000,000 f& %5 °

BREXHBEEN R_FT——F+_H
=t+—B ARREZFRIBTHABL T
B EMAL (EBRERRRIN RAR BB
Ko KB R RAn o G 78 o I B 16k 1) 58 336 fi&
PiFERE LMk c EEIOAR
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (A

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company or the controlling shareholder of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the senior management of the Group based on their performance,
experience, and prevailing industry practices so as to retain
competent employees.

The emolument of the Directors is decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and with the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float throughout the financial year ended
31 December 2011.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are
set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

Morison Heng resigned as one of the joint auditors of the Group on
27 September 2010 and Deliotte Touche Tohmatsu remains as the
sole auditor of the Group.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 H&E-_ZT——F+_-_A=1+—HItFENE
December 2011 have been audited by Deliotte Touche Tohmatsu. & B HHzx B EE o =R H @ :tE1TE
A resolution for the re-appointment of Deliotte Touche Tohmatsu as 4% A& &) ¥ FEE IR EAE A2 ig 2 81
the Company’s auditor is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual &%) ¢ RA=RF &5HE01T AR D FIZEETH

general meeting. SR o

For and on behalf of the Board REEFSY

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited BaXittEBERAR

Fang Ankong e

Chairman FRE

Hong Kong, 27 March, 2012 B% —E——F=-A=++H

ST



Corporate Governance Report

A
ERERARE

INTRODUCTION

The Company recognizes the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a
high standard of corporate governance and leading the Group to
attain better results and improve our image with effective corporate
governance procedures.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company has
adopted, applied and complied with the code provisions as set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) except on
the deviations set out in the paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer” below.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company
have not been segregated as required by the provision A.2.1 of the Code.

Mr. Fang Ankong is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. With extensive experience in the mixed metal scrap
recycling business, Mr. Fang is responsible for the Group’s overall
strategic planning and the management of our business. The
Board of Directors (the “Directors”) of the Company (the “Board”)
considers that vesting the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer in the same person is beneficial to the business prospects and
management of the Group. The balance of power and authority is
ensured by the operation of the senior management and the Board,
which comprise experienced and high caliber individuals. The Board
currently comprises three Executive Directors (including Mr. Fang),
one Non-Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors and therefore has a fairly strong independence element in its
composition.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the guidelines
for the Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company. Upon
specific enquiries of all the Directors, each of them confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2011 (the “Relevant
Period”) in relation to their securities dealings, if any.

The Model Code has extended to be applicable to senior
management and relevant employees who likely possesses the non-
public price-sensitive information of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (B)

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group’s business, strategic decisions
and performances and comprises seven Directors, including three
Executive Directors namely Mr. Fang Ankong, Mr. Stephanus
Maria van Ooijen and Mr. Gu Liyong, one Non-Executive Director
namely Mr. Michael Charles Lion (appointed on 17 January 2012 in
replacement of Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema who resigned on 17 January
2012) and three Independent Non-Executive Directors namely Ms.
Zhang Jingdong, Dr. Loke Yu and Mr. Li Xikui. The management
is delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for
the day-to-day operation and management of the Group under
the Board’s instruction. In addition, the Board has also established
various Board committees and has delegated various responsibilities
to the Board committees including the Executive Committee
(the “Executive Committee”), the Audit Committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the Nomination Committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), the Pricing Committee (the “Pricing Committee”) and
the Monitoring Committee (the “Monitoring Committee”) (together,
the “Board Committees”). All the Board Committees perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference
and further details of these committees are set out hereunder. The
Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and the Group’s
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2011 were approved
in the board meetings of the Company.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material relationships among members of
the Board.

The Non-Executive Director is appointed for a term of 3 years.

All of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed
for a term of three years. None of them holds any other offices
in the Company or any of its subsidiaries or is interested in any
shares of the Company. The Company has received from each
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors a confirmation of his
independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors are independent.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

RER®E (F)

THE BOARD (continued)

3¢ )

The Board has convened six meetings during the financial year #HZE-_Z——F+_-_A=+—RHIBKE
ended 31 December 2011 with the attendance of each Director as [& » @ XA NAD% » KBEHEND

follows: o
No. Meetings attended/ Attendance

Name of Directors No. of Meetings held Rate
EEUS HEgHREE BITeRHE i FEE 28
Executive Directors HITES
Fang Ankong (Chairman) F ez (7)) 6/6 100%
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen 6/6 100%
Gu Liyong REEEH 6/6 100%
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Ralph Sytze Ybema Ralph Sytze Ybema

(resigned on 17 January 2012) (RZT—ZF—HT+HEABHE) 6/6 100%
Independent BAEHITES

Non-Executive Directors
Loke Yu B AR 6/6 100%
Li Xikui =5z 6/6 100%
Zhang Jingdong SRR 6/6 100%
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE HITEES

The Board has established the Executive Committee with terms EFEERIHITEEE © WAIAEEBE
of reference, which is responsible for the management and #[E - HIITZE AR ARAMEE RITH
administration of the business of the Company and any matters 7% * ARARAIAEEHBIEH IR EF
which are within the ordinary course of the Company’s business H ' XEFEEFILEE  REAKMEH
under the control and supervision of the Board and in accordance ~ BRAFIBIESLEPTREITE °

with the provisions of the Terms of Reference of Chiho-Tiande Group

Limited.

The Executive Committee consists of Mr. Fang Ankong, Mr. B{TZE@HRARFRMITERTHILZERE -
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen and Mr. Gu Liyong, the Executive  Stephanus Maria van Ooijen S5 4= K BEZ= B 7t
Directors of the Company, and is chaired by Mr. Fang Ankong. HHEK  BRAREFRERER

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2011



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (B)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in June 2010 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee include reviewing and supervising the financial
reporting process and internal control procedures of the Group and
nominating and monitoring external auditors. The Audit Committee
consists of three Independent Non-Executive Directors, Dr. Loke
Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Li Xikui and is chaired by Dr. Loke
Yu. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the chairman
of the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate professional and
accounting qualifications.

The Audit Committee has convened two meetings during the
financial year ended 31 December 2011 with the attendance of each
member as follows:

BEREES

ARBE IR R I8+ e E < AR
—E-TERNARYEREZES  XAIRE
HMBERE - ERREENTERE AR
A MEEEASENMERER kA RREE
BF o ANRIRS RERINEZEED - ERE
BERR=2BIYIFNTES  AEENE
T BMRZEIERFHELE - EEKEL
REZZEGER - BTA LMRANE3.21
FRE  BERZEEIFARBEEEXENS
AHER -

HE2-_Z——F+-_A=+—HILtHHKF
B ERReeHBRMAeE  SKEL
JEWT

No. of Meetings attended/ Attendance
Name of Committee members No. of Meetings held Rate
ZESHBERE LESBRME BITERHE HE=
Loke Yu (Chairman) =2 NE Iy 2/2 100%
Li Xikui EXVES 2/2 100%
Zhang Jingdong ZHCR 2/2 100%

The first meeting was held on 10 March 2011 to review the audited
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2010 of the
Company. The second meeting was held to review the results for
the six months ended 30 June 2011 of the Company on 17 August
2011.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in June 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
and determining on behalf of the Board specific remuneration
packages and conditions of employment for the Directors and
senior management and evaluating and making recommendations
on employee benefit arrangements. The Remuneration Committee
consists of Mr. Fang Ankong and Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen,
Executive Directors, and Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong and Mr.
Li Xikui, Independent Non-Executive Directors and is chaired by Mr.
Fang Ankong.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (B)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued) FMEEE (E)
The Remuneration Committee has convened three meetings during #HZE-Z——F+ - A=+—RH LB KE
the financial year ended 31 December 2011 with the attendance of [ @ HZEEeHBE - KeH  SKE L

each member as follows: B

No. of Meetings attended/ Attendance
Name of Committee members No. of Meetings held Rate
ZESHBERE HESBRME BITERHE HE=
Executive Directors HITES
Fang Ankong (Chairman) F ez (7)) 3/3 100%
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen 3/3 100%
Independent BYFHITES

Non-Executive Directors

Loke Yu B AR 3/3 100%
Li Xikui FiHE 3/3 100%
Zhang Jingdong EWE 3/3 100%

The grant of share options to the Directors and senior management #HEZER@ZP B AN _T——FHA=
on 3 May 2011, the Directors’ and senior managements’ HREEZEZERSREIEAEREBERE UK
remuneration of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 BB AEBEZE NS R EEAEHE T

were approved by the Remuneration Committee in the meetings. ——F+-_A=Z+—BLFENHHFEE -
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REEES

The Company established the Nomination Committee in June 2010 ZN/A &) 2 8RR | 11 48 B 8%110 Al =1 IR
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set Z—ZE—ZFNAKVIRREE S » WiIHAE
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. E S E o

The duties of the Committee include: AEEEMBERIE

1. to formulate nomination policy for consideration of the Board 1. H®ITRZKEHESTSEE  EHE
and implement the nomination policy laid down by the Board; FERENRBECE

2. to review the structure, size and composition (including 2. ZA EFRTEESHEE - AZM

the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least K (BIERREE - MBAMLERRSE) -
annually and make recommendations on any proposed WHERARAERARIREmMBEES
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s SELNEEIRL EE

corporate strategy;
3. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board 3. HKHABEEKRMHOATHKAEZEEEK

members and select or make recommendations to the Board B AEEZORASEHRTES:
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (B)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

4. 1o assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors, having regard to the requirements under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited;

5. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors in particular the chairman and the chief executive;
and

6.  todo any such things to enable the Committee to discharge its
powers and functions conferred on it by the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Fang Ankong and Mr.
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen, Executive Directors, and Dr. Loke Yu,
Ms. Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Li Xikui, Independent Non-Executive
Directors and is chaired by Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2011, no Nomination
Committee meeting was held.

PRICING COMMITTEE

The Company established the Pricing Committee in June 2010
to review and determine the offer and selling prices of the
Group’s physical stock as well as the Group’s hedging positions
requirements on a daily basis; to enhance the risk management
of commodity price fluctuations and to ensure an effective risk
monitoring system. The Pricing Committee comprises Mr. Fang
Ankong, Mr. Xu Jialiang, Mr. Zhu Zhonghui, Mr. Gan Jun, Ms. Chan
Tung Tung and Mr. Chow Wan Hoi Paul.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2011, the Pricing
Committee held twelve regular meetings in which all members
of the committee attended, to review the monthly report of the
previous month and make recommendation to the Directors of the
Company’s pricing and hedging policies.

MONITORING COMMITTEE

The Company established the Monitoring Committee in June 2010
to closely monitor the use of net proceeds of the Global Offering are
applied over the timeline specified and to ensure the purchase of raw
materials is for production usage and not for speculative purposes.
The Monitoring Committee comprises Mr. Fang Ankong, Mr. Gu
Liyong, Ms. Chan Tung Tung and Mr. Chow Wan Hoi Paul.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (B)

MONITORING COMMITTEE (continued)

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2011, the Monitoring
Committee held two meetings in which all members of the
committee attended.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the reporting period, the remunerations paid or payable to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in respect of its audit services and non-
audit services are as follows:

EEZEE (&)
HE-_Z——F+_A=1+—HILFE2
FEBZESRTMAEE  2BEEY

RESDHERH -

B AT &

REFHHPA - ABEZRE LIEEZRIGE
SEN TS « FERAEETETHVEN S 10
T

HK$
BT
Audit services EIZRRT 2,100,000
Non-audit services IEENZ RS 550,000

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cash flow for that period. The Directors consider that
the financial statements have been prepared in conformity with all
appropriate accounting standards and requirements and reflect
amounts that are based on the best estimates and reasonable,
informed and prudent judgment of the Board and the management.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the financial statements of the Company on
a going concern basis.

The statements of the auditors of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on page 62 of
this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the maintenance
of an effective system of internal control. The Company leverages
on the expertise offered by internal and external professionals to
develop its internal control system which includes a well established
corporate structure and an organization with clearly defined lines of
responsibility and authority.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (B)

INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

The Company has set up an Internal Control Department and an
internal control review will be performed by the Internal Control
Department annually. The internal control are reviewed and
assessed on an on-going basis by the Executive Directors, and will
be further reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the
Audit Committee and the Board.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The management of the Company believes that effective and
proper investor relations play a vital role in creating shareholders’
value, enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing
market confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a stringent
internal control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely
disclosure of relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant
laws and regulations in order to ensure all shareholders have equal
access to information. To strive for effective communication and
transparency of the Company, the personnel in charge continued
having frequent contacts with shareholders, potential investors and
market participants, through various channels such as interview,
presentation, internet, telephone and email.

In addition, we have during the year organized numerous site visits
to our facilities with several fund managers and equity market
analysts. Through these site visits, the visitors managed to have a
better understanding of the Group’s operations and the opportunity
to know more about the Group’s development strategy.

We will continue to establish communication opportunity in order
to enhance investors’ understanding of and confidence in the
Company.

Information Disclosure

The Company discloses information in compliance with the securities
regulations of the Stock Exchange, and publishes periodic reports
and announcements to the public in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations. Our primary focus is to ensure information
disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby
enabling shareholders, investors as well as the public, to make
rational and informed decisions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 RET RS

Deloitte.
I

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHIHO-TIANDE GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chiho-
Tiande Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 64 to 163,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZRBET®RE (&)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2011, and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BZE—T——F+ - A=1+—HIFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
NOTES HK$°000 HK$’000
FtaE FHERT FAT
Revenue WS 7 9,815,522 5,931,589
Cost of sales SHERA 8 (9,362,935) (5,361,645)
Gross profit EF 452,587 569,944
Other income H A 9 22,345 11,548
Other gains and losses Efth s B8 10 2,051 55,001
Distribution and selling expenses DR HERS (31,303) (12,805)
Administrative expenses TE R (143,466) (69,718)
Other expenses HibfAx - (24,849)
Finance costs BF TSR AR 11 (97,755) (47,087)
Profit before tax R AD& A 204,459 482,034
Income tax expense et = 14 (88,208) (129,478)
Profit for the year F A ) 12 116,251 352,556
Other comprehensive income Hh ZERA
Exchange difference arising on BREXEWME
translation to presentation currency EERELEFE 51,433 33,954
Fair value loss on AL ESREE
available-for-sale financial assets NEEBE (6,653) -
Total comprehensive FREAWALTE
income for the year 161,031 386,510
Profit for the year attributable to: AR & B FE AR
Owners of the Company RAREE A 152,087 352,798
Non-controlling interests BB (35,836) (242)
116,251 352,556
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)
FmEzEHWER (B
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

2011 2010
—T——fF —E-TF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt e FHExT FAT
Total comprehensive income LA & 75 FEME
for the year attributable to: FARZABA :
Owners of the Company RARIEB A 195,930 386,455
Non-controlling interests R (34,899) 55
161,031 386,510
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings per share Bk
— basic — &K 16 0.15 0.41
— diluted —#E 16 0.15 0.41
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEEBBRRER

At 31 December 2011 R=ZE——F+=-_HA=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —ET—TF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FBT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y -~ R MR 17 319,967 203,735
Prepaid lease payments e 18 185,968 36,435
Available-for-sale investment AHEEERE 19 19,060 =
Deposits paid for acquisition of W% - W=
property, plant and equipment PE GRS 22,070 7,587
Deferred tax asset TR E B 29 23,594 =
570,659 247,757
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 3,219,271 2,303,425
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EH A EWGRIA 22 813,397 411,647
Bills receivables JEW R IR 23 33,676 14,629
Prepaid lease payments FEHEE 18 5,244 890
Derivative financial instruments PTESmTA 24 37,021 =
Tax recoverable AR EIFIE 44,330 =
Pledged bank deposits BRI 25 127,004 351,684
Restricted bank deposits Z IR EIERITIFE R 25 71,158 =
Bank balances and cash RITHER LIRS 25 392,762 251,335
4,743,863 3,333,610
Current liabilities nEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAERFIE 26 519,552 188,237
Bills payables NS 27 - 149,150
Amount due to non-controlling interests & FE#E A% #E 28 218 21 - 23,976
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmMITA 24 39,765 205
Tax payable JESTEE TR 9,100 50,747
Bank borrowings BITEE 28 2,651,697 1,496,672
3,220,114 1,908,987
Net current assets mENEEFRE 1,523,749 1,424,623
Total assets less current liabilities BERERREBEE 2,094,408 1,672,380
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

e MBIRR R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #j

£ ——

FH—RA=+—HIFE

2011 2010
S —E—TF
NOTES HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt FExT FBTT
Capital and reserves R R #E
Share capital [N 30 10,419 10,000
Share premium and reserves B0 i (B M (it 2,036,203 1,601,801
Equity attributable to KARHEE AEEER
owners of the Company 2,046,622 1,611,801
Non-controlling interests eI A 21 17,398 34,880
Total equity RS 2,064,020 1,646,681
Non-current liability FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BIETIE A E 29 30,388 25,699
2,094,408 1,672,380

The consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to 163 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27
March 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Fang Ankong
DIRECTOR

Mr. Gu Liyong
DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE—ZF——

FH—A=+—RHIFE

Attibutable to equty holders of the Company
KAARaREAER

Foreign Attributable
Capital ~~ Share Statutory  Enferprise  Investment~ currency fonon-
Shae  Share redemption  opfion  Capitdl  general  expansion  revaluation  translation Accumulated controling
copitdl  premim  resene  TeSeve  fesene  resene find  reseve  resene  profs  Subdofd  inferest Total
ETEE  ERE R 0RER REER OMMER SHR
BE ROEE  BE 0 BR BIRR  BR 0 &2 BB BR ZMEW 0w EERE &
HES000  HKSOD  HKS000  HKSO0  HKS00  HKS00D HKSO00 HKSOO0 HKSO00 HKSOO0 HKSOOO  HKSOO0  HKS000
Thr Thr T Thr TEr TEr TEr TEr TR TR TEm TR TEn
(ote)  (roted)  (notell
(W) (k) (i)
At January 2010 R-%-%
-A-A - - - - 65 RIB NI - RPN 0464 418098 - 4180%
Proft for the year Emai| = = = = - = = = - 32798 352798 (42) 362566
Echngediference  AEREH
alshgontransatonto ~ EEEEA
presentatoncureney  EFEE - - - - - - - - BT - e 07 3%
Toloompetensie M2
income for the year hAeE - - = = - - - - 6T 3278 38645 5 36510
Trnslrofresenes el - - - - - BT B - - (ogn - -
Captalsafion of REEH
shargholders' loans ERl - - - - 08708 - - - - - 28708 - 08
Caplasatonissue s 7500 - - - (150) - - - - - - - -
sieoingwshaes  EHR
(Note 30 (rote ) (BEES0(H=E) 2500 605,000 - - - - - - - - 607500 - G070
Costofssue of new shares. EARAAA - (26460 - - - - - - - - (26460 - (2640
Cplalconrbution fom ~ SEARER T4
non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - - - UL UBS
Recogntionofequiy: ~~ BMRIERER
sotfecsharebased MR BERAH
payments - - - 250 - - - - - - 250 - 250
A3t December 2010 A-F-5E
TZAZT-B 10000 578540 - 2500 2270 6768 67,623 - 76217 586478 1611801 34880 1,646,681
Proftfor the year ERER - = - - - - - - - 10 19087 (H8%) 116,251
Echngedference  BEHZHER
aishgontransationto ~ EENEREE
presentation currency - - - - - - - - 504% - 504% %7 5143
Fair valeloss on avaleble- T ESR
for-sales fnencil assets ~ EEDTREE - - - - - - - 6659 - - 669 - 6659
Toidcomprehensie  EAZENAEE
income for the year - - - - - - - b6 50496 192087 19590 (34899 161,081
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
FEEREER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

Attibutable to equty holders of the Company
KATERHEARE

Foreign Attrioutable

Capital ~~ Share Statutory  Enterprise  Investment — currency fonon-

Shae  Share recemption  opfion  Capitd  general  expansion  revaluation  translation Accumulated controling
copfdl  premium resene reSene  resee  esenve find  reseve  reseve  proffis  Subofel  interest Total

EERD  EhRE -k 0¥ER REER OMMER S
BE ROEE  BE 0 BR AIRR  BR 0 22 BR  BR ZMRM 0w EEEE &
HKS000  HKSO0  HKS000  HKSO0  HKS00 HKS00D HKSO00 HKSOO0  HKSO00 HKSOOD HKSOOO  HKSOO0  HKS000
Tin i Th Th A TR TR TAn TR i TR TR TR
note)  (rotel)  (notell
(k) (H) ()

Trngferofresenes FfEER - - - - - oUW Am - - [a4pnd - - -
Candiidendpdd  CERE . - - - - - - - - BMY @MY - B
Soip dhidend recognised KRS

s distibution {EA

(Note 30 (note ) (30 (Mstn)) 2 110 - - - - - - - 119 - - -

s oinewshaes BT

(Note 30 (rote i) (RES0(MEi)) 600 39,400 - - - - - - =
Transacton costs Bl

doutabetoissie  RAHA

0f new shares - (10513 - - - - - - - - (10513 - (10513
Acquiston of adctonal  JKE—TEHER TR

erestinasubsilay ~ E9HiER

Note 41 ot (ka1 (Roti)) - - - - - - - - - m %) @
Caplalconrbution fom 3 AR ER 2
non-contoling merests (1)

396,000 - 36000

o

N2 - - - - - - : - - - XX
Share options exercsed A {EERTRfE

(Note 30 (ote ) GiERIGRD) 7 400 - ) - - - - - B 40 - A
Lapseof shareoptons BB - - - - - - - - m - - -

Recogriton ofequity- ~~ BEsRURiEGE

sotfecsharebased  RRGIA

paments(Note 3 EzAR(NEY) - - - A5 - - - - - - A i
Shares repurchasedand  RABRERetH

cancelld Note 30 (T30 (ko)

(note vi) 2000 (@3740) 20 - - - - - - (2000 (83%6) - (83,946)

A3 December 2011 RoF——%
t2AZt-B 10419 sa9t 0 27 W70 WUN5 %5 B 16713 B56¢ 204662 17398 206400

ESREEFRAE




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
mERBREBR (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

notes:

)

(i)

The capital reserve at 1 January 2010 represents the difference
between the nominal value of the aggregate share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company upon a group
reorganisation in 2008 and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange.

On 12 July 2010, the Company capitalised shareholders’ loans
of HK$223,708,000 as capital reserve. On the same date, the
Company issued and allotted an aggregate of 749,999,900 shares
of HK$0.01 each in the Company out of the capital reserve to its
shareholders, credited as fully paid at par.

Statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund represent
the appropriation of 10% of profit after tax determined based on the
relevant accounting rules and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) as required by the Articles of Association of
the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The appropriation may cease to
apply if the balance of the statutory general reserve and enterprise
expansion fund has reached 50% of the PRC subsidiaries’ registered
capital.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BZE—T——F+ - A=1+—HIFE
2011 2010
—E--% —T-T%
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Pk TAR TR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Profit for the year FAEF 204,459 482,034
Adjustments for: HTZIEZHE
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BIESEH 909 867
Depreciation of property, M - BERRERE
plant and equipment 24,250 12,103
Finance costs IHBRRA 89,690 42,588
Recognition (reversal) of impairment loss B 5 R E A
on trade and other receivables BRRERER (&) 452 (660)
Impairment loss recognised on property, ME - BB REE
plant and equipment BERRARESE 1,009 -
Interest income FEWA (16,701) (6,583)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BFE kS ENESE
plant and equipment 126 58
Net foreign exchange gains B 7 Wi 5 58 (79,081) (28,498)
Share-based payment expense PRI BERAR 2 HX 21,571 2,500
Write down of inventories FEHH 97,557 -
Operating cash flows before HEESEHR]
movements in working capital g EBRENE 344,331 504,509
Increase in bills receivables FE RN (19,673) (13,212)
Decrease (increase) in derivative FTESBMTERD (Em)
financial instruments 2,548 (346)
Increase in inventories FEEM (1,112,001) (1,074,907)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 R fth FEMGRIEE AN (419,823) (212,754)
(Decrease) increase in amount UG R A 2
due to non-controlling interest FIECRD) (23,976) 23,976
(Decrease) increase in bills payables EZE (R Em (142,766) 30,700
Increase in trade and other payables ECPE AN 329,718 40,996
Cash used in operations LEmMARE (1,041,642) (701,038)
Interest paid ERFIS (80,036) (38,134)
Tax paid ERHIE (187,007) (120,923)
NET CASH USED IN RERBMARSFE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,308,685) (860,095)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

RERTRER (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #j

£ ——

FH—RA=+—HIFE

2011 2010
“E—-f —T-T%
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
BitzE FHET THL
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZD
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—ERERF 37 - 3,982
Placement of pledged bank deposits BFABERBETER (382,943) (202,140)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RRBERRTER 592,569 101,043
Deposit for property, plant and equipment mE - BERERE RS (14,808) -
Placement of restricted bank deposits BAZBHHETER (288,904) =
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits REE IR #8177 5K 217,746 5,745
Interest received B S 16,701 5,407
Payment for prepaid lease payments BIIESTR (153,148) =
Proceeds from sales of property, HENE - BER
plant and equipment REBAEFE 491 437
Purchases of available-for-sale investments BERNERSE (25,713) =
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BENE  BELEE (132,725) (77,853)
Repayment from related parties BERER - 371
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES & EBIFTAR &8 (170,734) (163,008)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES HEEY
Dividend paid ERRE (88,449) -
Expense on issue of new shares BTG (10,513) (26,460)
Capital constribution from IR &
non-controlling interests 22,367 34,825
Purchase of additional interests in NN
subsidiaries BIMER (4,779) -
Issue of share capital BETIRA 396,000 607,500
Net proceeds from issue of shares BRTEBREET
through exercise of share options W FT S A S5 4,057 =
New bank borrowings raised EHRTER 8,627,178 4,117,631
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBRTER (7,243,197) (3,425,196)
Repayment to related parties HiERER - (105,920)
Repurchases of shares AR (83,946) -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEBMERETE 1,618,718 1,202,380
NET INCREASE IN CASH BekHe%E
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B R REEM 139,299 179,277
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FENHE RREFEER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 251,335 69,428
EFFECT OF FOREIGN MNEEXZBNTE
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 2,128 2,630
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRES R FEER
AT END OF THE YEAR
represented by bank balances and cash (BHRTHERRRR) 392,762 251,335
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE—_ET——F+_A=+—HILFE

1. GENERAL

The Company is incorporated and registered as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. The shares of the Company
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) with effect from 12 July 2010 (“the Listing”). The
Company’s registered office is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and its main place of business is located at Taizhou Industrial Zone
of Metal Recycling Fengjiang, Lugiao, Taizhou, Zhejiang, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 41.

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is
Renminbi (“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“‘HK$”) for the convenience of the
shareholders as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2010

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) Related Party Disclosures

Amendments to HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement
HK(FRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs had no material
effect on the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and/or disclosures set out in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. EAHFITIRKEITIEBMERE
A ([BFEMEREER ) (E)

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Disclosures-Transfers of
Financial Assets'

Disclosures-Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities?

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS

9 and Transition Disclosures®

Financial Instruments®
Consolidated Financial
Statements?
Joint Arrangements?
Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities?
Fair Value Measurement?
Presentation of ltems of
Other Comprehensive Income®
Deferred Tax-Recovery
of Underlying Assets*
Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?®

Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures?
Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities®
Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November 2009)
introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as revised in
November 2010) includes requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

° Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently measured
at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In
addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

° The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities relates
to the presentation of changes in the fair value of a financial
liability (designated as at fair value through profit or loss)
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability.
Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that
are designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or
loss is presented in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will affect the
measurement and classification of the Group’s available for sale
investment but may not affect the Group’s other financial assets and
financial liabilities.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations will
have no material impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance (effective from 1 January 2010 onwards).

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the proportionate share of net assets attributable
to the non-controlling interests and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values at the
acquisition date, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangement of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another Standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all the following
conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZEZ=F——F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land (classified as finance
leases) and buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes other than
properties under construction, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than properties under
construction, less their residual value over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. The aggregate
benefits of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZEZ=F——F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of Group’s entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. When current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZEZ=F——F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and cost necessary to make
the sales.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments, other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL,
of which interest income is included in net gain or losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets classified as financial assets at FVTPL
are derivatives that are not designated and effective as hedging
instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the
other gains and losses line item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, bills receivables, pledged bank
deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL or loans
and receivables.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the investment have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation

Financial assets such as trade receivables that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the respective credit periods, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit and loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance account.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period
in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE=ZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instrument issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other
than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL, of which the interest
expense is included in net gains or losses.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
The Group’s financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are derivatives
that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss includes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, bills
payables, amount due to non-controlling interests and bank
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group’s derivative financial instruments include commodity
futures, provisional pricing arrangements and foreign currency
forwards contracts.

Contracts to buy or sell a non-financial item at a future date that
can be settled net in cash are accounted for as derivatives unless
they were entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of
the receipt of the non-finance item in accordance with the entity’s
expected purchase, sale or usage requirement.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as
a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in
profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Derivatives of the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting thus
they are deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial
liabilities held for trading. Changes in fair values of such derivatives
are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated
as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not
closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions
Share options granted by the Company to employees of the

Group in an equity-settled share-based payment arrangement

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated profits.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Write down on inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventories listing on a
category-by-category basis at the end of reporting period, and
assesses whether the cost of the finished products will exceed their
net realisable value. Management estimates the net realisable value
for such inventories based primarily on the latest resale value and
quoted prices on applicable commodity exchanges. If the market
price of inventories are to decline, additional write down may be
required. The Group’s inventories are stated at lower of costs and
net realisable values in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the end of reporting period.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
When there is indication that an item of the property, plant and
equipment has suffered an impairment loss, management of the
Group takes into consideration of the estimation of its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amounts calculation requires the Company
to estimate higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use
expected to arise from the property, plant and equipment and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.
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5. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remained unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
bank borrowings disclosed in Note 28, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising capital, various reserves and accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. The directors of the Company also balance the overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share repurchases as well as the issue of new debt
or the redemption of existing debt. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31
December 2011.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
6a. Categories of financial instruments

6. €@ ITA
6a. SRt T HAMTELE

2011 2010
—E——F —ET—TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT T
Financial assets ERMEE
Derivative financial instruments PTESmTA 37,021 =
Loans and receivables (including ER R EUGIE (B
cash and cash equivalents) ReMREEMEEE) 935,298 741,635
Available-for-sale investments BEHERE 19,060 -
Financial liabilities SRas
Derivative financial instruments PTESMTA 39,765 205
Amortised cost BESERCAR 3,131,250 1,819,588

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, bills receivables, derivative financial asset, pledged
bank deposits, restricted bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, available-for-sale investment, trade and other payables,
bills payables, amount due to non-controlling interests, derivative
financial liability and bank borrowings. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

() Currency risk
The Group has foreign currency sales, purchases, amounts due
from non-controlling interests, trade and other receivables, bills
receivables, derivative financial asset, pledged bank deposits,
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and cash, available-
for-sale investment, trade and other payables, bills payables,
derivative financial liability and bank borrowings, which expose
the Group to market risk arising from changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management closely
monitors its foreign currency risk exposure and considers any
foreign currency forward contracts should the need arise.

6b. ®REREIE B IZ MR
AEENTESRTAAEL S KK
20E - EKERE - HTESMEE  BERE
AER ZRHRTEX  BOTEBKRRE
& BEHERE  EHRHEMENZE -
FERTZE - BT IEERE SRR - HTES R
BERBITEE - ZZSRTASBENEYS
FIsERE - BEZSSRTANRRBED
SRR (EBER  FERBRREEEE
%) EERBRERBESER - AREZ
EEBMETHRERN T - EBETE
R EE PR SR S R DA TR S B S SR R
Ha i o

TSR

() EFER
AEEABINERE - BUFZERER
KB BEHREMEKKE  BKRE
B TESMEE  CEMRTER
XRBIRITER - RITEBRRELS 7
FHERE  BHREMEMNKIE - &
NEE - TEeRaERRTEEM@
HINEERBHTROMHER - AE
B3R B I RSN SR IRSR - AT - B IR
EBINEm s g R - W anE 2
ZREMINEEREN -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6 LRI A (8)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. £ RlEBEIE B RIKE (&)
(continued)
Market risk (continued) miEEE (&)
(i) Currency risk (continued) () EEE (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and REERPLEER A&EB BT
monetary liabilities denominated in HK$, RMB, United States ARE - Zx((Ex]) BBt ((BIT])
dollars (“USD”) and Euro (‘EUR”) at the end of the reporting STENEEEE  BE¥aEMNEREEEN
period are as follows: T
2011 2010
—E——F —=-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Monetary assets BEREE
HK$ BT 4,850 10,928
RVB AR 183,193 29,343
usD ETT 93,660 32,146
EUR BT 1,205 43,087
Monetary liabilities E¥aE
HK$ BT 8,451 107,249
usD ETT 1,924,896 902,360
EUR BT 60,405 36,716
Sensitivity analysis BURRE DT
The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currencies of HKS, REEBXTZERAAB T AR - XK
RMB, USD and EUR when such currencies are different from the BTl IS B E RN EEmE
functional currency of the relevant group entities. HZEEEHRRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZEZ=F——F+=-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)
A 5% sensitivity rate is used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel because it represents
management’s assessment of the possible change in HKS$, US$
and EUR against RMB rate. On the basis of the above assets
and liabilities denominated in HKS$, RMB, USD and EUR at the
end of the reporting period, and assuming all other variables
remain unchanged, a 5% weakening of the HK$, weakening
of the USD and strengthening of EUR against RMB and
strengthening of RMB against USD (functional currency of the
relevant group entities) would give rise to fluctuations in post-tax
profit for the year in the following magnitude, and vice versa:

6 ﬁmﬂIE(na)

i

misEkE (&)
() E¥ER (&)

BREDM ()
REARADREEA B 2RIMNERR
RHE I 5% MBURRE L X - TR R
REBEMEET  RTABUTHA
REERATREHIRAKBI LK - HEp0 E
AREHRMEERAUBT - AR% - £
TEBTFAENEERAE  REEM
BYITE  ABTEARBRE T
AARBREMBTEAARERARE
RET(HRASEERNIEER) HE
& 5% FTEF NELRBR RN KB RO IE
BT - RZIR

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET T

Increase (decrease) in profit: SmAE AN GRid) -

Monetary assets and liabilities EBEERAER

HK$ weakening against RMB BT HARKEE 150 4,056
USD weakening against RMB ETRARERE 71,005 33,804
EUR strengthening against RMB BT R ARETE (2,472) 266
RMB strengthening against USD AR K ETTHHE 7,648 1,225

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is not
necessarily representative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Other than HK$, RMB, USD and EUR, the Group does not have
any other major exposure to foreign currency risk.

%E@é’ 5 BRFREREERRFEAR

[5/\/«

B SRR 0 AT W SRR BB SINE R

BB - AR - T REUTIN 0 AEEL
EEHE A E BINEERR o

EERHEERRAT —T——FFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZEZ=F——F+=-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to
the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on bank
deposits and variable-rate bank borrowings. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
LIBOR arising from the Group’s USD denominated borrowings.

The Group considers the variable-rate bank balances are within
short maturity period, and the fluctuation in interest rate and the
cash flow interest rate risk arising from the bank balances are
insignificant.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its
fixed-rate pledged bank deposits and bank borrowings. It is the
Group’s policy to maintain a majority of borrowings at fixed rate
of interest so as to reduce the cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate hedging
contracts. Management monitors the Group’s related interest
rate exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure when the need arises.

Sensitivity analysis

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary liabilities which
carried variable interest rates at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

6 ERTA (&)

b. £RUEREIE B IR LK (B)

,H]]H

misEkE (&)
(i) /=

AEBARITERIZERITEENE
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ?—&@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁium%ﬂfJ—L
B o AEBMBESRFIEZRREESS
REARKERETAHENERS BN E
FERITRIZE R S HIRE -

AEERRFEE/ERINERRE -
AR E) b FERTT AR E MR R
) 2% [ B R - EL A

AEBENAFENEEREEEERD
BERRITERRBITEERR - AEEH
MBRBBABLOEERTRERE
B OREReREFERR

$’§Ij’rﬁﬂj€cﬂﬂ¥§”ﬁ¢/f\ #J o
EESY ﬁ**ﬁilﬁﬁﬁﬂrﬂ“w
EAJAﬁﬁf%FéﬁMﬂ%Kﬁ“JTHI‘W °

BREDM
REBHEER - WEENRFEHR
SEEKaEREELT

2011 2010

—E——F — T T

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FH&T

Liabilities afE 582,370 =

The sensitivity analysis below determined based on the exposure
to risk of interest rate changes for variable-rate bank borrowings
at the end of the reporting period and management considered
that such exposure for variable-rate bank deposits was minimal
as the amount involved was not significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZEZ=F——F+=-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6 ST A (&)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

b. RUEREIE B 17 SRR (4

i

)

Market risk (continued) miEEE (&)
(i) Interest rate risk (continued) (i) FIEEE (&)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

A 100 basis points increase or decrease was used when
reporting interest risk internally to key management personnel
because it represented management’s assessment of the
possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit

BREE D (8)

LA100 B EZ M A M A2 ER A EE
EIEABE2HAKER - RRNILAEE
¥ [ 51 R ] R B E Y FTAS o

fisg R == 3E 0, R A 100 (A2 AT &
AR - RIS BFARBTR L

for the year would decrease/increase by the following magnitude: WA EIEEER T
2011 2010
—E——F T -FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THT
Decrease/increase in profit iR DR Yl 4,378 =
(i) Other price risk (i) BAERE

At 31 December 2011, the Group was exposed to price
risk through its investment in available-for-sale investment,
aluminium, copper and zinc future contracts and its provisional
pricing arrangements embedded in sales contracts.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below determined based on the exposure
to price risk of available for sale listed equity investment,
aluminium, copper and zinc future contracts and the provisional
pricing arrangements embedded in sales contract of copper
scrap at the end of reporting period. If the price of available-
for-sale listed equity investment, aluminium, copper and zinc
future contracts and the input of quoted copper future price for

R=F——F+-A=+—A  4%H
RRART Pl &0 - BRENEA
40 R BB B 2 BT 2 (AR LR -

BREDM
THBRESMDHERS 2HRHEER
AHfHE ETRAKRE fﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁ}%%’ié
,%’ULX&EWME B FmEH M ERER

o A E EHRARE - ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ
H&ﬁ%/\f@fi’]f &R BLERES EE R PHEE
FTRESAER S EE L7 TR 5% - Al
& B ARR B 5 A S B b AR A AR

the valuation of provisional pricing arrangements had been 5% R REE IR
higher/lower, the Group’s post-tax profit or other comprehensive
income for the year would increase/decrease by the following
magnitude:
2011 2010
—E-——F —E—TF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FER AT
Increase/decrease in profit s A3 A0, R A 43,690 =
Increase/decrease in investment WEEHFHED
revaluation reserve AT 953 =

EERHEERRAT —T——FFR m
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZEZ=F——F+=-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Market risk (continued)
(i) Other price risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is not
necessarily representative of the inherent other price risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 26% and 70% of
total trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively at 31 December 2011.
The five largest customers have good repayment history and credit
quality with reference to the track record of these customers under
internal assessment by the Group.

There was no significant concentration of credit risk as the Group’s
financial assets spread over a number of counterparties and
customers as at 31 December 2010.

Liquidity risk
The objective of the Group is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of bank
borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of non-derivative
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the
end of the reporting period.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2011

6 EHQIE (nﬂ)
b. AR EIE B R RBEK (&)

misEkE (&)
(i) BLERER (&)
HRE S (B)
BEEBRS  HRNFREREERRE

ARER  RZBEREINTIHREEH
HAb ERER -

FERR
R-F——F+_A=1—H AEERAXR
FHEEBTEETMHEER XV BEBEERN R

RNIEERREBEE RS M BRNRZ518
RO EREMEEREE -

SREEERR AEEEEEZX —BEH

FEBRE &HH%*”KEIZ—MSZ@ KIA - FER
AT @ IR R TR R R E R IR R o
- ARBEEARAEE 2 EERREE

PR -

R 57 RBERF BTN BEERY
ZRIT - WRBEEZEERBAR -

AEEERPEERR  REASKR _T——
Ft-_A=1+— E%ﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬂﬁklﬁﬁ’\]%%&
70% DRI KEARBHNEATF MAKRE
P - REAKEHAKRETFPERARF G
% REEFPBRARUFENRCENEEE
o

R-F—TF+-A=+—0  FEENE
EERBESEXSHFRES - KL m
FE2 (E BB -

/)ILE ﬁﬁﬂh
AEBEMBEEZARSHERSE B
1TEE 2 MR -

ERR

TRAVAEBBEITE SR B BHRIRE L
FH - JIRBRAKE AL BN RN RT B
HHIITESRABERMRRSRE - HH
ERERTE *EEE@@%EE'H&%?L&H;@%Zi
SRIES:: i



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

In addition, the following table detailed the Group’s liquidity analysis
for its derivative financial liabilities. The table was drawn up based
on the undiscounted contractual net cash outflows on derivative
liabilities that settle on a net basis, and the undiscounted gross
(inflows) and outflows on those derivatives that required gross
settlement. The liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative financial
liabilities were prepared based on the contractual maturities as
the management considered that the contractual maturities were
essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows of
derivatives.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

On

Weighted ~ demand or
average less than
interest rate 1 month

mE  BREXS
PR —EANA

6. £ T A (/&)
6b. & Bl AR EE B R RBER (4

iy

)

/

nBEERE (&)

AN - TRENAKETES BB ENRE
Bent  BRARBEREENITERERRY
B (RAZ) MRt E - ARNEEERS
BHNFHHERITERERSRENKHEE
HEE  #AKETESRAENRBES
DI DHEREHFH MRS -

M E T RFF R 15

Total

carrying

value at the

Total  end ofthe

1-3 3 months undiscounted reporting

months to1year  cash flows period
2HS

ZEAZE XWMBERE  £EAZ

—Z=f8A - RESE RELE

% HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
% TERL TER TER TER TER
At 31 December 2011 —2—-F
TZA=t-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities  FEfT4£ &REE
Trade and other payables 25 REMENTE - 479,553 - - 479,553 479,553
Bank borrowings BITEE
- fixed rate -E& 4,61 652,051 800,017 645,955 2,098,023 2,069,327
- variable rate —28 529 570,082 13,639 - 583,721 582,370
1,701,686 813,656 645,955 3,161,297 3,131,250
Derivatives-net settlement TETIA-ZEFE
Aluminium, copper and A E A1)
zinc future contracts - 17,350 17,346 - 34,696 34,696
Provisional pricing arrangements  Fafs e B L5 - - - 5,069 5,069 5,069
17,350 17,346 5,069 39,765 39,765

EERHEERRAT —T——FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6. EM I A (&)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. £ BhEM B IR B 12 REE (&)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBEL R (&)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) TENE S N TR R R 2515 (4E)
Total
carrying
On value at the
Weighted ~ demand or Total  endofthe
average less than 1-3 3'months undiscounted reporting
interest rate 1 month months to1year  cashflows period
255
mE Rk =R AEREe  H#EAZ
IHfx  —@AKR —Z2=fEA & MELTE FmeE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TR T TAT TAT TAT
At 31 December 2010 “B-EF
t=A=t-8
Non-derivative financial liabiliies ~ FEfT4EERERE
Trade and other payables 25 RAMENTIE - 153,169 20,597 - 173,766 173,766
Bills payables ENZE
~ non-interest bearing — TR - - 47,228 - 47,228 47,228
- fixed rate —EL 2.09 102,010 - - 102,010 101,922
Bank borrowings RITEE
- fixed rate ) 3:85 111,729 635,415 767,181 1,514,325 1,496,672
366,908 703,240 767,181 1,837,329 1,819,588
Derivatives-gross settlement fETR-#EEE
Foreign currency forward contracts  JN&REIA4)
- inflow —MA - - - (84,084) (84,084) (84,084)
- outflow =it - - - 84,289 84,289 84,289
- - 205 205 205
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)

Bank borrowings and bills payables with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less than 1 month” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2011,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank
borrowings and bills payables amounted to HK$918,461,000
(2010: HK$101,922,000). Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that the
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank borrowings will
be repaid within one to three years (2010: within one year) after
the reporting date respectively in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements and the facility letter
respectively. At that time, the aggregate principal and interest cash
outflows amounting to HK$748,931,000 and HK$209,372,000 will
be repaid within one year and one to three years respectively (2010:
HK$103,178,000).

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

6c. Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group
were determined as follows:

° the fair value of derivative financial instruments (excluded
foreign currency forward contracts) and available-for-sale
investments traded on active markets were determined with
reference to quoted market prices; and

° the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments but only included foreign
currency forward contracts) were determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

6. T A (&)
6b. SREMEIEEENEE (8)

FEBEEEE (&)

B A2 RFER R 15 (&)
BIREREEZBITEEREMERTA
EFREEE DMz [ E ket — @A AR
FEBEEN - R=FE—F+=A=1+—
H ZZROTEERENEEZRMBAR
% 48 %E 018,461,000/ T ( — B — T F :
101,922,000 7T ) © &5t M A& B 2 B 1%
R5% - EERERITTAIREBITHEERE
EABSKERFER - ER48(E - ZERITE
ERRERARRE—FE=FAN(ZZE—=F
F: —FN)RIBEE B LR E 3 FTE
FEEERBHEE - @R A& MFIBRE
i H A& 748,931,000 7% 7T & 209,372,000 7%
T WA RRA—FEAR=ZFRNEE( T —
T : 103,178,000/ 7T) °

W ENRZEHERINHEHEEREE
ZIAE RS - FHIETTAETBREZR
TAZSBRIGHBREY -

6c. AE
AEECREENERBEZATEEZ TS
FREE :

. RNERRSMERXZNITETR T A
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. HteRmEERSHAE(TREDN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6c¢. Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provided an analysis of financial instruments
that were measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 2 based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements were those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements were those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

As at 31 December 2011

6. EFIT A (&)
6c. A F1E (48)
MRS B REZNAFETE

TR EXERBIZA T ET 2SR T
Bzath  BAFENABERIEESD B2
e

. —RAVEFERRAREEXAE
RIRERTISRIRE CREHAR)FE -

. AN HER ERREERABENE
&% (BMER) Mz (AR EREE)
ABE2 8 (— R EARERIN)

e

R=-Z——F+=-HA=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Total
— & R st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET FHET
Available-for-sale AHHESREE
financial assets
Listed equity securities B RS 19,060 - 19,060
Financial assets at FVTPL R AFEFT AEBEZNEHEE
Derivative financial asset PTEEMEE 37,021 - 37,021
Financial liabilities at FVTPL R AP EFFABZNEHERS
Derivative financial liability TEEmAasE 34,696 5,069 39,765
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6c¢. Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position (continued)

As at 31 December 2010

6. EFIT A (&)
6c. A F1E (48)
NEEHBRARERN A ETE (E)

R-ZE—ZF+_-_HA=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Total
— i Bt
HK$’00 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAIT FHT AT
Financial liabilities at FVTPL ZAFE:FAEBZNEHMA s
Derivative financial liability PTESRAE - 205 205

There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year
ended 31 December 2011, nor during the year ended 31 December
2010.

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue represents the amount received and receivable
for the sales of metal scrap, net of sales related taxes, during the
year.

Operating and reportable segments are identified on the basis of
internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) in order
to allocate resources to segments and to assess their performance.
The executive directors of the Company are identified as the CODM
and they regularly review the internal report on gross profit derived
from different business activities and different products to assess
performance and allocate resources of the Group.

HE-T——F+-A=+—RALEERE
E-F-TFET-A=+—ALEE &
8= R 2 R RS -

7. W R 2 R E R
AEBYSIEFRHERETE 2 W REKR
SR - HBRHEERETIA

EERAI 2R MO D EERGFELBR
RE(Z2ERY ] TNENFRAKER
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WITESELEERD AR  EREHER
EREBAYREBRERMSEMNOARER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

The Group is mainly engaged in the principal business of metal
recycling, involving the recycling of mixed metal scrap into copper
scrap, steel scrap, aluminium scrap, iron scrap and other metal
scrap. The Group is also engaged in the foundry business which
involves the production and sale of aluminium-alloy ingots and
copper rod and wire, and wholesales business which involves
trading of other metal scrap without processing. The operating and
reportable segments are identified based on major products under
three categories of business activities:

(i) metal recycling business (including sales of copper scrap,
steel scrap, aluminium scrap, iron scrap and other metal
scrap);

(ii) foundry business (including sales of aluminium-alloy ingots
and copper rod and wire); and

(iii) wholesales business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. W&8&RoEER (&)
(continued)

Segment revenues and segment results D EBES R D B AR
An analysis of the Group’s segment revenues and segment results LA RN AARNEBIRERS L] 2HH 22 DB D
by operating and reportable segment is as below. IS R D EBEE DT ©
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE-—E——F+=-B=+—HIEE
Wholesales
Metal recycling business Foundry business business
ERBLER BEEY HEEY
QOther
Other Aluminium- metal scrap
Copper Steel  Aluminium Iron metal alloy Copperrod  without
scrap scrap scrap scrap scrap ingots ~ and wire processing Elimination Total
At e EftRm

BE B® BE BE BEN B2 RER IReE  B§ 4
HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000

Tén TEn TEr TEr TEn TEr TEn TEr TER  TEn

REVENUE W&
External sales ohEpsE 5711958 1,882,559 262272 346,142 67421 312468 716,803 525,899 - 9815522
Inter-segment sales AHEHE 15,613 51260 194,592 - 134 8,005 - 4ATT834 (4,747,238) -
Total segment revenue: DL 5727571 1933819 446864 346142 67555 320473 716,803 5003533 (4,747,238 9,815,522
Segment proft il 190470 24740 15,716 13,631 (2,298 12945 64972 196123 (63,712 452,587
Other income =00 0N 22,345
Othergainsandlosses ~ EtERER 2,051
Distrioution and AHREHE

seling expenses 53 (31,309)
Administrative expenses 1M (143 466)
Finance costs SRR (97,755)
Proft before fax Frbuniad) 204,459
Income tax expense FEHAR (88,208)
Profit for the year ERaf] 116,251
Write down of inventories  @ER D ShFI Ay

incuced i seqment proft FE&HE w673 Tesy (138 B (3066) (18159 . - @)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE=ZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment revenues and segment results (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Metal recycling business

7. Rk o EER (&)

DERU IS M D SRR (4B
HE-_ZT—ZTF+_A=1—HILFE

Wholesales
Foundlry business business

SRAEER FEER e

Other

Other Aluminium- metal scrap

Copper Steel  Aluminium metal aloy Copperrod — without
scrap scrap scrap scrap ingots  andwire processing  Elimination Total

Ef e Hfpkm
B s s EER B R IEGE Faf i Bt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
Thr TEr  Thr Tt Thr ThAr  TEr T ThEn

REVENUE Y

Fxternal sales IEHE 3576085 1025843 46085 235334 37168 311592 523714 175768 - 5931589
Inter-seqment sales DHEHE 11901 35313 263,860 32 35303 - 1413551 (1,760,260) -
Totel segmentrevenue  AEME#AE 3587986 1061156 309045 235334 37500 346895 523,714 1589,319 (1,760,260) 5931589

Segment prof Aar
Other income AfplA
Other gainsandllosses ~~ EftAERER
Distribution and PHRHE
sellng expenses i

Administrative expenses MBI
Other expenses AT
Finance costs BB
Proft before tax Nl
Income tax expense FishiRx
Proft for the year EmgH

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

278246

91898 25963

2206 17401 75600 56,328 121 560944

1

548

95,001

(12,805)

(69,718
(24,849

)
)

(47,087)

482,034
(129,478)

362,556
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE=ZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Segment revenues and segment results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
Note 3. Segment profit represents the gross profit resulted in
each segment without allocation of other income, other gains and
losses, distribution and selling expenses, administrative expenses,
other expenses, finance costs and income tax expense. This is the
measure reporting to the executive directors of the Company for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market price.

Segment assets and segment liabilities

Information on segment assets and segment liabilities of the
Group are not reviewed by the CODM for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment nor otherwise regularly
provided to the CODM. As a result, no analysis of segment assets
and segment liabilities are presented.

Geographical information

Approximately 95% of external revenues of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: 98%) are attributable to
customers established in the PRC, the place of domicile of the
Group’s major operating entities. The remainings are immaterial for
separate disclosure on their geographical information. Majority of the
Group’s non-current assets are located in the PRC.

Information about major customers
No individual customer contributed to more than 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

7. Rk o EER (&)

7 BB et b 3 RS AR ()

R0 R 25 B2 &t BOR B 8 At
ZAEERHBRARR - HBEFIEE D E
EENEF  ROMEMUEA - Htbiras &
B8 SRS TEEX - A5
X MBRARAEHEAR - WHAARF
HITE B WG AR D B ER K ATE AR

=
E-°

SERAHE BTG -

DEEERDHRE
MR AR BN HEER D R EERL A
M BRI A BE R BT R
Rt hXEH2REERY - ML ER5H
BEERDBEEHDT -

Hol@ &k
HE-_T——FK_T—ZTF+_A=1—
BIEFEE  REEHBW(—ZT—TF:
98%) HIINFRIM AR BEF B (AEEEZ K
EEENIMBE)RNINES I TEE
AR EBRE iR - RBIEREE - K
o IEREEEMMARE -

ETBEFHNER
HE-_Z——SR-_T-TF+-A=+-—
RIEFE - SEENEFEMEAAEEYK
AHI10% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

8. COST OF SALES

Included in cost of sales are the following write down of inventories:

8. SHERA
HEMRABIEATFEHR :

2011 2010

—E——F —ET—FF

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FET T

Write down of inventories FEMR 97,557 =

Management assesses whether the cost of inventories exceed their
net realisable value at the end of each reporting period. Management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories with reference to
the ask price of metal scrap in the relevant markets and the quoted
prices of metal on applicable commodity exchanges at the end of
reporting period. As at 31 December 2011, because the market
prices of the commodities were lower than the respective purchase
price of certain inventories held, a provision of approximately
HK$97,557,000 was recorded. As at 31 December 2010, because
the market prices of the commodities were higher than the
respective purchase prices of inventories held, no allowance was
required.

ERERSERPLEERTHFERELARS
MBETEMERFE BEERELXZRERE
BHEEMSNECBEBREERRR S
Frf & BREMTFENZEFE R
—F+-_A=+—8  BAREETERA
BETHFENSBRBEARR - FALLESE
#%%997,557,0008 7L - RZE—TF+—H
=t+—H AREGTESAFTENSE
KEE AR @ UL EAEELERE -

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hfr A
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Interest income FEMA 16,701 6,583
Rental income for a temporary lease s A 1,125 3,218
Government subsidies (note) B B (B eE) 3,471 1,572
Others Efth 1,048 175
22,345 11,548

note: The Group received unconditional government grants from a local
municipal government as an encouragement for the development
and advancement of business.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

10. Rt = R A

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
(Loss) gain from changes MTESMTARF
in fair value of derivative BEE (F518) Yz (EE)
financial instruments (note) (78,892) 10,919
Net foreign exchange gains M 5 Y e F R 79,081 43,580
(Recognition) reversal of impairment Z 5 & EH A
loss on trade and other FEW IR R E &R
receivables (MR ) #EE (452) 560
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE - BE M EEE
plant and equipment (126) (58)
Impairment loss recognised M - B MR
on property, plant and equipment ERERRRERE (1,099) —
Net compensation received from suppliers UEX f & i 4 (B % 58 3,539 -
2,051 55,001

note: The amounts arose from aluminium, copper and zinc future
contracts, provisional pricing arrangements embedded in sales

M ZEFSRDRRASFNEAY  ZFTHE
BHNENEREEELFRINEEHGH

contracts and foreign currency forward contracts. FTE o
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BB
2011 2010
—g-—-f -—T-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FH&T
Bank charges RITIE 8,065 4,499
Interest on: LA FIERFE. -
— bank borrowings wholly — AR AFRES
repayable within five years RSRITIEE 89,177 36,632
— amounts due to related parties — FEfT A 77 5E - 1,596
— bills payables —ERRE 513 4,360
97,755 47,087

ESREEFRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. FREF
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx Fi&TT
Profit for the year has been FREA - B
arrived at after charging:
Directors’ emoluments (Note 13) EE=ME (FIzE13) 14,625 2,963
Other staff costs Hb B TR 205,789 117,943
Retirement benefit scheme RINBAET SR
contributions, excluding TEEESZ
those of directors RIREFIFT B 3,009 1,873
Share-based payments, LA BERENNR - TEEES
excluding those of directors VARG (7 A EERERY TR 11,377 1,689
Total staff costs B TR 234,800 124,468
Cost of inventories R AR MFERA
recognised as an expense 9,362,935 5,361,645
Listing expenses, included X - S AEMX
in other expenses - 24,624
Depreciation of property, plant Y% - RENEEITE
and equipment 24,250 12,103
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T 504 28 909 867
Auditor’s remuneration ZEED BN & 2,650 4,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEREEME

Directors ==
Details of the emoluments paid by the Group to the directors of the AEBRFASZNARARESZHOEF SN
Company for the year are as follows: ™
Retirement
Salaries  Performance benefit
and bonus scheme Share-based
Fees  allowances (note i) contributions payment Total

HER  RARA BHEN  ARHA
i B (W) SrEER BROGR &t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TR TR TRR TRR TRR TR

Year ended 31 December 2011: HE-E-—-51CR

=+-HLFE:
Executive directors: H1ES:
Mr. Fang Ankong (Mr. Fang) FRERE(HEED) 24 918 500 7 8,444 9,893
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria
van Ooijen % 2 1,056 300 - 741 2,121
Mr. Gu Liyong EXELA 24 677 300 2 648 1,651
Non-exective directors: FTES:
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema Ralph Sytze Ybema 7t & 150 - - - 0 240
Mr. Li Xikui (note i) SRR (M) 150 - - - 90 240
Dr. Loke Yu (note BB L (i) 150 - - - 90 240
Ms. Zhang Jingdong (note i) EETL () 150 - - - 90 240

672 2,651 1,100 9 10,193 14,625
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

13. EEREEME (&)

Directors (continued) EE (&)
Retirement
Salaries  Performance benefit
and bonus scheme  Share-based
Fees  allowances (noteii) contributions payment Total
Hek  REGL RHKEH URRA
ik 2 (Pfagi)  FFEMERR  EHEAAR Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THL THL THL THL THL
Year ended 31 December 2010: BE-Z-ZFT2A
=t+—HItFE
Executive directors: BIES !
Mr. Fang bt - # - 5 576 1,322
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Qoijen 74 = 540 - - 165 705
Mr. Gu Liyong BPERE - 565 - 1 70 636
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema Ralph Sytze Ybema 7t & 75 - - - - 75
Mr. Li Xikui (note i) SHERE (M) 75 - - - - 75
Dr. Loke Yu (note ) FEEE T (Fiaki) 75 - - - - 75
Ms. Zhang Jingdong (note | BaRE L () 75 - - - = 75
300 1,846 - 6 811 2,963
notes: BfsE -
0] They are independent non-executive directors appointed on 23 June (i) REEERBIUFNTEST RN - —F
2010. FRNAZT=HEEZE-
(i) The performance bonus in 2011 is determined as a percentage of (i) B —FRBUADNEEE_T——F

the net profit before the write down of inventories for the year ended

31 December 2011.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

Employees

Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group, three (2010: one)
were directors, whose emoluments are included in the disclosures
above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2010: four) individuals
were as follows:

13. EEREEME (&)

==
RAEBAERSFMATEFR =& (=
T-TF: —RZ)AEE HMESEHR L
NEHEE - B TRA (ZE—FF : [0F) A
THIBET

2011 2010

—E——F —EF-TF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET T

Salaries and other allowances Fre LA b2, 2,901 3,793

Performance bonus (note ii) RIRIEAL (P aEii) 650 -
Retirement benefit IRRBFET IR

scheme contributions 19 34

3,570 3,827

During the year, the emoluments for three of the five highest paid
individuals were within HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000, the one
of the five highest paid individuals was within HK$2,000,001 to
HK$2,500,000 and the remaining highest paid individual was within
HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000.

During the year ended 2010, the emoluments for two of the
five highest paid individuals were below HK$1,000,000, the
remaining highest paid individuals were within HK$1,000,001 to
HK$1,500,000.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors waived any emoluments during both years.

FRN - AmaHMALTHRE =8 AR
& 7 F- 1,500,001 78 7T & 2,000,000 7% 7T 2
H AEReFTMATHFE —RBALTHHE
722,000,001 BT E 2,500,000 7T 2 i
R B = 27 A = B Bl <2 77 F- 9,500,001
JLZ 10,000,000 77T °

HE_ZT-TFUFE  AdmadAL
AR A A £ B9 B < KR 1,000,000 7% 7T
#2123 B A £ BB < 97 F- 1,000,001 7%
JTZE 1,500,000 77T °

RREFER  AEBYEREMNEERE
AREHFALINME - ARSI IMARSE
B S5 A0 AR S BB ) 2R D SR BB B - I
MEFER - TEESHETOHNE

EERHEERRAT —T——FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. Fr8HMAX
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHBT Fi&TT
Current tax: BIERARIIE :
Hong Kong BB 13,388 5,722
PRC Enterprises Income Tax R B TSR 93,454 118,495
Other jurisdiction Hh Al AR 129 186
106,971 124,403
Underprovision in prior years: RBTFERETR
PRC Enterprises Income Tax B TSR 142 594
Deferred tax (Note 29) EIERIE (KiEE29) (18,905) 4,481
88,208 129,478
PRC i
The Group’s PRC subsidiaries were subject to PRC Enterprises SEREFEM T @ AEEH BB A RE
Income Tax at the rate of 25% for both years. 1% 25% F B RGN R Bl ATISFR o
Hong Kong BB

All the Hong Kong subsidiaries are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ PTA & /6 & A FIAM S B (haH AR &
at the rate of 16.5% on their respective estimated assessable profits.  F3% 16.5% FIFE R E MBS FI1SH ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. RSB (&)

Other jurisdictions Habhal AR

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates  FAEfth B)ERE R & A AV FH I8 JH I HHRE nl A4
prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction. EHIRITIHRAE o

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the — 4F A%+ 18 5% 7] BA4R & & T U0 a8 27 A s )

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows: BRIATE :
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT THT
Profit before tax R RDE A 204,459 482,034
Tax at applicable tax rates (note) REARERGTE 2 BE (FisE) 52,193 120,097
Tax effect of expenses not A HNFL 5 2 A S s
deductible for tax purpose 15,672 6,117
Tax effect of income not BERFIMA RIS 52
taxable for tax purpose (8,297) (1,993)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RIERH AT IR R R = RE R
differences not recognised Mse 2 4,789 =
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7k e FR % T8 85 18 H i 745 7 22 16,013 182
Deferred tax provided on dividends F KB ARIIRE
withholding tax on PRC subsidiaries TEHR < IEIEFL IR 2,696 4,481
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREETR 142 594
Tax charge for the year FAREHRAR 88,208 129,478

note: As the Group operates in different tax jurisdictions, separate  MiaF : HARASER TR ANEEELE @ &
reconciliations using the domestic tax rate in each individual tax BB RLERE RS B R G E A B E AR
jurisdiction have been aggregated and presented. BEEHET] -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

15. DIVIDENDS

The final dividend of HK3.7 cents in respect of the year ended
31 December 2011 (2010: final dividend of HK9 cents in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2010) per share amounting to
approximately HK$38,549,000 in total (2010: HK$90,000,000) has
been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in general meeting.

15. K&
EEEREREE-T——
HIEFERARBREFRS. 7B (=ZF—F
F HE_ZT-ZTF+-_A=+—HILFE
KR ERAR B FAR9BL) - & $£4738,549,000
BT (ZZ—Z4 1 90,000,000 7T ) BREF
RREEKRREAS EHEE - SaEER -

F+—A=+—

2011 2010
—E——F —=-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER AT
Dividend recognised as EERFADIKRE
distribution during the year:
2010 final dividends paid EIRN 2 —ZFEREKRE
— HK9 cents per share —&h% 97811l 89,641 =

Cash alternative was offered to shareholders in lieu of scrip
dividends. As a result, the 2010 final dividend was settled in the

BREG TRERBEEZRABARKE -
At > —F—FFRAREBUATHIAB

following manner: 18 :
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T

2010 final dividends —E-TFERHKRE

Cash alternative HeREm 88,449 =
Scrip shares R ERD 1,192 =
89,641 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #j

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

E-R——F+ZRA=+—HILFE

16. ZREA!

ARBHEENELBRERREERNTZ

attributable to owners of the Company are based on the following A F&ETE -
data:
2011 2010
—g-F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Eamings: A
Profit for the year attributable to owners STEERERREE AT
of the Company for the purposes of RRAER AEEF AR
basic and diluted earnings per share 152,087 352,798
Number of shares: RingA
Weighted average number of ordinary STEBRERRTR
shares for the purpose of basic LR D2
earnings per share 1,035,912,789 868,493,151
Effect of diluted potential ordinary HBAHE (B RKIFES4)
shares as a result of the share EEMEETAREETE
options (defined in Note 34) 1,349,778 1,029,999
Weighted average number of ordinary AEEREERNE
shares for the purpose of diluted TmA & E
earnings per share 1,037,262,567 869,523,150

EHESRETRNE - WERRKRARFSE
TRREDETE  RZEREENTTEE
BRIE——FR_T-TFRAEFENT
BTSER -

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s certain options because the exercise
price of these options was higher than the average market price of
shares for both 2011 and 2010.

EERHEERRAT —T——FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=F——

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

FH—RA=+—HIFE

17. ¥ - BERRE

Office
Leasehold Plant fumniture Construction
land and and and Motor  Leasehold in
buldings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles improvements progress Total
AELH BER  BORE BEM=
REF Ha &L "E ®E  EEIE &t
HK§'000  HK$000  HK§O00  HK$000  HK§000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thr THx TEL TEL TEL THEL THEL
COST R
At 1 January 2010 RZE-5F-f—H 95,813 51,719 5216 2,474 - 16,299 171,521
Exchange redlignment B AR 3,435 3,044 306 94 50 283 7,212
Additions AE 27,939 26,567 5,420 2,775 1,363 10,509 74573
Acquired on acquisition of W —FIMB A Al
a subsidiary (Note 37) (HizEar) - - 166 687 - - 853
Transfers EE 5,859 15,564 - - 1,353 (22,776) -
Disposal e = (120) 62) (448) = = (630)
At 31 December 2010 RIZ-2F 133,046 96,774 11,046 5,582 2,766 4,315 253,529
+=R=+-8
Exchange redlignment AR 4330 5,357 573 348 1,082 370 12,010
Additions e 2,053 44,951 5,560 7470 9,242 63,449 132,725
Transfers EEF - 20,650 - - 32,674 (53,324 -
Disposal e - = (187) (1520) - 5) (1662)
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——%
+-R=1+-8 139,429 167,732 17,042 11,880 45,714 14,805 396,602
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-ZF-H-H 20,448 11,507 2,276 2,006 - - 36,237
Exchange realignment B A 782 604 119 78 6 - 1,589
Provided for the year FRfkiE 3,945 6,273 1,360 281 244 - 12,103
Disposal e - @ (29) (104) - - (135)
At 31 December 2010 N_E-ZF
+-A=1+-A 25,175 18,382 3,726 2,261 250 - 49,794
Exchange realignment B 1,111 1,045 214 113 54 - 2,537
Provided for the year ERRE 6,519 11,766 2,252 1,449 2,264 - 24,250
Impairment loss recognised  RER AR
in profit or loss WAESE - 787 120 84 108 - 1,099
Disposal HE = = (122) (923) = = (1,045)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%
+-R=1+-8 32,805 31,980 6,190 2,984 2,676 - 76,635
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2011 W4
+-R=1+-A 106,624 135,752 10,852 8,896 43,038 14,805 319,967
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-%F
+-R=1+-A 107,871 78,392 7,320 3,321 2,516 4,315 203,735
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZEZ=F——F+=-A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The carrying amount of leasehold land and buildings which is
situated in Hong Kong and held under medium-term lease is
HK$32,674,000 (2010: HK$34,539,000) at the end of the reporting
period.

The property, plant and equipment, other than construction in

progress, are depreciated over their estimated useful lives, after

taking into account their residual value, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 20 years or the relevant lease
term, whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 9%-20%
Office furniture and equipment 9%-30%
Motor vehicles 9%-30%

30% or the relevant lease term,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvement

As at 31 December 2011, certain land and buildings with carrying
amount of HK$99,918,000 (2010: HK$102,489,000) were pledged
as security for bank borrowings granted to the Group.

During the year, the directors conducted a review of the Group’s
plant and equipment and determined that a number of those assets
were impaired, accordingly, impairment losses of HK$787,000
HK$120,000, HK$84,000 and HK$108,000 have been recognised
in respect of plant and machinery, office furniture and equipment,
motor vehicles and leasehold improvements, which are used in
the Group’s metal recycling business activities. The recoverable
amounts of the relevant assets have been determined on the basis
of their value in use.

17. Y% - BERZRME (E)
REFHPLER LR EBAPHRHELOEFE
ZHE T RIEF 2 BREE A 32,674,000%
T (ZZ—Z 4 : 34,539,00087T) °

W - B MR (BT RRIN KFTEHE
RIABER - RETRAFHFENT ¢

et RiEs 204F B RTHHEA
(AR & AE)

R Kt as 9% % 20%

NN EYS G 9% % 30%

RE 9% Z 30%

HEMERE 30% sk A REFE A5
(AR E A%E)

R-E—F+-_A=+—H EEEA
99,918,00078 71 ( —Z—Z4F : 102,489,000
BIL) AT I REFEREAR TAE
ERITIEERER -

FR - BERN T AEBNRE &R ETE
EHFHEEERE BAUHEBAIEESE
BAEBHEANRE RS  HARER

CERAEMEREREBES A
787,000 7T ~ 120,000 7T ~ 84,0008 7T
108,000/ 7T - HHEAEER ] B S REE
HFERAEEERE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. A&
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
The prepaid lease payments ENEE
comprise leasehold land BIEEE T
- in Hong Kong held under — (IR BB AR B LEE
medium term leases 153,148 -
—in the PRC held under — (AR B AR BB L R
medium term leases 38,064 37,325
191,212 37,325
2011 2010
—E——F —ET—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Analysed for reporting purposes as: A28 A B BHIHT
Current asset mENEE 5,244 890
Non-current asset IEmEEE 185,968 36,435
191,212 37,325

<
/7

The leasehold land in Hong Kong is under sublease at a medium A EBHNEE LR BB S BIERE

term lease for specific usage.

i

As at 31 December 2011, prepaid lease payments with carrying R-Z——F+T-_HA=+—H KEER
amount of HK$38,064,000 (2010: HK$37,325,000) were pledged as 38,064,000 BT (ZE—24F : 37,325,000

security for bank borrowings granted to the Group.

BIL) AN ESERIESR TAKEIRT
fEEHIFELR -

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 19. I HERE
It represents an investment of equity security listed in Hong Kong  #EIRENEE FTHIRARZ % - WREER
and is stated at fair value which is determined based on the bid price T %ZFTHRE ABEERA FEIIK

quoted in an active market.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

20. INVENTORIES 20. F&
2011 2010
—2——F  —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT T
Raw materials EM 1,562,982 1,628,688
Finished goods UK 1,656,289 674,737
3,219,271 2,303,425

At 31 December 2011, all inventories were stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value with reference to the quoted prices
of metal scrap in the relevant markets. At 31 December 2010, all
inventories were stated at cost.

R_ZB——F+-_A=+—HB FAREE
BR2E R/ 5 PT W RE 2 B EAREK(E
ZRAHFRETR - R_F—FF+_H
=18 e EHUKARIE

EERHEERRAT —T——FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

21. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS/AMOUNT DUE 21. JriERR#ER A IEERER

TO NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS Hig
Share of net assets
of subsidiaries
FriEMB A
BEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT AT
At 1 January R—A—H 34,880 =
Acquisition of additional interest R —RHHE A A
in a subsidiary REIME R (4,950) =
Capital contribution EE 22,367 34,825
Share of loss for the year FANFTLEE (35,836) (242)
Share of foreign currency Firflb SINEE B 4 (R s
translation reserve 937 297
At 31 December R+=A=+—8 17,398 34,880

The balance due to non-controlling interests of HK$23,976,000 at RN —ZT—ZF+ - A=+— B RN IF=RE

31 December 2010 arose from metal scrap purchases from Fi# i Z &58223,976,000/8 7T Ty =2 Al L/ H K &

KeBWAERART(“EEEK )N 2010. FE%Khas significant BWEBRAR ([ LEEK ) BEESEM

influence over a subsidiary of the Group. EAER o DERKEAEE-—FHRBEARE
BEAFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group generally allows its trade customers a credit period
of 30 to 90 days. A longer credit period may be granted to
trade customers with good credit quality upon the approval of
management. An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables at
the end of the reporting period, net of allowance for doubtful debts
and based on the invoice date, are as follows:

22. B5 R H A EWFRIE

AEE - RETESHEFI0ENVRANEE
H o ARSEREBHAER  AEEAREER
RERENESEFROAERNEENS -1
ERPEER - XEHE FRUGRIIR R
REBBRORROITREZARZIIT

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T

Trade receivables: =) G
0-30 days 02 30H 207,462 110,310
31-60 days 312 60H 1,336 4,270
61-90 days 61290 H 36,332 10
91-180 days 912 180 H 54,425 484
Over 180 days BB 180 H 3,011 596
302,566 115,670

Other receivables: H bl RIA
Deposits and prepayments (note) & RIEAFRIE (FRE) 99,388 73,054

Deposits paid for purchase BERBZEMNEZES

of raw materials 186,063 124,415
Rental receivable e AE & - 2,204
VAT recoverable AR EHE(ER 217,248 90,190
Others HAth 8,132 6,114
510,831 295,977
813,397 411,647

note: The balance represents primarily import declaration and freight
charges.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Credit limits to customers are reviewed regularly. With
reference to the track records of these customers, the directors
of the Company consider all trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period are of good credit quality.

Biek : ASREEEEOREREBNE -

REMFMEFA > AEENGEEETFPNE

MIEERBEMESZ - R2EZFEFPHN
BERE - ARREERA  RERPEE
A EESREHRIEBENEEERR -

EERHEERRAT —T——FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. EZRHMEWRFIE (&)
Included in the trade receivable balance are the following past due & 5 B A s B 3E T 5107 & B EEEED
debts for which no impairment loss has been provided: EHAERS

Aging analysis of trade receivables which are past due 2 BHERFERE 5 FEWZIEE

but not impaired B DT
2011 2010
—E——F T T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THT
31-60 days 31 £60H 112 3,982
61-90 days 61290 H 852 -
91-180 days 912180 H 54,425 484
Over 180 days B’ 180 H 3,011 596
58,400 5,062

The Group does not hold any collateral against the above amounts.  ZAN$£ B #8345 A F it 5008 2 (E 4K - A
However, management believes that these amounts are still M EEEBRAERNEBEETENEELEEZL
recoverable because there has not been an adverse change in the — #EBEEE - #EZZEFRIAAIURE ©

relevant entities’ credit quality.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REEE BN E
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FBTT
Balance at beginning of the year F LR - 554
Recognition (reversal) of impairment B 5 kA ERGRIE R EEE
loss on trade and other TR (B E)
receivables 452 (560)
Amounts written off as uncollectible WS AN AT Ug B A FOR (452) =
Foreign exchange difference EH =R - 6
Balance at end of the year FREERR - =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
(continued)

During the year, the Group discounted certain trade receivables to
financial institutions with recourse. The Group continues to recognise
the full carrying amount of the receivables. At 31 December
2011, the carrying amount of the trade receivables discounted is
approximately HK$30,534,000 (2010: Nil). The carrying amount
of the associated liability which represented the cash received
from discounted trade receivables (see Note 28) is approximately
HK$24,428,000 (2010: Nil).

Trade and other receivables that were denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are
as follows:

22. B5 R HMEWRE (&)
R EHES) ()

FRAEERCHEEBIRRE THEER
RIENEHERGIE - AEBBEEERE
WHRBEBNEEEEE - R —F+=
A=+—H ' EZEKFERBEIIRY
30,534,000 0 (ZF—Z4F : &) - 1HEF &
EREREE (AURERBRIR E B EWGIEIR &)
( B Bff 5E28) #724,428,0008 T( — T —F
FHE) o

B RSB RRIEE R SN BB ETHER
B 5 REAMEKFIRT

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

RMB ARHE 79,443 -
HKS$ BIT 3,140 9,907
EUR BT 2 =

23. BILLS RECEIVABLES
An analysis of the Group’s bills receivables by age at the end of the
reporting period, based on their invoice dates, are as follows:

23. EIRNE#E
REBPLEER - AEBNERSEERS
WRBHZ ARSI MR -

2011 2010
—g—-% -F-=f
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH FHT
0-30 days 0%&30H 617 3,034
31-60 days 31260 H 16,268 6,848
61-90 days 61290 H 15,369 1,889
91-180 days 912180 H 1,422 2,858
33,676 14,629

EERHEERRAT —T——FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e R ERMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

24. fTESMTI A

Derivative financial asset
Aluminium, copper and zinc

future contracts (note i)

Derivative financial liability
Aluminium, copper and zinc

future contracts (note i)

TTETREE
tniRE e AL (EED

TTEESRARE
tniRE HE AL (FEED

Provisional pricing arrangements

(note ii)
Foreign currency forward
contracts (note iii)

notes:

Ew i E (B 2B (PYAEi)
SNEEEERA ) (BT aEiii)

(i) Aluminium, copper and zinc future contracts (net settlement)

The Group enters into aluminium, copper and zinc future contracts in
order to manage its exposure to the price risk of aluminium, copper
and other metal inventory. These contracts are actively traded in an
active market and are measured at fair values based on unadjusted
quoted price at the end of the reporting period, with gain or loss

recognised directly in the profit or loss.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

Annual Report 2011

2011 2010

S

HK$’000 HK$’000

F# Tt
37,021
34,696
5,069

- 205

39,765 205

BT -

() mMFMERN (FEE)

AEEERZRRFHESH - AERR
T BOKF R e SR S ) B AR R o
F ZEANNERTS
PR3 R BB AR AR R BB A A FERT

£ - HRESEEENBERTER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=F——

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)
notes: (continued)

(i) Aluminium, copper and zinc future contracts (net settlement)

(continued)

Major terms of the aluminium, copper and zinc future contracts

outstanding at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

31 December 2011

FH—RA=+—HIFE

24 TESRT A (/)
GERNC)

() I E AN OFEE) (B)

NEE2HPEER - REMRAFHES
K EB GRS T

—®2——%+=A=t+-A

Contract price Standard trading unit ~ Total unit Maturity date

BHER BEEEEN BEN A

Aluminium future contracts:

IR EAT

Buy at prices ranging from RMB16,155 5 tonnes 170 From 15 February 2012
to RMB16,340 per tonne 5 A to 15 March 2012

BN TEMEARE 16,155 T2 BZZ——f_A+HAZE
AR 16,340 THIEREE —E——F#=A+HH

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 136 From 4 January 2012
USD1,966 to USD1,998 per tonne 258 to 19 March 2012

BN T ZHE1,966 £ TTE BE-T——F—AmAZE
1,998 XM (BIEIEE —T——F=A+thH

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 176 From 10 January 2012
USD2,030 to USD2,269 per tonne 258 to 2 March 2012

=9 F M 2,030 X T £ 2,269 FTH) BE-Z——F#—A+HB%
BIRIHE —E——-F=H=H

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 440 From 3 January 2012
USD2,000 to USD2,249 per tonne 25 4 to 9 March 2012

BN T 2,000 TTE BE-ZZ2——-f—H=H=%
2,249 THEREE —T——%=AnH

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 108 From 3 January 2012
USD1,972 to USD2,014 per tonne 25 to 19 March 2012

BN FENE1,972 F L E 2,014 ETH) “T——F—A=HZ%
BRREE —T——F=RA+hH

Copper future contracts:

RS

Buy at prices ranging from 5 tonnes 150 15 March 2012
RMB57,760 to RMB57,880 per tonne 5l —FT——F=A+HAH

BN FEBWEARE 57,760 TE
AR 57,880 T EIRIEE

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 252 From 3 January 2012
USD6,710 to USD7,565 per tonne 25 A to 28 March 2012

BN TEWE6,710E£TE
7,565 K TTHERIEE

B-T——F—-A=RZ%
—T——#=A=+N\H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24.fT4€®TH (&)
(continued)

notes: (continued) Bt - (48)
i) Aluminium, copper and zinc future contracts (net settlement) () WIMFMEAHN OFRE) (&)

(continued)

Contract price Standard trading unit Total unit Maturity date

ERERE BEEHEN BE A

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 136 Form 25 January 2012
USD7,630 to USD8,039 per tonne 258 to 7 March 2012

BN 50 7,630 %L E 8,039 K TTH) BT —f—A-t+hHHZE
BIRIHE —T——F=A+tH

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 264 From 27 January 2012
USD7,602 to USD8,140 per tonne 25 A to 23 March 2012

BN TEMET7,602ETTE BT —f—A=-t+tHZE
8,140 X THBIEEE —ET——F#=ZA=-+=H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 152 From 3 January 2012
USD6,934 to USD7,580 per tonne 258 to 24 February 2012

BN T2 6,934 XL E 7,580 K TH) BE-T——F—A=RAZ%
BIRIHE —E——F—-A—-+MmAH

Zinc future contracts:

HERESA) -

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 116 From 18 January 2012
USD1,780 to USD1,830 per tonne 25 A to 20 January 2012

BN FEME1,780%TE BE-Z——F—A+tN\HZE
1,830 TH(ERES —E——F—HA=+H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 366 From 4 January 2012
USD1,840 to USD2,101 per tonne 258 to 22 March 2012

= FENi1,840% £ 2,101 ETH BT —F—AWB=E
BIRIHE —T——F#=A=+=H

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 702 From 3 January 2012
USD1,843 to USD2,079 per tonne 258 to 23 March 2012

BN TEME1,843FTE BE-E——-F—A=H%
2,079 = TR BEREE —E——F=A=+=H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 36 From 3 January 2012
USD1,796 to USD1,828 per tonne 25 I to 20 January 2012

BN TE0E1,796 20 E 1,828 LK) BE-E——Ff—H=RAZ
BEIRHE —T——F—A=+H

31 December 2010 —E-Z5+-HA=+—H

No commodity future contract was outstanding at 31 December R=B—ZEF+ A =+—ARE&RTT

2010. ENEmBAEEL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24,

(continued)
notes: (continued)

(i)

Provisional pricing arrangements (net settlement)

During the year, the Group entered into copper scrap sales
contracts that contain provisional pricing arrangements with certain
customers. The Group recognises sales revenue, upon delivery of
goods once the significant risks and rewards of ownership has been
transferred to the customers, based on the quoted copper prices
on the Shanghai Futures Exchange as at date of delivery with a
fixed discount on the purity of copper scrap (the “Provisional Selling
Price”). The Group would receive the payments from the customers
ranging from 70% to 90% of the Provisional Selling Price in
accordance with its normal trade terms (the “Provisional Payments”).

The provisional pricing arrangements allow the Group to fix the
final sales price for copper scrap within four to six months after
delivered to customers. Adjustments to the sales price is based on
movements in quoted spot prices up to the date of final settlement
within four to six calendar months after delivery of goods (the “Price-
Fixing Period”) with reference to the quoted copper future price on
the Shanghai Futures Exchange at the time of price fixing with above
mentioned fixed discount on the purity (the “Final Selling Price”). If
the Group does not fix the Final Selling Price during the Price-Fixing
Period, the Final Selling Price will be based on the spot price with
above mentioned fixed discount on the purity on the last day of the
Price Fixing Period. The difference between the Final Selling Price
and the Provisional Payments, once determined, will be settled within
a specified period.

For accounting purposes, the provisional price arrangement is
separated from the host contract for sales of copper scrap and
accounted for as a derivative instrument, resulting in HK$5,069,000
of fair value loss being recognised on these provisional price
arrangements.

=

PTESRI A (&)

BaE - (%)

(i)

BERFHREOFEE)

ER - AEFERETREF Y BIERETE
ERENEREEAY  NEBBEKRE
SR ORERERSE - WIRER HEH
ERSEETRAIRE ([fREESE]) ARE

RIEWA - RIBLEF B S 55K - A%
B R EFWERREN TREESERN70%
ZE90% ([EEEF ) -

B BB LR AR ERAEP X &M
EXNEAAREERKREE - EEIRER
NEmEEERZEE A HRE L=< EE
AR EESRR]D 2EZ LERERZ M
TP st 48 2 [ R 47 0 7 (B B P O 8 (B
ERREB(REEE]D WARMER
BHIEHFE o MAKENEBHR T
EERRER  SKREBRNERETH
& — Bz L BT HnREE
EE - R EERERNRNEE KB
E o BREERERMAEE

AERTENME - RS ELHARERE
MHENTEOLFTAR/ITETR - B8
BRZEREER R ERN A FER
# 435,069,000 BT °

EERHEERRAT —T——FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e R ERMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24.fT4€®TH (&)
(continued)

notes: (continued) BizE : (48)

(i) Provisional pricing arrangements (net settlement) (continued) (i) R EEZHE CFEE) (&

Major terms of the provisional pricing arrangements contracts
outstanding at 31 December 2011 are as follows:

RZB——F+Z A=+—HRARRTH
B E BN ERGRRAT

31 December 2011 —E——F+=-H=+—H

Notional amount Provisional selling prices Price-fixing periods

BETH PR E(E TE(EEAAE
27 contracts to sell 14,300 Sell at prices ranging from From 21 April 2012
tonnes of copper scrap in total RMB45,794 to RMB55,685 to 30 June 2012
per tonne
5 B8 84 & 48 5T 14,300 MARE SR Y BN F B AR 45,794 TE B —FWA-+—HBE
271 HER AR 55,685 THIBIS IS —T——FXA=+H

31 December 2010

No sales contracts with provisional pricing arrangements was
outstanding at 31 December 2010.

(iii) Foreign currency forward contracts (gross settlement)
The Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts in order
to minimise its exposure to the foreign currency risk. These contracts
were measured at fair value using quoted forward exchange rates at
the end of the reporting period, with gain or loss recognised directly
in profit or loss.
Major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts are as follows:

31 December 2011

No foreign currency forward contract was outstanding at 31
December 2011.

31 December 2010

(il

—2-2F+-A=+-H

RZZE—ZF+-A=+—BHEHRHN
TNABER EELRHNEESL -

ERINES R (FBRHE)

AEBFT 8 BIME S K9 LUREINE R
R o RECHNSBPEE AR BRERE
KRN EFE - HREEEENEER
TR °

EHINES R EEETAT
—E——fF+=A=+—H

RNEZE——F+=- A=+—BHERRH
TTHYERINES )

—2-2F+-_A=+-—H

Notional amount Forward contract rates Maturity date

EReH BHEHRRE ZIHA

6 contracts to buy USD1: RMB6.4710 From 19 April 2011
USD10,892,748 in total to RMB6.6580 to 6 December 2011

5 #£10,892,748 7T 1 ETHARE6.47T10TE B=Z——FWmA+TIBEZE
BWBAAL AR#6.6580 7T —=—F+=AXH
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e MR R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits

These represent deposits pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group. Bank deposits of HK$127,004,000
(2010: HK$351,684,000) were pledged to secure short-term bank
borrowings and are therefore classified as current assets. The
pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rates as follows:

25. BIRIRRITER ZR4IBRITE
ROBRITHEBRRS

BEEFRI TR

ZEF AR ITIE A AR A LB R
IRITEEELERAIFER ° 127,004,000 %
TT(—ZT—F4 : 351,684,000/ 7T ) UER1T
FHRERBERRITEROER - Abw
DIEARBEE - BIEIFRITFERIRUTE

Byl -
/CNA 7%—

2011 2010
=B e

FRIE

Interest rate per annum

Restricted bank deposits

The balance represents deposits placed with certain financial
institutions to secure the Group’s margin accounts with these
financial institutions for the trading aluminium, copper and zinc
futures. The restricted bank deposits are non-interest bearing.

Bank balances and cash

These represent cash and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. The bank balances carry interest
rates as follows:

0.53% to 1.30%
0.53% £ 1.30%

1.71% to0 2.50%
1.71% = 2.50%

SR HIRITIF K
BREASRESRGETERBEEHES
SRR IR M (RAEBR P M A AR S BUE
RTER » ZRBIRITIFEFRTEE

RITREB LA
REFARERS KRB A= E AN
THRENRITIE R o SRITRBFEMT :

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Interest rate per annum FF| = 0.01%t00.5%  0.36% to 1.15%

Pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances and cash held in the PRC with an aggregate amount of
HK$302,752,000 (31 December 2010: HK$399,643,000) were
denominated in RMB and were subject to foreign exchange control.

0.01% £05% 0.36% = 1.15%

R EEANDIRARTER - ZEFIET
TE R B2 ER 17 45 84 2 3R & 4258 /5 302,752,000
BT E—ZTF+-_HF=+—8:
399,643,000/87T) @ EEBAAREEHEIL X
HNFEE | o

EERHEERRAT —T——FFR
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e MR R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK 25. BiK#tR TR ZR$ETHF
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued) 3 $R{T4HEEARIAE (&)

Pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank balances LA BEE A 71 fe & H& LASNE B EHER B
and cash that are denominated in currencies other than the 3EKIRITER - ZIRAEITFRERITES

functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: FIREWT :
2011 2010
=F——F —T—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FATT
RVB ARHE 103,750 29,343
HK$ BT 1,710 1,021
UsD ETT 93,660 32,146
EUR BT 1,203 43,087
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. E5 R HMENRE
The average credit period for trade purchases is 30 to 60 days. B oSN =EHA30E60H °

The following is an aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables A RNAKREBESENKBRERALEEH
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting HIBRERDITIREZHEZ5M0 T -
period:

2011 2010
—E——F T4
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT F&TT

Trade payables: B S FE IR
0-30 days 0Z30H 206,179 101,086
31-60 days 312 60H 129,432 325
61-90 days 61290 H 1,996 -
91-180 days 91180 H 3,091 1,933
Over 180 days 3@ 180 H 6,853 81
347,551 103,425

Other payables: HAthfESFRIA ¢
Other payables and accruals HA R RIERESE A 124,399 71,589
Interest payable e RIS 14,989 5,335
Receipts in advance from customers ~ FAWEFZIA 32,613 7,888
172,001 84,812
519,552 188,237
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
Trade and other payables that are denominated in currencies other

26. B5 R HMENFIE

(&)

UEBEBRRYEEE AN ERTENE

than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are as 5 N EfthEZRIELN R :
follows:
2011 2010
—EB——F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHET FH&TT
HK$ BT 7,621 5,327
EUR BT 60,405 36,716
27. BILLS PAYABLES 27. BREE
An aged analysis of the Group’s bills payables at the end of the AKEENZRIBER2HREPEE AR DT
reporting period is as follows: N
2011 2010
—E——F —=—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T
0-30 days 0&30H - 40,985
31-60 days 31260 H - 23,614
61-90 days 61290 H - 84,551
- 149,150
BEAMEEERAT —T——FF1K
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e MR R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #j

28. BANK BORROWINGS

E-T——

FH—RA=+—HIFE

28. IRITEE

2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx Fi&TT
Fixed-rate borrowings: EEMEBE !
Secured bank loans BEMRITER 1,450,404 584,265
Secured discounted trade BHEAWEBRERNMR
receivables with recourse B Z EWGRIA 24,428 =
Unsecured bank loans I IRITE K 592,210 912,407
Unsecured bank overdrafts FEIAIRITE S 2,285 =
Variable-rate borrowings: FEMEE
Secured bank loans BIRMRITERK 12,415 =
Unsecured bank loans EILIRIRITE K 569,955 -
2,651,697 1,496,672
Carrying amount repayable*: FEBRTEE ™ -
Within one year —F RN 2,457,393 1,496,672
More than two years, but BBRE - BRZRAF
not more than five years 194,304 =
2,651,697 1,496,672
Less: W
Amounts due within one year RSB ETE58
shown under current liabilities PHEERBIZEK
without repayment on demand BRIER—FA
clause E|H SRR (1,733,236) (1,496,672)
Amounts due within one year shown  RAEEE N2FHNFEE
under current liabilities with R IR IR B SR R
repayment on demand clause —ERNEIHR SR (724,157) -
Amounts due over one year shown RRBEETZ2INEE
under current liabilities with RIRRE SRR IGT A
repayment on demand clause —FHEHE (194,304) =
Amounts shown under EREBBENEYNEEE
non-current liabilities - =
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out  * P H e R IR E R TSN TEEE A

in the loan agreements.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

Annual Report 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZEZ=F——F+=-A=+—HILFE

28. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 28. IRITEE (&)

The effective interest rates of the borrowings are as follows: EBEEMNERAERDT :
2011 2010
—E——-F —E-TF

Effective interest rate per annum: BRERE

Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE 1.50% t07.02%  1.50% to0 6.74%
1.50% £7.02% 1.50% £6.74%
Variable-rate borrowings HEBE 4.41% t0 6.41% N/A
441%%F6.41% NER

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currency other LAE FAEBE AR EB AIINEREEHERN A

than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are as EEEWNT :
follows:

2011 2010
—2——-F  -T-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
HK$ BTT 830 -
uSD E7T 1,924,896 902,360

During the year, one of the Group’s subsidiaries exceeded the loan- &R - 7N F H h —E B 2 B R & Z AR
to-equity ratio specified in a bank loan agreement in relation to tt“’?ﬁfiﬂﬁmﬁ% : B o ESRIE B R
certain bank loan with a repayable on demand clause. The excess & TRITERBIFIAHLL R o FRBAIEED /T
was remedied by the subsidiary in November 2011 by setting part B2 TEA T——F+— AR5 K
of the outstanding bank borrowings to lower the loan-to-equity ratio  {EERITE RAREKE S L RIEL
and the relevant bank has subsequently confirmed that it would not & - HBEERITREEREER IS HZHMER
take any action against the subsidiary. AIEREVE(AITTE) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e R ERMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

29. DEFERRED TAX 29. IEFEBIIE

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of ARNGEEIMERAIETANEY]  BHEBENET
financial position, certain deferred tax assets on liabilities have been  IEIEFIBEED LI o U T ARME2®
offset. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for B AYHREERIIBLE A D T -

financial reporting purposes:

2011 2010
—E——fF —ET—FF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHT T

Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBEE 30,388 25,699
Deferred tax assets BEEFIBEE (23,594) -
6,794 25,699

The deferred tax (assets) liabilities recognised by the Group and  ANEERERHELETIE (BE) BERERSE

movements thereon during the year are as follows: WNEZE BT
Change in
fair value
Accelerated Unrealised  of derivative Distributable
tax Tax  Inventories profit on financial profits of
depreciation losses  provision inventories instruments  subsidiaries Total
mE AR fESRIE  HWEARN

RERE HEER RERG  BREN QVERD  ToEER it
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$'000  HK$000
TAL AL TAR TEL TEL  TAR TAL

At1 January 2010 R_E-5F-f-H - = = - - 21,218 21,218
Chargetoprofitorloss S MEFABE
for the year - - - - - 4,481 4,481

At 31 December 2010 RZE-TE+-A=1-R - - - -
(Credft) charge to profitor M (k) 5T ABE
lss for the year 1903 (1695 (19489 @4 RO 26% (18906

25,699 25,699

At31Decomber 2011 R-E——E+-A=+-H 1,993 (1695  (19489) @y 2007 28395 6,794

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2011



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC, with effect from 1
January 2008 onwards, withholding income tax at 5% is imposed on
dividends declared out of profits earned by PRC entities for investors
incorporated in Hong Kong. Upon the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange (“Listing”), the directors of the
Company recommended a policy to declare 25% of the Group’s
distributable profit as dividends to the Company’s shareholders.
Accordingly, withholding income tax is provided to the extent of 25%
of profits earned by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with distributable
earnings of PRC subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised in the consolidated financial statements was
HK$567,900,000 (2010: HK$513,980,000). No withholding income
tax has been provided in respect of the remaining distributable
earnings of PRC subsidiaries of HK$1,703,700,000 (2010:
HK$1,541,940,000).

At 31 December 2011, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$80,092,000 (2010: HK$728,000) available to offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of such losses to the extent of HK$10,269,000 (2010: Nil). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
unused tax losses of HK$69,823,000 (2010: HK$728,000) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. All the tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely except for those arising from the PRC
which may be carried forward for five years.

29. IEFEBIIE (&)

RIERBEMEMSHE B =TT N\F—A
— B REBEMALAEEE AT E
TR AT R I M 2R A AR E B4R 5% B TB
HETEH - AR R RFT Em ([ £
mD%&  ARRESEFRM—EEER - ]
M AR 7 R TR A] 5 A 5% B i 7 A 25%
TERRRE - At - TEINFTE AT IR B H U
AN £ B Fh B B B A &) AT BR B F B9 25% &
R o MR SRR ERELE A FrH
R B BT B A A A] 43Ik 2 ) A B A BT B =
BA 4R %8 5567,900,000 8 T (= —FF :
513,980,000/&7T) ° BB A RIMER T A
P IRZF1,703,700,0008 T (— T —Z4F :
1,541,940,000 87T ) WAL RTEHIFTSEL ©

RZZE—F+_A=+—8 A&EE%HHE
ARB) R IE E518 80,092,000 T (— T —F
4 ¢ 728,000 70 ) AR SE AR AOEF o BLAEEE
ESiE MR AR ER I8 & EE 2E 10,269,000 75 7T
—E-TF  E)  c BEEBR T ABAMTIE
E51869,823,000 ( = —ZT4F : 728,00078
TL) WARERAIRETIEEE - TEHIES
B R AR A8 (FRIEER B E AR AR
HFANEREE) o

EERHEERRAT —T——FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #j

E-F——

FHZRA=+—RHIFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A
Number
of shares Amounts
B EE S
HK$
BT
Authorised: SRRE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 RZZE—ZTF—H—H
at 1 January 2010 FRXTE{E 0.01 BT E @A 5,000,000 50,000
Increase on 23 June 2010 (note i) RZZE—ZF XA = +=H3EN
(FFEED 4,995,000,000 49,950,000
At 31 December 2010 and 2011 RIE—ZTFR-T—F
+=A=+—8” 5,000,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETIHRE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 R-ZE—FF—H—H
each at 1 January 2010 FRXE{E 0.01 BT A E @A 100 1
Capitalisation issue (note i) BEAR(LEAT (D) 749,999,900 7,499,999
Issue of new shares (note ii) AT (B aEii) 250,000,000 2,500,000
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZF+-_A=+—H 1,000,000,000 10,000,000
Issue of new shares (note iii) AT (B i) 60,000,000 600,000
Issue of scrip dividend (note iv) BATUARRA B (FEaEiv) 209,206 2,092
Exercise of share options (note v) 1TE R (FRE V) 1,645,500 16,455
Shares repurchased and A 1D BB e s 88 (Pt s vi)
cancelled (note vi) (20,000,000) (200,000)
At 31 December 2011 RZZE——F+H=+—H 1,041,854,706 10,418,547
HK$'000
T
Shown in the consolidated financial statements 4R & BT8R P~
— 31 December 2011 —R_E——F+=-_A=+—H 10,419
— 31 December 2010 —R_E—ZEF+_HA=+—H 10,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE=ZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

notes:

U

(i)

(i)

(V)

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the
Company on 23 June 2010, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased to HK$50,000,000. The directors of the
Company were also authorised to capitalise a sum of HK$7,499,999
standing to the credit of the Company’s reserve account by
applying such sum in paying up in full at par 749,999,900 shares for
allotment and issue to shareholders. On 12 July 2010, the directors
allotted and issued such shares as aforesaid and gave effect to the
capitalisation issue.

On 12 July 2010, the Company issued 250,000,000 shares pursuant
to the Company’s initial public offering at a price of HK$2.43 per
share upon Listing.

On 15 April 2011, arrangements were made for a placement to
independent investors of 60,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each in
the Company held by HWH Holdings Limited (“HWH”) and Delco
Participation B.V. (“Delco”), the controlling shareholders with over
30% beneficial interest of the Company respectively, at a price
of HK$6.60 per share, representing a discount of approximately
11.41% to the closing market price of the Company’s shares on 15
April 2011.

Pursuant to a subscription agreement of the same date, HWH and
Delco subscribed for 60,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each in
the Company at a price of HK$6.60 per share. The proceeds were
used for general working capital. The subscription was completed
on 29 April 2011. These new shares were issued under the general
mandate granted to the directors pursuant to the written resolutions
of all shareholders passed on 23 June 2010.

On 22 June 2011, the Company issued and allotted a total of
209,206 new shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at a price
of HK$5.70 per share to shareholders who elected to receive new
shares in lieu of cash final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2010.

During the year, 1,585,000 and 60,500 share options under the
Pre-IPO Scheme and the Scheme (as defined in Note 34) were
exercised at a subscription price of HK$2.43 and HK$3.38 per share
respectively, resulting in the issue of 1,585,000 and 60,500 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company.

30. g2 (#&)

i

)

(i)

(i)

(v)

BBEAQRFRE—RER-_ZT—ZTFXA
Z+=HAEBNEMRER  ARAH
Y% 7 B 7K 3% i &= 50,000,000 58 7T © AR A
RIEENEREBAABIFERS AK
7,499,990 B TR EEBRBE TR B AR - HiEA
1 = 3t 7178 A A 2 B S1UZ 749,999,900
BERRD » ARRBE REEIT TR c R=F—
TE+A+—H BEECEBEEET LM
B - WEHEITEAR(LEETT -

R-ZT—FELA+—H ' AR EH
BIRBAARMNE R AHEERTR2.43
78 TCHY (B 1% 3817 250,000,000 AE XD ©

RZT——FMA+HB + ZARIERER
6.60BTL (BARRRMNHR =T ——FMWM
A-+H BRI EITEL 11.41%) BERS
AEY R E A EHE S SREEC.01 BT
#9 60,000,000 f% 12 &I Bid & 2 B + 2 E /%
A HEHWH Holdings Limited ([HWH])
Delco Participation B.V. ([Delco|) (HWH
X Delco R BB AR R Z 1 30% AN A
Al B m IR ) 755 -

RIER R B0 RE & - HWH R
Delco iR &A% 6.60 74 T RE AR 71 G HE
{E0.01787T#960,000,000 L HTA% © FT5 K
BRE—REEESARE REEEDR
—E——FNA =T NETEK - ZEHK
BER-—E—ZEA-_+=B2ERE
BENEMRAZRE TESHN—RRER

7o

N-ZZE——FENA=-+=H ' XRTRE
B&5.70 B TTHIBR AR (RERREE
—E—TFE+ - A=+ BEEEREE
AR AR R BRAR B, ) 247 R AL 3 & /% 0.01
7B ITH) 209,206 METAR °

FR - BRXAABEE M (EE
Bt sE34) 8 N #91,585,0004% & 60,500%
BERSHED PR B A% 2.4378 7T 1. 3.38 78 TT
REBERTE BRAQREITEREE
0.017% 7T 891,585,000 & 60,5000 % & &
% o

EERMEERRAT —T——FFR
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

notes: (continued)

(vi)

During the year, the Company repurchased 20,000,000 of its own
shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$83,946,000 pursuant to the general mandate
granted to the directors at its annual general meeting. The highest
and lowest price paid for the repurchased shares were HK$4.55 and

30. = (4%)
GERNC)

) FA ARFARBREBRBFEAE LA
BRI — IR RN R PR R A 5
720,000,000 * & #£.{E83,946,000
BT - BER D& RSEERD IR
4.55 8L} 3.6978 7T °

HK$3.69, respectively.
Details of the repurchases are as follows:

Total number
of the ordinary

Month of the repurchases share repurchased
B A 17 [B] % & i AR
BB
HK$
BT
August 2011 —Z—F)\R 2,780,000
September 2011 —T—FNA 9,934,000
October 2011 —T——%+A 7,286,000

20,000,000

All of the above shares were cancelled upon repurchase. The
nominal value of the cancelled shares was credited to the capital
redemption reserve and the aggregate consideration was paid out of
the reserves of the Company.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold and redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during both years.

All the new shares allotted and issued ranked pari passu in all
respects with the other shares then in issue.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2011

BB T -

Highest Lowest
price paid price paid Aggregate
per share per share  consideration

BB ERER
=B IE(E BRE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
T BT FHET
4.50 4.08 11,640
4.55 3.84 42,476
4.30 3.69 29,830
83,946

AP A RSB R S o aEEAR D
MEZE BT ABNELORHE - REARE

B AR B RHEERL -

RREFEERA - SERR B EHE R RS
B HERERARREF LEHES

BB AT RORT R B B BT R LR
AEFE T A RS -
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31. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had pledged the
following assets to banks to secure the general banking facilities
granted to the Group:

31. EEEH
REFHEEE - AKE S ARITEAAT
BE  UERETAKEZ —RIRTEER

2011 2010
—E——F —=—TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FA&T
Buildings (Note 17) BF (E17) 99,918 102,489
Prepaid lease payments (Note 18) A S (FiFE18) 38,064 37,325
Trade receivables (Note 22) B 5 EMKRIA (M5t 22) 30,534 -
Bank deposits (Note 25) RITER (M1EE25) 127,004 351,684
295,520 491,498
32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. EAEIE
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not FLUEEMIZE -« BiE RRED T4
provided in the consolidated financial BARNRERE P T5 TR R B ED
statements in respect of acquisition of BEARAR
property, plant and equipment 185,932 10,446

33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all its qualifying employees
in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their basic payroll to the retirement benefit
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

33. RIREFIGHE
REERBRHIERTE SR BURDI BT BT
BREREERIBRETFE - REEE
ZEEFB—BBUZFEAEH ZEZER
SEMBEENFRA - REBESEN
ME - BEREEE D BIAZMRETHNLL
RAFFEIHR - AREE BB ST 2 ME—
BEEARBZLTEWEHAFHNK - LEER
Y AR AT AR VEFIIRL B 1R FE A 3K o

R B BB A2 Eh BB T ATEREZ
BREERABHEE - HEMERRER
BEEXFHHMNE T B 2 LLAZERKENE
B BREFRAERES - AEHEER
ReEMETE 2 E— B EAREEELAH

o
(R o

EERHEERRAT —T——FFR
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution of all shareholders of the Company
on 23 June 2010, a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. Pursuant to the Pre-IPO
Scheme, the Company could grant options to directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors) and employees of the Group and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, promoters or
service providers of any member of the Group (“Participants”) to
subscribe for shares in the Company. The purpose of the Pre-
IPO Scheme was to recognise the contribution that Participants
made or might have made to the growth of the Group. It aimed
to give Participants an opportunity to acquire a personal stake
in the Company and helped motivate Participants to optimise
their performance and efficiency, and also to help attract or retain
Participants whose contributions are important to the long-term
growth and profitability of the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options could
be granted is 12,140,000 shares, representing 1.214% of shares of
the issued share capital of the Company immediately upon the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”), but
excluding any shares which could fall to be issued upon the exercise
of the options granted or to be granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme,
the other schemes and shares that could fall to be issued upon the
exercise of the over-allotment option in connection with the Listing.

Share options granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme are exercisable
at the initial offer price to the public (i.e. HK$2.43 per share). Each of
the holders of the share options under the Pre-IPO Scheme shall be
entitled to exercise his/her options in the following manner:

34. LR ABERBAIRZRS

(@) BX R FAEERIERERTE
BEBEAATDZEREA-_ZT—ZFXA
“TZERBHEMASRE AL REMYE
RAFIB S RTS8 ([ EIR AR SR
2 ) - BB ERARBERE - ARA
AAAEEES (BENTES  FHNTE
ERBIUFNTES) RIES  AEEEM
BB A RMEmEAA - B Hieg &
B HER - RIE . RE  ¥BBM 4
MEIEBILL . B HE A SR IRISGLRERS ([R5
E ) IZHERE - UREARFRG - HX
ARBEH B S EE T2 EEHAEE
BRI EELNTE - mamEiRM
BEBIERAMARE  UBKERA%
ERERNE  WRARBAHAEERE
BREBHNEHEEHREE -

AIRENBEREMSIRERDEE A
12,140,000 &% 0 - HHE R EEER AR R
MR F L ([ £ ) B4R A R 2 BT
FRRDRI1.214% « ERBIERTERES
IR AFEEERIFT & R E AT S i skig 1%
oF 0 BE AR 1T R REAS T 28 1T RO T AR 15+ A
KR AT B =i 75 B8 A R KA AL AR 48 7] BE A%
FEITHMRG o

RIBERARESA R L OBERERS
TRRALTEONBEEE (AEFRAN2.43
BIT)ITE - BRAFRBEEAF S T BB
BEFBABDBRATII A THREBRE

Service period that Maximum A _Em B 8ii&

share options can be vested percentage of  AJTT{EIEARFERY AI1TEERR R
after the date of Listing share options exercisable  AR7HARH Aokt LR
Attaining 1 year 30% of the total number of options granted ~ 3%H —4 BB AR FE A 2 30%
Attaining 2 years 30% of the total number of options granted 8 /4 = BB B ) 30%
Attaining 3 years 40% of the total number of options granted #5785 =4 X BB AR RE A B 40%
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34. U EERSE
(continued)

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

In 2010, 12,140,000 options were granted to eligible Participants
under the Pre-IPO Scheme and the total number of shares that can
be issued upon the exercise of all options is 12,140,000 shares.
The estimated fair value of the options at the date of grant is
HK$7,837,000. Details of the share options granted under the Pre-
IPO Scheme and their subsequent movements are as follows:

23&% (nﬁ)

(@ BXAMESAIERETE (8)
RZZE—ZTF - BREARZESAEIREGE
IR ERIR H 12,140,000 17 BB IAE - RIT{ESR
HPHE AR HE 12 AR 10 B 1T AR 8% 12,140,000 fi%
A& - R BHNBREN ST ATES
7,837,000 7T ° B X AR ES R BRI
JIETHdmﬂﬁﬂx$%s*mu¥\£&ﬁf§2*“‘§bﬁu

| Bt

Lapsed
Number of due to Number of
options granted employee options
in2010and  Exercised resignation  outstanding
Category of Eligible Date of grant  Exercise price outstanding as during  during asat
Participants (note) pershare  Exercisable period Vesting date at31.122010  theyear theyear  31.12.2011
REARLER RZB—-%
A L Sake Lirws
H =FE ] B RAT R
RERSREEN (st) SROKE RN FRAS WACRNEREHE  FAOR MAN  BREHE
%r%otors 12.7.2010 HK$%43 12.7'2011E —12.@2012 12720W¢ 1,477,500 - - 1,477,500
g 2% 23T E—FtAT-AE T —
tATZH ZE-ZEEATCR tATZA
3720 ﬁ % 7+20 3 3720 i 147,500 - - 147,500
_7 “5t HE —F-C
Z¥tATZA tAT=H
3720 SE % 7+20 13.7.2013 1,970,000 = = 1,970,000
“E-CEr HE =
“E-RELAToR tA+=A
4,925,000 = = 4,925,000
Employees under continuous 12.7.2010 HK$2.43  12.7.2011-12.7.2012 12.7.2011 2,164,500 (1,585,000) - 579,500
employment contract -3-% 24387 _f——ﬁ:ﬂf = S
EEERSNTHES tA+ZH S = A+
137201% 127+20T3 13.7.2012 2,164,500 - (24,000 2,140,500
B CEtAT=EE IR C
“2-ZEtfATCR b
37203E 27+20 37203& 2,886,000 - (32,000 2,854,000
“2--EcAt=AE  ZF =
“2-mELATCR tAT=R
7,215000  (1,585,000)  (66,000) 5,574,000
12,140,000 (1,585,000 (66,000 10,499,000
Number of options exercisable at the end of the year = 2,001,000
FRufTRnERERR
\jgviight%i a\g%geexercise price HK$243  HK$243 HKS2.48 HK$2.43
METSTRE
In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the share ~ FERDITENERAEN 5 - PR17E BHH

prices at the dates of exercise are ranged from HK$4.10 to HK$6.28 BB T4. 108 LE6.288B L ( T —F4F ¢

(2010: Nil). 7)o

RS2 EEZRRIE QR ERBRER
SR 2 B A A -
EaRibEEERAR

note: It was the date when participants accepted the offer of options under ~ BffzE :
the Pre-IPO Scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34. UBRHAERNSHIRE (8)
(continued)

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (@) X FEEAEERERTE (B)

The fair value of the options was calculated using the Binomial BEREATE IR -—ERAERFGTE @ ZIER
model. The inputs into the model were as follows: Fréa AR T

Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3

£—it FTHE F=H#t

Grant date share price o B B (E HK$2.39 HK$2.39 HK$2.39

2.397%7T 2.39787T 2.397%87T

Exercise price I8 HK$2.43 HK$2.43 HK$2.43

2.43%7T 243787 2.4387T

Expected volatility TR R I8 49.798% 54.803% 51.954%

Expected option period T B A A e HARR 1.492 years 2.495 years 3.495 years

1.492 4 2.495 3.495 &

Risk-free rate 42 B i A1 2 0.514% 0.776% 1.109%

Expected dividend yield TE AR B g = 3.557% 3.557% 3.557%

Expected volatility was determined with reference to the historical ~ TBENRIE AL Z %S FTAILLER LA RIAYA
volatility of certain comparable listed companies. FRBET °

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of =T EBEREATEMAZERRRIIZES
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The — BIFIE(EFTTIE ° Eﬁﬂxﬁéﬁfﬁl%zfziéﬁfﬁx
value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective  =RHINRIE &M A PFTE -

assumptions.

The Group recognised an expense of HK$3,527,000 for the year F R @ AEEREBARRIREE R ARE
(2010: HK$2,000,000) in relation to share options granted by the & Al ET &I#% i ¥ A 1 7 R 5 % 3,527,000 /8
Company under the Pre-IPO Scheme. JL(ZZ—Z4 : 2,000,000/87L) °

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZEZ=F——F+=-A=+—HILFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

In addition, pursuant to a written resolution of all shareholders of the
Company on 23 June 2010, a post-IPO share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) was also adopted.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company may grant options to
directors (including executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) and employees of the
Group and any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners, joint venture
business partners, promoters or service providers of any member
of the Group who the Board considers, in its sole discretion,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group (“Eligible Scheme
Participants”). The Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to reward Eligible Scheme Participants who have
contributed to the Group and to encourage Eligible Scheme
Participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and the Shares for the benefit of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole. The Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten
years from 23 June 2010.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of shares of the Company as of the date
of the approval by the shareholders in general meeting, without
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including both exercised and outstanding options) to
each Eligible Scheme Participant in any twelve-month period up to
the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as of the
date of grant.

34. LR RBERNR 2R Z (&)

(b) BERAREERBREE
SN - IREARTRBRRN T —TF7
A=+=ZBBBNETMRER AR ARM
ER AR SRR 8 (T2t 8l)) -

-

REZETE > ARFARAEFTS2ENER
RERIERAKEEHERNASEES
(BREATES  FATES BN

EE)LEE - ARBEERIKE R RSERA
A B - DR AERE - HERE -

RE - FF  XBBH  AZEXBEH %
AR HER (A& JrilJ/,\%J)}fx
HFEARE o XAt 812 — AR 2EEhEt 8 -
REEERTES ,\%;TZIKE@f’EHjE’JEFZK
AR BA ERFT 812 8BERANRR MR
R B BB R M fe A A B R AR A BB IE M a%
Yo At B = —EF AT =Hilst
TERBRA -

EITEREZT IS TR /AR A M

REERITHRERMDEE & X T ERBRE
RARE R it /E B ARFRHH10%
(EANRNRIIREAE) - RITEREZT S
KA BT E A BE AR S T I FT IR 8 18 oK
FT{E R BT/ B AR HE T AT RE 221 T O IR D FAE(R]
BFHRT ﬁ&;@ﬂqa%ﬁﬂxfﬁaﬁso% N
A+ —EAHRHEER L B - BT ERE
ZaT B R AR BT E B AR B R 55
AERFEIZHRERLNERE(REET
R ARITIER BB AR #E ) 21T R i§ T 3847
MR E B NMSBARKR L BHIE 31T
BB EI1% ©

EERHEERRAT —T——FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any
of their respective associates is required to be approved by the
independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the options). Where
granting of options to a substantial shareholder or any independent
non-executive director or their respective associates which will result
in the number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the twelve-month
period up to and including the date of such grant exceed of 0.1%
of the total number of shares in issue and have an aggregate value
in excess of HK$5 million, based on the official closing price of the
shares at the date of each grant, such proposed grant of options
will be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the
approval of the shareholders in general meeting.

Options granted have to be taken up within a period of 28 days from
the date of offer upon payment of HK$1.

The exercise price is determined by the board of directors and but in
any event shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the official closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
on the offer date, which must be a day on which the Stock
Exchange is open for the business of dealing in securities;

(ii) the average of the official closing price of the shares on the
Stock Exchange as stated in the daily quotation sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares.
Options granted are exercisable for a period to be notified by the

board of directors to each grantee and such period shall expire not
later than 4 years from the date of grant of options.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2011

34. LR RBERNR 2R Z (&)

b)) BR A AFABRERERESTS (&)
MARREE  TBTHAEREEZRE
(EHR EMHAR) SR BENEAHE
AR EERE  BEBYIERNTES
(T RIEER 5 BRI ARIE L IEH
TES)HE - BREEREREMBILIE
HITEBRFES BT E AR TR
o BERR T _EAPHEER KBS
(BEZE)ATERZEALRLRET
RHEOWERE(BEETE  SEHEEEAR
TTIE AR ARAE ) T 3517 RS T AT RR (5 8K
BRBBAERTRAOBEN01%  BRES
RHBHROMEFKHETE - LELA
5,000,000 7T + BIZBAFZANA &) 3 H B KT
ERRRARERAS EHER - HRESRRE
i B AE -

PRI EZAN 1R 2 H BAES 28 B KA -
BB A 1B T o

TEEHEFSETE @ HEERNATTEER
TISHEZ&ERE

0) RIRE A HI (X BARB R PAHHIEE
FRBEBH BT )RS B R
KD ERE R AR E T T E

(ii) SRR 2 BRI A EE 3 BB ATEY
BHBRRAIROEBRZANTEE
FWTE &

(i) f&fr HyE{E °
iR N EE 2 e SEE AR

1T - M B A ERE LB B s
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZEZ=F——F+=-A=+—HILFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34. UBRHAERNSHIRE (8)
(continued)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) b) X AFRBEZERETEI( Zj‘“i )
Details of the share options granted under the Scheme and their  1B#EZ a1 219 H AV BB HE & H 2 & EhH 1510
subsequent movements are as follows: N
Lapsed
Number of dueto  Number of
options granted employee options
in2010and  Granted  Exercised resignation  outstanding
Category of Eligible Exercise price outstanding as during during during asat
Scheme Participants Date of grant pershare  Exercisable period Vesting date at31.122010  theyear  theyear  theyear  31.12.2011
R2-2EEH
BRRERAR R-2--%
i ERER t=A=1-
- o L. toBE=t-A  REER mRneN
BRI HSEEER RiAH BRIRE  fREH FERS HATRNBRESR FREL O FROR O AXN  BREXR
Directors 35.2011 HK$6.39  35.2012-35.2013 352012 - 450 - - 442,500
5% 5% 639%r —B3-—§RA=HE 3
fA=H “E--%RA=A HA=H
45.2013-35.2014 452013 - 442500 = = 442,500

T -ERAMAE _T-cf
—Z-MERA=H RAMA

4.5.2014-35.2015 45.2014 - 590,000 - - 590,000
ZE-MERAMAZ “E-NE
“Z-n5nA=R RAMA
Directors 2462011 HK$6.39  35.2012-35.2013 3.5.2012 - 5,250,000 - - 5,250,000
g2 —2——f 6.30%T —E-—FRA=HE “3--f
AAZTEA “E--%£RA=H fA=A
45.2013-35.2014 45.2013 - 5,250,000 - - 5,250,000
“E-CFRAMAE I
“T-mERA=H hARA
452014 -35.2015 452014 - 7,000,000 - - 7,000,000
“Z-PWERANAZ “I-pE
“Z-n5%A=R RAMA
- 18975,000 - - 18975,000
Employees under continuous ~ 22,9.2010 HK$3.3§ 229.2011-22.9.2012 22.9.2011 1,131,000 = (60,500)  (15,000) 1,005,500
employment oonirct “T-%F 38ET  E—FAA-TCHE ZE——%
BEERANTHES AAZTZA “E-ZEAAZTZA AAZTZH
2392012 -22.9.2013 23.9.2012 1,131,000 - - (15,000) 1,116,000
ZE-ENACTZRE DB CE
“E-=FAA-tZA  AA=T=H
23.9. 20 3-229.2014 239.2013 1,508,000 - - (20,000 1,488,000
ZZ-=EnA-tZRE Z%-=F
“Z-MFAACTZRE AAZtER
Employees under continuous~ 3.5.2011 HK$6:39  35.2012-356.2013 3.5.2012 - 3,756,000 - (183,000 3,573,000
employmen coniract % 639%T —T-_%1A=EZ -
BEERANTHES THAZA “Z-=£%A=H RA=A
45.2013-35.2014 45.2013 - 3,756,000 - (183,000) 3,673,000
:2—:¢ AmAZE 3%
T-ERA=H R AMA
452014 3.5.2015 45.2014 - 5,008,000 - (244,000 4,764,000
“2-MERANAZE 3
“Z-h5RA=A hAMA
3,770,000 12,620,000 (60,500) (660,000 15,569,500
3,770,000 31,495,000 (60,500 (660,000 34,544,500
Number of options exercisable at the end of the year - 1,020,500
REE(TRREREE
Weighted average exercise price HKS3.38  HK$6.39  HK$3.38 HK$6 HKS$6.07
METAER 33BETL  630ET  3BAL ﬁérﬁ 6075

BARMEBERAT —T——FF§K 149
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZEZ=F——F+=-A=+—HILFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
The share options granted are exercisable as follows:

34. LR BERNR RS (&)

(b) BRAFEERBAETSE (B)
ATATHE AR PORBRRAEAN TS

Service period that Maximum R B H#&

share options can be vested percentage of share  A[{T{EHEARIER) A/ T{E B IR Y
after date of grant options exercisable  AR7EHARE Bt kR
Attaining 1 year 30% of the total number of options granted ~ #8 —4F K ERELER30%
Attaining 2 years 30% of the total number of options granted B MF R H BB EAZH) 30%
Attaining 3 years 40% of the total number of options granted 35 =4 R H BB AZR) 40%

The fair value of the options was calculated using the Binomial
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

B AT ER ZEARAG
BABBINT -

B BT

Share options granted on 22.9.2010
R-B-ZFAA-T-ARUNEBERE

Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3
14 ®o# %34
Grant date share price i BERE HK$3.38 HK$3.38 HK$3.38
3.38/8 7T 3.3878 7T 3.38/87C
Exercise price 1T1E(E HK$3.38 HK$3.38 HK$3.38
3.3878 7T 3.3878 7T 3.38/87C
Expected volatility TEHRR 47.816% 55.886% 53.523%
Expected option period Te B A s e A 1.5 years 2.503 years 3.5083 years
1.5 2.503 4 3.503 4
Risk-free rate & e 1) 2= 0.43% 0.625% 0.847%
Expected dividend yield E‘E,Hﬂﬂi,g s 2.515% 2.515% 2.515%
Share options granted on 3.5.2011

NR-ZE——FHA=HEHNERE
Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3
£14 24 34
Grant date share price o B BB (E HK$6.20 HK$6.20 HK$6.20
6.2078 7T 6.2078 7T 6.20787C
Exercise price 1TE(E HK$6.39 HK$6.39 HK$6.39
6.39/8 7T 6.3978 7T 6.39787C
Expected volatility TEBBET R 18 42.747% 53.510% 51.323%
Expected option period T HA i s A B 1.503 years 2.503 years 3.503 years
1.503 & 2.503 3.503 4
Risk-free rate o e A6 2 0.406% 0.778% 1.195%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B aR X 1.448% 1.448% 1.448%

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

Annual Report 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34. UBRHAERNSHIRE (8)
(continued)
(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) b) B AFARERBRERS (B)

Share options granted on 24.6.2011
R-B-——FXA-+HARHNBRE

Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3

F14 24 34

Grant date share price i B B (E HK$6.09 HK$6.09 HK$6.09
6.0978 7T 6.0978 7T 6.09787T

Exercise price 1T1E(E HK$6.39 HK$6.39 HK$6.39
6.3978 7T 6.3978 7T 6.3978 7T

Expected volatility TE R 8 38.291% 47 572% 51.216%
Expected option period T A e B 1.503 years 2.503 years 3.503 years
1.503 4 2.503 4 3.5034

Risk-free rate =R F = 0.260% 0.486% 0.803%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B U ES & 1.482% 1.482% 1.482%

Expected volatility was determined with reference to the historical  TEEHEIERRBE F ol hE A AR BARK
volatility of certain comparable listed companies. IBET o

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of tEREREA T EFRAZERBRIZEEN
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The H&{EfTME ° BIREZERS T EZEHBHE
value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective &Y RIE &M A FT TR °

assumptions.

During the year, the Group recognised share-based payment ZARNEENRFERNFARD FIRETEF H ERRE
expenses of HK$18,044,000 in relation to share options granted by — FER AR (7 A& {2352 18,044,000 7T
the Company under the Scheme (2010: HK$500,000) calculated (Z=Z—Z 4 : 500,000/ 7T) @ IR E s
with reference to the vesting periods. BHEE -

ESXMEBRGRAT —T——FFR 151
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(I) Transactions

During the year, the Group had the following transactions with

related parties:

35. BEHRE
() X5

RER - AEBEHEBETEUTRS :

2011 2010
g—-f -2-%%
Name of related party Nature of transaction HK$'000 HK$'000
BERER RHME TERL TAL
0] A former shareholder with 50% equity
interest in the Group
BBARE 0% RIEN—BRIERE
Delco Asia Co., Limited Interest expense - 951
MERR
(i Key management personnel and
substantial shareholder with
significant influence of the Group
HASEEEATEN
TREBASRBEHRR
Mr. Fang and/or his close Interest expense - 645
family members and IR
entities controlled by him
ARER/SEARRGERE R
HirtlnEs
(i) Other related parties
EftmER
An entity controlled by a Purchase of metal scrap (note b) 13,307 -
close family member of a BEESE (Fih)
substantial shareholder,
Mr. Herman Maurits de Leeuw,
who has significant influence over
the Company
HARABEAYENTERR
Herman Maurits de Leeuw 2440
i a0
/855K (defined in Note 21) Purchase of property, plant
LERK(EERME21) and equipment
BENE  BERR 6,722 3,286
Purchase of metal scrap 1,881 20,401
Sales of metal scrap - 16,212
HERELE
ISA Co., Limited (‘ISA”) Acquisition of additional interest in 4,779 -

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

Chiho-Tiande (HK) Metals Recycling

Co. Limited (“CTHK Metals”) (notes a and b)
KBRES K (BE) BEEBEARAT

(IBEagEeE]) BEIMER (Ftakb)

Annual Report 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(I) Transactions (continued)
notes:

(a) On 21 December 2011, the Group further acquired 15% equity
interest in CTHK Metals from ISA, non-controlling interests with
significant influence on a subsidiary of the Company at the time of
this acquisition, for a consideration of HK$4,779,009 in cash. The
difference between the consideration and the carrying amount of
non-controlling interests, amounting to HK$171,000, was recognised
as an equity transaction in reserve.

(b) These transactions also constituted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

(Il) Balances

Details of balances with related parties are set out in Note 21.

(Il Compensation of key management personnel

The directors of the Company and the five highest paid employees
are identified as key management members of the Group, details of
their compensation during the year are set out in Note 13.

35. MEFKE (E)
() R5 (&)
s -

(@) R-T——F+-_A-+—H A&EE
HE—FRISAREEE BB SBEMN15%
A (R U B BRI 2R A R — T B A A
BEATENERER)  ReaRER
4,779,099 7t - KRB IEIT RS IRE
ERZEEE 171,000 8 TR HETERAS—
BRARS o

() ZERXZTEREER FRFERER S
(EZ R LEMARRNE 14AF)

() #58R
EREETT 2 A ERREIB BN TR 21 o

() EEEE A B Hr i
AREEENTERRFEEGANERE
TEEAB - HERF AR SSHRH
FF13°
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

36. OPERATING LEASES

36. KEHE

The Group as lessee REEEREBEA
2011 2010
—F——F —T—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Minimum lease payments paid under FARBEERES TR
operating leases during the year: =EMEE :

Plant and machinery BB Mk es 19,851 5,914
Premises S 1,501 =
21,352 5,914

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for & 2

HEE R - AEERENATHEEE

A& 23R E
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating ‘&8 & 57 T 51 BRF ] 2| BB ) 7R 2R A AR AH 2

leases which fall due as follows:

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Within one year —FRN 20,034 13,849
In the second to fifth years inclusive “EhE (BEEEME) 57,301 49,622
Over five years FFEE 44,278 48,786
121,613 112,257

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its property, plant and equipment. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of seven years with fixed rentals.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

36. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessor

Rental income of subleasing a leasehold land in the PRC on a
temporary basis during the year ended 31 December 2011 was
HK$1,125,000 (2010: HK$3,218,000). The sublease was negotiated
for one year. No renewal of rental agreement during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

36. KL=EHE (FE)
AEBEERTEA
HEZZT——FF+-A=t—HLEFE &
EERFEERSAAE T HNHES KA S
1,125,000/ ;t( — & — T 4F : 3218,000/8
TL)  AHABEA—F o FRNEE S

REFMEER  AKBEBEPOEL TR
REEHESWT

2011 2010

—E——F —=—TF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FER FATT

Within one year —FR - 1,073

37. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 1 January 2010 (the “Acquisition Date”), the Group acquired
100% equity interest in Delco Europe from HPL and SVO for a
consideration of EUR100 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,000)
in cash, which was Delco Europe’s net asset value at the
Acquisition Date. HPL and SVO are the holding companies of
Delco Participation B.V., a shareholder of the Company. Since the
Group obtained control over Delco Europe on the Acquisition Date,
the Group accounted for the acquisition on that date using the
acquisition method of accounting.

37. W iE — R L F]
R=ZE—ZF—F—H(KEBH] &
S E AR e KB 1008 7T (185 7 491,000
77T) (FRE M Delco EuropeAUREE B HARY
& EFE) M HPL & SVO Wk Delco Europe
2 EPAEHE - HPL & SVO A4 R Delco
Participation B.V.HZERAF] o HR A E
Pk EE B BAENS Delco Europe BI3Z Hil#E - 72X
SEUBEeEBZAMNBEALR -

EERHEERRAT —T——FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

37. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
The net assets acquired in the transaction are as follows:

37. WiE—EEB AR (&)
RZ SR EEFEENT

Acquiree’s carrying
amount before

combination
and fair value
REBAT IR
FEREER A FE
HK$’000
F&TT
Net assets acquired: BREFEE
Property, plant and equipment L E YN 853
Other receivables E b el siIE 1,177
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIRE 3,982
Other payables HAbfEFRIA (1,008)
Amounts due to related parties FESRAE S IR (707)
Bank borrowings IRITEE (3,416)
Tax payable FERTLIR (882)
1
Total consideration recognised TR A B At FE I SRIBR B (B
as other payable 1
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WHREEEHFIREMA
Cash consideration paid BfESNRE =
Bank balances and cash acquired BEYEEIRI TR MRS 3,982
3,982

Delco Europe contributed approximately HK$503,000 to the BWEHBHZ-_Z—ZFTF+_H=+—
Group’s profit between the Acquisition Date and 31 December H ' Delco Europe 755 B ))& I 5 B4
2010. 508,000/ 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZEZ=F——F+=-A=+—HILFE

38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 17 January 2012, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with HWH, Delco and Sims Metal Management Dragon
Holdings Limited (“Sims”) (collectively the “Subscribers”) pursuant to
which the Company would issue convertible bonds, with detachable
warrants (the “Warrants”) to the Subscribers with an aggregate
principal sum of HK$815,800,000 (“Convertible Bonds”) (the
“Subscription”).

The Convertible Bonds carry interest at 4% per annum and are
convertible into shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$6 per share within a period of 3 years from
the date of issue, subject to adjustments.

The Warrants are exercisable to subscribe for an aggregate amount
of HK$75,830,646 for fully paid shares of HK$0.01 each in the
Company at an initial subscription price of HK$6 per share within a
period of 3 years from the date of issue, subject to adjustments.

HWH and Delco have agreed to assign to Sims the Warrants that
they were entitled as a result of the Subscription.

The Subscription was completed on 1 March 2012. Details of the
transaction are included in the circular of the Company dated 8
February 2012 and announcements of the Company dated 18
January 2012 and 1 March 2012.

39. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

In 2011, there was no major non-cash transaction. In 2010, the
Company capitalised shareholder’s loans of HK$223,708,000
as capital reserve and allotted 749,999,900 shares of HK$0.01
each in the Company. Details of which are set in the note (i) in the
consolidated statement of change in equity.

38. {EHIREIE
R—ZETE——-—F—HA+tB' AQFH

HWH - Delco }2 Sims Metal Management
Dragon Holdings Limited ([ Sims |) (%75 [ 32
A DRI LR '%FlttZK’ATTmm,\%
ABEITAR @ 458 /5 815,800,000 7 7T K AT #2
W& ([FTHRRR &S 1) M & A] D 47 RAR i 25
([RRHERE ([ RIBRIE]) ©

AR E A5 F B A 4% A B3 1THEIE=
FER (AT FAR) RVE A BEER6BITH
RN A B FRYEE 0.01 T HIARD ©

A TERRAEE AR ITHHE=FA (A F
Eﬂ%)?ﬁﬁ]ﬁu wu\gﬁ{ﬁlHQG/’%Euaﬁgm /\ﬁgﬁ
75,830,646 8 TN A A1 AXEI{E 0.01 A TTHY
EE R -

HWH % Delco [F] & 1A Sims i 58 [N A& = T8
BEZE R RRIETE -

REEEN_Z——F=A—H=K X5
FEHR ARG BHA-—T——F=- A\H
REEEBBA— T ——F—A+NBEZ

——F=A—HHORMHA -

30. X E}BERH

BA:EE——E WEAMNEANFRER
S R_E—ZF ARABREERK
2%7%@M%m§$k¢ﬁé$ﬁﬁ&m
%% 749,999,900 8% * AR EFAEEO0.01 745
TCHIRR (D - BRAFIBEN R A R B KT
5 (i)

EERHEERRAT —T——FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE=ZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

40. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 40. EEA QA RMBRRRHER

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company ~RE2HmEEHE A BBEAR R BHRARNE

at the end of the reporting period includes: R
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Unlisted investment in a subsidiary R—EMB A RRIE LTRE - -
Available-for-sales investment A HERE 19,060 =
Amount due from subsidiaries JE U B 2 | IR 1,127,531 652,172
Other receivables H {th e W zkIE 536 635
Bank balance IRITHERR 97 107,132
Total assets BEE 1,147,224 759,939
Other current liabilities HEMiEhaE 16,184 6,055
Bank overdraft R1TEX 2,285 =
Total liabilities BEE 18,469 6,055
Net Assets FEE 1,128,755 753,884
Share capital % 10,419 10,000
Reserves it 1,118,336 743,884
Total equity G 1,128,755 753,884
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE=ZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 41. A RIME A BEHE

COMPANY
Issued and
Place and date fully paid
of incorporation/ share capital/
establishment registered capital  Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary AL, ERITRAR held by the Group Principal activities
WELRER B 5% A Ba/dfka  AKEFEEGRIER  TEER
2011 2010
- —T-TF
Chiho-Tiande International British Virgin Islands US$2 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited (‘CT International’) 2 April 2008 2ETT REER
(note (i) EBRUHS
BaXtERERAR —TZ\EMAZH
(TESBIR (M)
Chiho-Tiande Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Ba AR ERRAT] 16 July 2008 10,000/7C REER
Bt
“ZT\ELATARH
Delco Europe (note (ii)) The Netherlands EUR18,151 100% 100% Purchasing agent of
Delco Europe (PizE (i) 18 January 1985 18,151 BUTL the Group
e FERENRERR
—nWN\EE—A+N\R
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% Purchasing agent of
Baxit(E%)GRAR 12 May 2004 100,000757C the Group and
BE wholesales of metal
“ZEMERA+ZH scrap without
processing
FEENFERER
RAINTESERE
Hefast Holding Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% Investment holding
20 December 2002 100,000 7 REEKR
B
“ZEFt”ACTH

EeREEFRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 41. &XQTMB QTS (8)
COMPANY (continued)

Issued and
Place and date fully paid
of incorporation/ share capital/
establishment registered capital  Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary Rl ERITRAR held by the Group Principal activities
WEAREHE Bt E R A Bx/dfka  AKEFEEGRIER  TEER
2011 2010
“B—-f —T-TF
Chiho-Tiande (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Copper Industry Company 15 June 2009 10,000/ 7T REER
Limited (‘CTHK Copper’) B8
BaXi () WEERAT “ZTNEATRA
(IB&EBRE])
CTHK Metals (note (ii)) Hong Kong HK$35,000,000 70% 55% Trading of metal scrap
EAESE (MR i) 20 September 2010 35,000,00057C BERCE
Bt
ZE-TENAZTH
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Logistics Co. Limited
(‘CTHK Logistics”) (note (iv)) Hong Kong HK$10,000 36.4% N/A Provide logistics
BARM(BE) WRERAR 2 March 2011 10,0007%7C Tam services for
([BaEHR]) (W) &8 the Group
“T——%=AZH RASEREMR RS
Chiho-Tiande Investments (BVI) Limited ~ British Virgin Islands US$1 100% N/A Investment holding
9 August 2011 (E @R REER
RERLES
—2—%/\ANA
Chiho-Tiande Metals Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% N/A Inactive
BaRteBREFRAA 19 August 2011 10,0007 @R BXK
Bk
“Z—F\AthA
Chiho-Tiande Resources Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% N/A Inactive
5 September 2011 1% T BEG
RERLES
—T—%NATA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 41. &XQTMB QTS (8)
COMPANY (continued)

Issued and
Place and date fully paid
of incorporation/ share capital/
establishment registered capital  Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary Rl ERITRAR held by the Group Principal activities
WEAR B jidok::ty 4=p:1 BA/GEMRE  AREAEEERAES  TEER
2011 2010
“B—-f —T-TF

Chiho-Tiande (Ningbo) Metals The PRC US$10,000,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Recycling Co., 28 September 2008 10,000,000 7T of metal scrap
Limited (note (v) hE MIRFEESE

BER(ER) BA2BERAR ZEEN\ENAZTN\R
(&£ W)

Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Foundry The PRC US$7,500,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Company Limited (note (v)) 8 December 2003 7,500,000%7T of metal scrap,

aMBERRIEEBR A H production and sales
(Bt () ZET-£+-ANA of metal products

MIRHEREE -
EERHECREM

Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals The PRC US$22,682,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Company Limited (note (v)) 24 December 1999 22,682,000%7T of metal scrap,

BB RIS BER A H production and sales
(B W) —“AANEF=A=THA of metal products

MIRHERTE -
ERHECBED

Shanghai Chiho-Tiande Resource The PRC RMB52,000,000 51% 51% Processing and sales
Recycling Co., Limited 30 September 2010 AR 52,000,000 7T of metal scrap
(“CTSH Metals”) (note (vi) R NIRHEEESS

HEBEARHBESBERAR “E-ZFNA=1H
(IE& B2 1) (M)

Tianjin Chiho-Tiande Metals The PRC RMB20,000,000 51% N/A Processing and sales
Recycling Company Limited 21 February 2011 AR 20,000,0007T NEH of metal scrap
(“CTTJ Metals’) (note (vil) s MIRHEEELE

AEEAANBEEBAERAR “Z—%-R-+—-A

(TEaXREE 1) (M (i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 41. A GEIMB A BFHE (&)

COMPANY (continued)
Issued and
Place and date fully paid
of incorporation/ share capital/
establishment registered capital  Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary Rl ERITRAR held by the Group Principal activities
HWELRER B 5% A Ra/EfRE  ARERSEERIER  TEXR
2011 2010
“B—-f —T-TF
Chiho-Tiande (Yan Tai) Resources The PRC US$8,000,015 100% N/A Processing and sales
Recycling Co., Limited 15 November 2011 8,000,015 7T TEA of metal scrap
(note (v) # NIREEESE
EaXit (B8 BEERERAR “E——%+-A+HA
(M W)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of R-ZT——F N -_F-ZFFREMEMNBEA
the years of 2011 and 2010. AIBITEAERERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BEZT——F +ZA=+—HLFE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 41. &AATIMB A 1S (8)
COMPANY (continued)

notes:

U

(i)

i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The Company holds CT International directly and all other
subsidiaries indirectly.

On 1 January 2010, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in
Delco Europe.

On 20 September 2010, the Group established CTHK Metals in
which the Group held 55% equity interest. On 21 December 2011,
the Group acquired additional 15% equity interest in CTHK Metals
from ISA. Details of which are set out in Note 35(l) note (a).

On 2 March 2011, the Group established CTHK Logistics in which
the Group held 52% equity interest in CTHK Logistics through 70%
owned CTHK Metals.

These entities are wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

On 30 September 2010, the Group established CTSH Metals in
which the Group held 51% equity interest.

On 21 February 2011, the Group established CTTJ Metals in which
the Group held 51% equity interest.

GEE

() AR EERSEE A BB RERSEME
HAukiE AR

(i) R-ZZE-—ZTF—-—HF—HB AEENKE
Delco Europe #J 100% 1z ©

(il RZZB—FENA=-1+H  KEEKIE
EEREE  AEBEREPIFE5% K
Eo-RNZTE——F+=-A=+—H ' £&&
ERISAIREE S B A SBRZEEING% IR
T o FEIBEAMTTE35() HiFE (a) °

(iv) RZT—F=A=H  AEEKIEA
BB ERAEEEBBERAEE
S BT0%RER GBS BAYIRA52%A%
T o

v) ZEBRAETEKNINEBERE -
(vi) R-ZB—EBFNA=1H  NEERIE
A LHEEE  HPAEEFE51%ME -

—E——F-A=-+—H AREKIZ
ERELE  HRAEEFAL1%K

(vii) n
=

%
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5-Year Financial Summary

hFEMERE
Year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=t+—-HLEE
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—TT+F  ZTTN\FE TThEFE T-THF B——f§
HK$’' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
TAT FAT FAHT FHT TERT
RESULTS £
Revenue W 1,798,332 2.505,168 2,339,243 5,931,589 9,815,522
Profit (loss) before tax BritanE A (B18) 105,921 (271,298) 587,194 482,034 204,459
Income tax (expense) charge  Fr{5#: (BIs) #% (22,958) 71,166 (167,540) (129,478) (88,208)
Profit (loss) for the year FRaF (EE) 82,963 (200,132) 419,654 352,556 116,251
At 31 December
W+=A=+—H
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—EELE  ZTEN\F ETNF ETF CZB——F
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
TAT FAT FAT FAT FTHERT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Total assets BERE 779,434 1,110,846 1,851,728 3,581,367 5,314,522
Total liabilities BfERE (595,997)  (1,115,883)  (1,433,630)  (1,934,686)  (3,250,502)
Net assets (iabilities) FERE(BE) 183,437 (5,087) 418,098 1,646,681 2,064,020

In this report, amounts denominated in US$ have been converted
into HK$ at the rate of US$1 = HK$7.8 for illustration purpose

only.

This report is published in both English and Chinese languages.
Should there be any inconsistency between the Chinese and

English versions, the English version shall prevail.
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